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Lend Lease

CORPORATION

STOCK EXCHANGE AND MEDIA ANNOUNCEMENT 20 AUGUST 2003

2003 OPERATING RESULT POINTS TO IMPROVED OUTLOOK
FOR LEND LEASE

A$230.2 Million Operating Profit After Tax
(A$714.8 million Loss After Tax following REI Write-down)

Lend Lease Corporation Limited {“Lend Lease”) today announced a net operating profit
after tax of A$230.2 million for the year to 30 June 2003 and said it expected to report an
increased net operating profit after tax in the range of A$240 million — A$250 million in
2004.

The outlook for Lend Lease’s 2004 operating profit does not rely on contributions from the sale of
any major assets or businesses.

Lend Lease’s reported full year result to June 2003 was a loss of A$714.8 million after tax. This
includes a total A$945 million write-down in the value of various Real Estate Investments (“REI™)
husinesses in the US, Asia and Europe, slightly lower than the amount announced earlier this
year.

In aceordance with its revised dividend policy as announced in May, the company declared a final
dividend of 20 cents per share unfranked, compared to the 10 cents per share fully franked
interim dividend paid in March and the § cents per share fully franked final dividend for the 2002
financial year.

Lend Lease Group CEO, Mr Greg Clarke, said the company had dramatically reshaped its business
model during the year and is now well placed to generate reliable earnings growth.

“The decision to exit the US REI business in an orderly way has certainly heen expensive and
painful, but it has been the right thing to do,” Mr Clarke said.

“Lend Lease’s future and its earnings visibility are a lot clearer today than this time last year.

“The businesses that we are going forward with are in very good shape, having achieved around
13% operating profit growth in 2003 with a better outlook in 2004,

“Lend Lease is in a strong position financially. Our net debt is only A$17.4 million and we had
A$867 million in cash af 30 June 2003, We expect to realise additional cash of approximately
A3$750 million as we complete the exit from the US REI businesses. Most of this cash will have
heen received by the end of the calendar year,” he said.



This excludes approximately A$400 million of co-investments that related to the businesses being
exited, which Lend Lease is retaining and will realise over a period of time.

“With overall global economic conditions remaining challenging, we have secured A$88 million
p.a. in sustainable, pre-tax operating savings, and have focused on growth opportunities like
infegrated urban and community development and real estate funds management here in
Australia, healthcare PFIs in the UK and large military housing projects in the US,” Mr Clarke
said.

On a global basis, Bovis Lend Lease produced an excellent result, with profit after tax up 18% to
A$133.7 million, Backlog Gross Profit Margin increasing 12% during the year to A$564 million and
its profitability ratio up from 35% to 36%.

Despite very challenging conditions over the next 12 months in some of Bovis Lend Lease’s project
management and construction markets, the business is on track for 10% plus growth in profit after
tax in 2004.

With the operating earnings performance returning to growth and the US REI exit well laid out,
Lend Lease also implemented two capital management initiatives during the year to improve
shareholder returns.

The company’s dividend policy was changed to lift the payout ratio to between 60% and 80%. The
final dividend for 2003 announced today reflects a 78% payout ratio.

In addition, Lend Lease also commenced a 10% share buyback program in June and has so far
hought back 2.9% of its shares. The buyback program was suspended in the lead-up to the results
announcement. As the company is currently in negotiations with its joint venture partners in
respect of its investment in IBM Global Services Australia, the buyback will remain suspended for
the time being.

Given the significant level of cash proceeds expected from the exit of the US REI businesses, the
Group expects to have surplus cash at the completion of the current buyback. Mr Clarke said he
intended to seek shareholder approval for a further 16% share buyback at the AGM in November
this year.

The company also announced that it was suspending the annual alloeation of .5% of its issued
capital to the employee share plans, effective immediately.

Mr Clarke said employee share ownership has heen and will remain an important part of the Lend
Lease culture.

“We will continue to reward employees with Lend Lease shares. However, shares will be
purchased on-market in the future. This will eliminate the dilutionary impact of the annual
aloeation to employee share plans on existing shareholders,” he said.

OPERATIONS OVERVIEW

A key feature of Lend Lease’s 2003 result was the division between the continuing operations
which will form the basis of Lend Lease’s future earnings and the continuing operations being
divested foHowing the decision to exit the US REI and other related RE] husinesses announced in
May this year.



The continuing businesses have performed very well and are well placed to deliver further
earnings growth going forward.

Key continuing operations results for 2003:

e Overall operations — up 13% to A$198.1 million (A$174.8 million June 2002).

¢ Bovis Lend Lease — up 19% to A$133.7 million (A$112.7 million June 2602).

e Integrated Development Services — down from A$40.6 million in 2002 to A$31.6 million at
June 2003, but skewed by significant PFI bid costs in the UK for the Alenby/Connaught
project bid (bid costs of A$13.9 million after tax) and health care projects not yet awarded.
Australian development businesses performed very strongly and Actus Lend Lease in the US
posted a 24% increase.

e Real Estate Investments — up 16.4% to A$93.1 mitlion (A$80.0 million June 2002).

Discontinuing operations results:

While the net profit contributions from the discontinuing REI businesses increased by $8.8 million
to $32.1 million in 2003, this was entirely due to reduced amortisation charges following the write-
down of the carrying value of these businesses announced during the year. Operating earnings
hefore amortisation from the discontinuing businesses were flat at $60 million after tax in 2003.

The outlook for these businesses, if they were to continue under Lend Lease ownership, would see
them continue to impede the company’s performance, underscoring the importance of the
decision to exit.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

In his profit analysis, Finance Director, Robert Tsenin, said that looking beyond the
disappointment of the REI write-down, there were a number of very pleasing factors in the 2003
result.

“At the operating level, Lend Lease has delivered a quality result, which clearly points to its
earnings growth capacity as we remove the drag created by the various REI businesses that has
heen so disappointing over the last two years,” Mr Tsenin said.

“We have significantly reduced the contribution of net non-recurring items to the operating profit.
Such items are down to just $15.7 million after tax, from A$64.8 million after tax in 2002.

“Continuing business operating earnings increased 32% to A$145.8 million after tax, while total
investment income from investments like Bluewater in the UK and King of Prussia in the US are
up 13% to A$61.2 million,” Mr Tsenin said.

“We are in very good shape financially, with balance sheet capacity and very strong cashflows to
give the company significant flexibility for its future capital management strategies,” Mr Tsenin
said.



Other financial highlights:

» Net interest expense improved as a resulf of higher average cash balances during the year,
reduced by A$4.2 million after tax to A$11.9 million after tax in 2003,

e Net foreign exchange hedge benefits up 34% to A$22.6 million after tax.

e (roup restructuring costs of A$32.5 million after tax were effectively offset by tax benefits
brought to account that were not recognised in previous years and additional recoveries from
the THI and Chelverton investments in the UK.

As previously announced, Mr Tsenin will retire from the Board and the company on 31 August
2003.

OUTLOOK

Mr Clarke said Lend Lease was well placed to achieve growth in both reported after tax earnings
and on an earnings per share basis in 2004.

“There are 4 number of factors which will come into play,” he said.

“The key point is that we expect our continuing operations to produce earnings that will more
than offset the lower earnings we could expect to achieve from the RE] businesses we are exiting.

“With the benefit of the share buybacks, we are looking for reported eps growth in excess of 10% in
2004.

“We still have lot of work to do in securing Lend Lease’s future performance over the longer term,
hut 1 think the steps we have taken, and the operating result delivered in 2008, show that Lend
Lease can and will do it.” Mr Clarke said.

ENDS

For further information contact:

Roger Burrows Nikki Genders
Lend Lease Corporation Lend Lease Corporation
Tel: 6129236 6116 Tel: 61 2 9236 6186

Attached: Summary of Continuing Business Operating Results — FY 2003



Attachment to Lend Lease Corporation Limited ASX & Media Statement on FY 2003 Results

PERFORMANCE OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS - FY 2003

SUMMARY

A key point about the 2603 result for Lend Lease was the performance of the company’s on-going
operations — those which will form the bhasis of Lend Lease’s future earnings.

While the overall continuing operations were up 13% to $198.1 million (A$174.8 million in 2002),
the key components of this result were:

Bovis Lend Lease

Bovis Lend Lease delivered a high quality result, up 18% to $133.7 million compared to
A$112.7 million in 2002,

Despite the difficult economic conditions, the key drivers determining Bovis Lend Lease’s
profitability continued to improve. New Work Secured was up 8% on the previous year to
AS$B11 million. Bovis Lend Lease’s Backlog Gross Profit Margin — the expected gross profit to
be earned on committed contracts — was up 12% to A$564 million. In addition, there are a
number of UK health care PFIs that are still in preferred bidder stage, which will increase
Backlog by A$147 million when financial close is reached.

Bovis Lend Lease’s workload was well diversified across various sectors in each region,
mitigating the impacts of traditional construction industry eyclicality.

Activity in the commercial sector is expected to reduce in the UK and the US; however, Bovis
Lend Lease is well placed to generate increased earnings in the health care and defence
sectors in the UK, and the health care and education sectors in the US. 1n addition, we expect
growth in earnings from the defence sector in the US through Actus Lend Lease.

There was also a pleasing increase in the period of time over which Backlog earnings are
expected to be realised, with the Backlog to he earned from 2006 and beyond increasing from
16% at June 20602 to 18% at June 2003.

Integrated Development Services

Profit after tax was A$31.6 million for the year compared to A$40.6 million after tax in 2002.
Within the 2008 result, the Australian integrated urban and community development
operations posted strong earnings growth, while Actus Lend Lease in the US posted a 24%
increase in its full year profit after tax to A$4.2 million.

A major reason for the lower overall earnings this year was the relatively high level of PFI bid
costs expensed during the year (A$26 million after tax). However, there were two key points
to note about these in 2603

1. In the UK health care sector A$3 millien after tax related to projects Lend Lease has
subsequently won and A$8 million after tax related to projects on which the company
remains shortlisted. Collectively, these prajects represent approximately £1.1 billion
(A$2.7 billion) in capital spend.



2. Lend Lease expensed A$13.9 million after tax in respect of the Allenby/Connaunght defence
project bid during the year. The bid was unsuccessful; however, the size of that project
and the potential earnings over 30 years made it a very large one-off opportunity with
considerable earnings benefits that was worth pursuing despite the large bid cost.

In Australia there is an excellent base for growth within the two integrated development
services businesses. Delfin Lend Lease’s strongly performing master-planned residential
community business delivered a 49% increase in operating profit to A$32 million for the year.
Delfin Lend Lease’s performance was driven by a healthy increase in the average price per lot
sold and overhead reductions, and is positioned for further strong earnings growth in 2004. In
addition, a profit after tax of A$11.2 million was earned on the sale of the North Lakes project
in 2003.

The Australian urban development business contributed A$9 million profit after tax and has
built significant earnings potential through the addition of major projects, such as the
A$1 billion Rouse Hill Regional Centre in Sydney and the final stage of the Twin Waters
residential community on the Sunshine Coast in south east Queensland.

The combined development businesses in Australia are well placed to generate earnings of
A$50 million per annum in 2004 and further earnings growth beyond that.

Another highlight is Actus Lend Lease in the US, which achieved an overall profit increase of
24% for the year. The A$4.2 million after tax profit included the initial construction profits on
the Fort Hood project (A$470 million capital spend} and development fees on the
Beaufort/Parris Istand project {A$250 million capital spend).

Actus Lend Lease is actively bidding on a number of other projects, all of which offer long
term earnings opportunities. The company was recently awarded preferred bidder status on a
US$5 billion U.S. Army base project in Hawaii over a 50 year period, with an initial capital
spend of approximately US$1.8 bitlion.

¢ Real Estate Investments
All of Lend Lease’s continuing REI businesses contributed profit increases in 2003,

Profit after tax was A$93.1 million compared to A$80 million in 2002, a 16% increase. The
strength of that increase is highlighted, considering that the 2002 result included A$13 million
after tax in one-off profits from the sale of Lend Lease’s interests in Kiwi Property Group in
New Zealand and Arrdbida shopping centre in Portugal.

The major contributors were Australian REI operations (principally management of GPT and
APPF), which were up 16% to A$28.4 million, and Lend Lease's earnings on its 30% interest in
the Bluewater retail and leisure destination in the UK, which were up 16% to A$36.2 million
after tax in 2003.

The Asian operations (principally management of the APIC Funds) produced a A$4.8 million
profit after tax compared to a A$5.6 million loss after tax the previous year. The loss in 2002

included costs associated with proposed joint ventures in both Singapore and Japan.

ENDS
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Appendix 4E

Freliminary Final Report
for the year ended 30 June 2003
iprevious corresponding periad being
the vear ended 30 June 2002)

Results for Announcement to the Market

Key Information

Jung %

2002 Changs

ASm
Revanus from ordinary activities 12,478.0 Dlowwry 18.89%
Frofit/losst from ordinary actividies after tax atiributable to
mambers 228.3 Dowry 415.9%
MNet profitfdloss) for the period attrbutable to mermbers 2263 Elonam 415,9%
Dividends

Arnour Frankead amount
per security per security

Final Dividend - Payabla 18 September 2003 20 cants il
frtarirn Dividend - Faid 18 March 2003 10 cents 10 cents
Total amount par share 30 cents 10 cents

The record date for determining entitlermant (o the final dividend is 4 September 2003,

As par the ASX announcement on 25 July 2003, the Board has decided to suspend the Share Election Flan and Share Purchase
Faan from 1 September 2003, in addition, the Board has also decided 1o suspend the Dividend Reirnvastment Plan (DRP) from 1
Cietobar 2003, This timirg alows shareholders to participate in the DRF for the 2003 final dividend due 1o be paid on 18 September
2003, Tha DEP rasidual cash balances wifl ba paid in March 2004 with the next interim dividand.

The rernainder of tha information requiring disclosura to comply with listing rule 4.3A is containad in the attached June 2003
Managemant Discussion and Analysis, June 2003 Arnual Consolidated Financial Raport and the additional information section
balow.

Additional information

Net Tangible Assets
Jure
2002

$4.07

Net Tangible Assets per security

The Anrual General Mesting

The Annual Ganeral Meating will be held at the City Bacital Hall, Angel FPlace, Sydnay at 2:00pm on Wednasday 12 November 2003,
The annual report will be availahle early October 2003,

Lend Leass Corporation Limited Appendix 4E 30 June 2003
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Lend Lease Corporation Limited
Annual Consolidated Financial Report June 2003

Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (MD&A)
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A)

All figliras in this announsement are axpressed in Australian Dollars unless otherwise epedified.

Thea foliowing discussion and analysis is based on the Group's Consclidated Financial Statemenis as at 30 June 2003, and shouid be read
ir connction with those Financial Statemeants.

Overview

Introduction

Lend Lease operated through two core business platforms. Heal Estate investments (REN and Real Estate SBolutions (RES), providing a
broad range of real estala servicas 1o clients across major global markets and sectors.

REl's principat business is that of real astate vestment manageament and RES' principal business is the provigion of proparty refated
services, including construction, project management, design, development, capltal raising and in some cases the ongoing management of
assets.

Lend Lease operates in 42 countries. lts principal oparations are in Australia, the USA and the UK Some of the key factors influencing the
business are the state of investmant and real estate markets, tha lavel of construction activity, globat sconomic conditions, interest rates,
taxation, and regulatony legisiation. However, because the Group's operations consist of providing diversifiad services to a broad range of
chiants in many geographic ocations, no one factor, in managemant’s opinion, determines the Group’s financial condition or the profitability
of its aperations.

Segment Results Summary

The financial resuits for the year ended June 2003 are sumrmarisad balow, The segment resulis of the operating businesses excluds
firrancing costs fwhich are includad in Group Treasury), Carporate overheads, Group restructuring costs, amartisation charges and the
writedown of the RE businesses, which are separatsly disclosed.

Operating Cperating Profit/Loss)  Operating Proftdloss)

Revenus Before Tax After Tax Asssts
Juns June Juns Juns June Juns June Jurie
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Adm Afm Abrm Abm A Abm Afrm Abm

Heal Estate Solutions

Bovis Lend Lease 10,220.7 1815 112.7 33813
fntegratad Davalopmant Businesses 1,084.8 70.4 A0.6 7067
Total Real Estate Solutions 11,3055 251.9 153.3 4,088.0
Real Estate Investments

Continuing operations 7.8 118.9 BO.O 1,268

Discontiruing operations” 740.9 73.5 2.590.7

Total Real Estate Investments

Total operating real Estate

Non core investments 3

Corporate

Net Corporate overheadds

Giroup amaortisation
Continuirg operations
Discontinuing operations

Giroup Traasury

Giroup rastructuring costs

Total Corporate

Total Group results before writedown
of REIl businesses*

Writadown of BEl businessas

Total Group

1 Operating profitdloss) sfier tax iz net of the armount attribuitable to outside equity interests of ASB.S milion (June 2002 A512.5 millon).

2 DiscontinLng operations inciude those businesses which have been sold or are plannad to be divested.

3 Non core investrment income principally relstes 10 the Group's investment in IBMGSA, Chelverton Group and THI ple. For the year ended June 2002, non cora
investments also included Wesipac Banking Corporation.

4 MNet contribution of discontinuing operations was A$32.1 milkon after 1ax {2002 AS23.3 mition after tax),

tend Lease Annual Consolidated Financial Report 2003 1



Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Overview continued
Segment Results Summary continued
Operating Profit After Tax

Operating profit after tax bafore the writedown of the RE! businasses increased from AS226.3 miflion for the year ended 30 June 2002 to
A$230.2 million for the year ended 30 June 2003.

The operating profit aftar tax of RES increased from AB153.3 milion in the year endad June 2002 to AB185.3 mifliary in the year ended June
2003 driven by strong growth in Bowvis Lend Lease where operating profit afier tax increased from AF112.7 millior in the year endad Juns
2002 to A$133.7 million in the year ended June 2003, an increase of A$21.0 million {(18%}. Tha Integratad Development Businessas (iDB)
operating profit after tax declined by A$9.0 milion (22%) from A$40.6 milion in the year ended Juns 2002 0 AS31.6 million in the year
ended June 2003, The decling in IDB's aperating profit after tax was principally due to expensing costs associated with bidding for PR
projects in the LK, including the writeoff of AS13.9 milion after tax relating 1o the unsuscessful Allentyy and Connaught bid and the writeoff
of the Shalt Cerdra project in London,

The operating profit after tax of REE increased 9% from AB140.8 milion in the yvear snded Juna 2002 10 A$153.1 million in the year ended
June 2003, Operating profit after tax frorm continuing oparations increassd 18% dus mainty 1o higher profit in Asia Pacific, principaity
attributable to a reduction in overhaads.

The dacline in operating profit after tax from the Group’s non core investments from A$E54.1 million in the year ended June 2002 10 AS22.2
milian in tha year ended June 2003 s largaly dus to the year ended June 2002 including the final urwirkding of the Wastpac share hedge
agraermnants, which contributed AB28.2 million to profit after tax.

The oss in Corporate decreased from A$121.8 million after tax in the year ended Juns 2002 to A$110.4 milliory in the year ended June
2003 principally due to the reduction in net Corporate overheads of AB27.5 mikion, the reduction in Group amortisation of ARS.6 miflion,
and an increasa in Group Treasury profit after tax of ASS.S miflion, offset by AB32.5 million of Group restructuring costs, the benefit of which
will be reafised in the Juns 2004 and future financia vears.

Taxation - Effective Tax Rate

The affactive tax rate on operating profit {Excluding the writedown of REl businessas) was 24.7% in the year ended June 2003 comparsd to
38.9% i the prior financial year. The fower effective tax rate includes the reversal of an over provision of prior vear tax of AS13.1 milion,
while the June 2002 financial yvear included a charge for a prior year under provision of tax of A$7.5 milllion.

Writedown of RE] Businesses

During the year Lend Lease announced provisions of up to US$HE0G.0 milion (A%988.0 million) after tax to reflect the diminution in the
carrying value of BE assets, primarily refating to the US Real Estate Invesimants (BEI US) business. The provisions followed an exiensiva
raview of tha global FE! business that has resulied in the decision to sefl or discontinue a number of businesses in the US, Europe and Asia.
Uitimately the June 2003 results included a charge of USE574.0 milion (A$945.0 milon) which was allocated as follows:

USEm ABm

Gioodwil 262
Management agreements 351
Futurs income tax benafits B3
Other assets BE
Fastrusiuring provisions and transaction costs 183
945

Other asseta include the writedown of the Project Enterprise 1T system of AS41.2 mitlion, fixed assets relating to busihesses to be sold of
AB14.5 million and investments and other assets of AS30.3 mifion. Restructuring provisions and fransaction costs included redundancy and
ernpioyes related costs of A855.1 miflion, provision for excess lease space and [T capacity of A$44.0 milion, costs associatad with the wind
dowwry of the BEuropean REI businass of AS13.7 million and transaction: costs of AE17.8 miflior.

Discontinuing Operations

O 26 May 2003 Lend Lease announced its intantion to exit certairy BEl businesses. Thase busingssaes have been classified as discortinued
ard include alf US REE husinesses, the Asia dabt business and Europearn: non-ratail BE! businessas (inciuding Global Fund but excluding
CGieneral Land Lease). For further details refer 1o the REE section of tha MD&A.

Capital Management

O 26 May 2003 i was announced that the Group's dividend policy would be amended and that a shars buyback program was to be
implemeantad. The dividend payout ratio will be increased 1o betwaan B0% and 80%, commencing with tha final 2003 dividend o be paid in
September 2003, The final 2003 dividend will not be Fanked and future dividends are expectad to be unfranked for a period of dme,
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Overview continued

Capital Management continued

frr June 2003 Lend Lease commenced execution of an on market buyback of its issued share capitad and as at 30 June 2003 2.8 million
shares {approximately 0.7% of issusd capital) had been purchased at an average cost of ASB.69 per shars. The buyback was suspenided
ar 8 August 2003 and is axpected to recommancs on 21 August 2003 panding anmouncemeant of the 2003 financial year resuits, As at 6
August 2003 2.8% of issued capital (12.7 milion shares) had been repurchased at an average cost of A$B.56 per share.

Revised Management Structure and Operating Cost Base

The Group's managemeant structure has been resrganised on a regional basis. This has enabled the removal of the central BEl and RES
corporate management structuras. Also during the year, in part as a response to weakening globa economiss, Lend Lease implementad a
rumber of measures to reduce its overhead cost base. A ong off cost of implementing these cost savings of AR47.3 milion before tax
(AS32.5 million after tax) was incurred in the year ended June 2003. The henefits from these intiatives will impact June 2004 and following
firancial years. This amount has baen disclosed separataly in the Comorate rasulis,

Shareholders' Returns

S
Jure June increase/ increase/
2003 2002 Dacrease)  (Docrease)
EBITDA'
Excluding writedown of BE! businesses ASrn 593.2 {113.5) {20.1)
Earnings per share {EPS)?
tneluding writedown of BEl businessaes cents 52.1 {215.2) {413.1)
Exciuding writedown of RE businessas cants 52.1 .4 0.8
Return on equity {ROE) for the financial year®
Excluding writedown of RE! businesses S 6.1 .4 B.6

1 EBITDA anuale sarnings before interest revenue, interest expanse, income fax expense, depracislion and amartisation.
2 EPS calculation for June 2003 is derved using 438.5 miflion shargs being the weighted average numibber of shares on issue duing the year,
3 Represents the ratio of profil after tax to sverage sharsholder eguity.

While profit after tax increased by A$3.9 milion, EBITEA {excluding the writedown of RE! businesses) decreased by AS119.5 milion. The
followirig table providas a reconciliation of the variances in EBITGA and profit after tax.

June June Increase/

2003 2002 {Dacreasa)

A Abm Afm
Net profit attributable to members of Lend Lease Corporation Limited 226.3 3.9
Profit attributable to outside equity interasts 12.5 5.8
Blepreciation/amortisation 151.4 {18.1)
Tax axponss 182.3 {74.4)
Mat interast 50.7 {24.3)
Total EBITDA® 593.2 {119.5)

1 Excluding the witedowr: of HEl businesses,

The decrease in EBITDA of AS118.5 is mainly dus to the Group restructuring costs {AS47.3 miflion) and increased Corporate overheads for
one off terms (AE20.4 milion;. In addition, the Jdung 2002 year included the final Westpac hedge profit (A$39.0 milion). This was offset by
decreased amortisation, tax expense and nat interest costs, generating a AF3.8 milion increase in profit after tax in June 2003,

A cormparison of BOE and BFS based on sarmings both before and after amortisation is detailed balow:

Juneg 2003 June 2002
Befora After Befora After
Arnortisationn Amortisation  Amortisation  Amortisation

Return on equity for the year )
excluding the writedown of RE! businesses S
Eamings per shara axcluding the writedown of BEl businessas cents

B2 8.1
75.0 521

1 RGE for the financial vear efore amortisation is caltulated Dy adding back accumdlated amortisation and the writedaown of BEI LS businesses, Equlty represents the
average balance of eouily for the vear,
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Overview continued
Shareholders' Returns continued

Exciuding tha impact of the writedown of BEE businesses, EFS increasad rmarginally to 52.5 cents for the year endad June 2003 from 521
cents for the yaar endad 2002 largely reflecting the small increasa in oparating profit after tax. The share buyback prograrm which
cornmencad in June had ro material impact on EPS in the June 2003 financial year.

Exciuding the impact of the writedown of BE! businesses, ROE for the year ended June 2003 was 6.5% compared 1o 8.1% for the
corresponding financial year. The increase in the BOE was principaily due to a small increase in overall operating profit after tax in the year
ended 30 June 2003 to A$230.2 million fexcluding the BED writedown} from A$228.3 million for the prior fnancial year and the reduction in
average shareholders equity frarn AB3.7 billion in the year ended June 2002 to AB3.5 bilkon in the year ended June 2003, principally due to
the first writadown of the RE businessas at Dacermber 2002,

Prospects

Tha net operating profit after fax for the vear ended June 2004 will ba impacted by many factors, including the timing of the sale of
thiscontinuing opearations. Any daelays in plannad divestments beyond that currently anticipated, could advarsely impact reported profit.
Management sxpects growth in profits from cortinading oparations. The company expects to eam a net operating profit atter tax i the
range of AF240 milion to A$250 milion for the year ending Juns 2004, This outlook doas not rely on contributions from the sale of any
major assets or businesses, However, the future profit of Lend Lease will depend on a range of factors including the state of the global
sconomy and property markets, competitor and regulatory pressuras, further deployrment of capital and other relevant factors that are not
possible o pradict with confidence.

tend Lease Annual Consolidated Financial Report 2003 4



Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Solutions (RES)

Tha RES husiness comprisas Bovis Lend Lease (BLL) which provides construction, project management and design sarvicas and the
integratad Developmeant Businesses (DB} which provides capiial raising, project design, developmant and asset managemant sarvices,

Bovis Lend Lease

The principal activity of this businass is that of construction and project managament. BLL operates in 37 countrias worldwids and is
managed through three regions (Asia Pacific, Burops including the Middle East and Africa, and the Americas). in addition one global
husiness unit, Globat Markats Group, operatas in the pharmaceutical sector.

Key Financial Results
Realised Gross Pro@t Oiperating Profit/{Loss) Operating Profit {Loss)

Favenusa Bargin Bafore Tax After Tax
June 2003 Juns 2002 June 2003 Juns 2002 June 2003 Juns 2002 Juns 2003 Juns 2002
A Abm A%m Alrn A%m AZm Al ASm
Asia Pacific 274
Americas 51.9
Europe 448
Giiobal Markets 7.4
Citobal Manageament 1858
Total BLL 112.7

Tha prior year comparative numbers have been restated in that Actus Lend Lease in the Americas and Private Finance Initiative (PR}
projects in Europe are reported as part of the 108 and the micro-glectronics business has been aliocated from Global Markets to tha
ragional BLE Businesses,

Hevenue

BLL enters into a variety of contract typas from 'Fees Services' contracts, where only the fae is recorded as revenus, to 'Construction
Services’ contracts, where the fulf valus of the project {including third party costs) is recorded as revenue. For this reason, recarded
reveniues do not provide an accurate measure of tha volume of work undertaken and the ratio of operating profit 1o revenue is not
considered o be a ussful measurament of profit margin.

Totat revenues for the financial year endad June 2003 declined to A38.5 bitlion from A$10.2 bilion reported in the prior financial year.
Exciuding the impact of exchangs rate moverments of AS0.7 billion, total revenue decreased by AS1.0 billon mainly reffecting a change in
thea mix of contract fypes,

Operating Profit After Tax

Bl L's aperating profit after tax was A$133.7 miflion for the financial year ended June 2003, a 18% increase on the year ended June 2002,
Lend Lease uses forward exchange contracts 1o hadge a portion of projectad revenuss and expanses from foreign operations. The
exchange gains or lusses on hadge contracts that ralate to the current finarcisa year are appliad to the resuits of the respective businesses.
The sffect is to recard profit from foraign operations at the effective hedged axchange rate. Similarly, Realised GFPM has been adiusted to
reflect the effective hedge rate. BEL has significant UK Pounds Sterling and US Dollar sarnings. The exchangs rates usad in the financial
year ended June 2003 compared to those used in the prior financial year rafiscts the ralative moverment in effective hadge rates of the
Austrafian Dollar against both these currencies. The maovement between the two hedge rates increased operating profit after tax by AS8.4
rriflion for the year ended 30 June 2003, For further discussion on hedging policias refer to the Group Traasury section of tha MDA,

Az noted on page 4 a charge of AB47.3 milion before tax has baen recognised within Corporate in respect of the one off costs refating 1o
the averhead repositioning sxercise of which AF33.7 million relates 1o BLL. The benafit from these nitiatives will impact Jure 2004 and
followirg financial years,

Asia Pacific

Operating profit after tax for the Asia Pacific business declined from A$27.4 milion in the year ended Juns 2002 1o AS23.5 million in the
year ended June 2003, despite Reafised GPM increasing by AS1.6 milion to AB110.6 milion. The year ended June 2002 included the
racognition of profit of AB4.8 milion after tax from BLL projects carried out for Lend Lease companias, these projects having been soid fo
third parties during the year, and a profit from the sale of sundry assets (AS1.8 milion after tax). The prodit from internal projects relates to
tha commercial and retail slerments of the Newington project.

Americas

Operating profit after tax for the Americas increased from A%51.9 million in the vear ended June 2002 to AESE.5 miliion in the year endad
June 2003, an increase of AR4.6 milion of which AE3.3 milion was due o axchangs rate movaments. Realised GPM of A$205.5 milion
was ASZ2.8 million tower than for the year ended June 2002, primarily due to the prior yvear including 2 number of large projects such as the
clzar up of the World Trads Centre and the ADL Time Wamer project. This decling in GPM was more than offset by overhead savings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Solutions (RES) continued
Bovis Lend Lease continued

Operating Profit After Tax continued
Europe

Operating profit after tax for the Europaan business increasad from A$44.8 milfion i the year ended June 2002 to ASB0.3 milllion in the year
ended June 2003, an increase of A$15.5 milkon of which AS5.1 million was due to excharge rate mavernants. Realised GPM increased
from AS188.1 milion in the year ended June 2002 to A$208.4 million in the year ended June 2003 principally due to large commercial
projects in London such as BBC White City and Paternoster Square.

Global Markeis

The Globai Markats Group operates in the pharmaceuticad sector. Operating profit after tax for the Globai Markets business increased from
A%7.4 million in the year ended June 2002 o AS12.7 miflion in the year endad June 2003. Realised GPM increased from A$40.9 million to

ASS7.7 million due to a number of largs projects in the Asia region. The increase in Realised GPM was partly offsat by ncreased overhaad

expenses as the Giobal Markets businass investad in naw countries.

Global Management

Giobal Maragemant costs for the financial vear reflect the expenses of the Giobal Executive Management Team and costs incurrad on
global projects such as [T systems and an intemational safsty programme “ncident and Injury Free’. Foliowing the Giroup reorganisation
along a regional basis, the RES Global Management siructure, although separately reported in the 2003 #nancial year, has aither been
siminated or merged into Lend Lease corporate or regional functions.

Profitability Ratio

As aresult of the continued focus on overheads the profitability ratio for the year ended 30 June 2003 of 38% shows a stroryg mprovernertt
comparad to 35% for the year ended 30 June 2002,

New Work Secured and Backlog GPM

Wew Work Securad is the valus of GPM procured in the Bnancial year. Backlog GPM i the expected GPM to he realised in future years
from the total contracts commitied at the and of a fnancial vear. The following table provides a summary of New Work Secured for tha
firancial year ended June 2003 and the Backlog GPM at that date.

Flua: Equals:
Operning Hius: Naw Woark Less: Closing
Backloy Forsign Secured Fealised Backlog
GFM at Exchangs {GPM) o GPM™ 1o G at
June 2002 Adiustment’  June 2003 June 2003 June 2003
Abm A Al Afm Abm
Asia Pacific 68.9 126.9 (110.6)
Arnericas 185.2 18.89 158.6 (205.5)
Europa 188.4 8.2 257.0 [(209.4)
Citobal Markets 53.5 4.8 27.8 (57.7)
BLL Backlog 504.0 319 611.3 {583.2)
Actus Lend Lease’ 620 6.1 284 (42 5)
PFls (Faciities Management)® 30.2 1.3 12.3 1.8}
Total secured Backlog GPM 586.4 38.3 652.5 {627.6)
Fraferred Bidder but not reached Financial Close 111.8 4.9 85.7
Total Preferred Bidder and reached Financial Close 708.2 44.2 748.2 t627.6)

1 The foreign exchange adjustment arises dus to the difference it hedged exchange rates used al June 2002 to those used al June 2003,
2 Reafised GPM flows through to profit before tax.
3 The GPM from Aclus Lend Lease and PFis are reported as part of the IDB,

The BLL closing Backlog GPM was AB564.0 million as at Juns 2003, an increass of 12% over the balance as at June 2002 of A$504.0
miflion. The value of New Work Secured for the financial year ended June 2003 was A$E11.3 million, an 8% increase on the Work Secured
in the year ended June 2002 of A$565.2 million. In addition, BLE and Actus Lend Lease have furthar projects in Europe and the Americas
which are designated Preferred Bidder, These projects are axpacted to contribute a further A$212.4 million to Backlog GPM on the
assurmption they reach Financial Close.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Solutions (RES) continued
Bovis Lend Lease continued
New Work Secured and Backlog GPM continued

The Backlog GPM as at Juns 2003 is expected 16 ermerge o ba realised over future reporting periods as follows:

Post
Jure 2004 Jure 2005 Jure 2005 Totad
% O S

Asia Pacific 57 21 1z
Americas 82 30 8
Europs 48 23 28
Global Markats 83 8 G
Totai BLL 58 24 18
Acius Lend Loase® 31 20 49
PR ! 7 8 85
Total Actus Lend Lease and PFls’ b4 | 15 64
Freferred Biddar but not reached Financial Close 14 20 66
Total Preferred Bidder and reached Financiai Close 43 22 35

1 The GFPM from Aclus Lend Lease and PFls is reported as pard of the (DB,

The Backlog GFM as at June 2003 is expected to amearge or be realisad ovar future reporting periods as shown abova. As at Juna 2003,
58% of BLL's Backleg is projected to be realisad as profit i the year ending June 2004, Tha proportion of BLL secured Backiog GPM 1o
ke reafised beyond a 12 morth time frame increased from 38% at 30 June 2002 to 42% at 36 June 2003 which reflacts an increase inlong
term projects such as the Single Living Accommeaedation Modemisation (SLAM) mifitary projact and PHIs in tha UK.

Of the total BEL Backlog as at 30 June 2003, 58% is expactad to ba realised in the year anded June 2004, This GFM is expected to
reprasent betwasn 55% and 85% of Realisad GFM for the year ending June 2004,

Performance Guaraniees

Lend Lease provides performance guarantess to BLL dlisnts in certain choumstances which usually relate to the guarantes that BLL will
complets its obligations undar its coniracts with those clients. These guarantess have bean provided in the ardinary course of business.
The Direstors do not balisve that there is currently any material exposure to loss in refation to these guaraniees.

BLL Definitions

Backiog Gross Profit Margin {Backliog GPM): reprasents the expected GPM to be eamed for the balance of work 1o he completed
under existing construction contracts (including onguairg facilities management]. As construction contracts are progressively compiated,
Backlog GPFM declines. As New Work is sscured, Backlog GFM is replenished. Backlog GPM is translated 1o Australian Dollars using the
current effective profit hedgs rata.

Draspite thair long term naturs, only ten yvears of Backiog GPM from: facilitiss managemeant contracts is recognised aithough a number of
thase contracts exiend beyond 25 years,

Construction Services: BLL commits o the defivery of a completed project to the client, in accordance wigh negotiated time, cost and
quality specifications. Typically, BLL aentars into a fixed price contract, but may also be antitled 1o all or a share of any canstruction cost
savings. Corwersaly, BLL has the risk of any cost overruns. Thasea contracts may involee BLL undertaking some performance risk. Given tha
increased risk profie of such projects, a higher contract margin is typically negotiated.

Fee Services: BLL provides management services on construction projects for clisnts. Under a standard form of Fee Services contract,
BLL has no contractual responsibifity for the overall construction of a project. Fees negotiated for this type of contract usually have a lower
margin {in ragpect of the tetal project value) than those received for Construction Services condracts, reflecting the lower leval of risk.

Financial Close: This is the paint at which tha parties 1o a PF project are irevocably committed 1o the proiect through the execution of
unconditional contracts. It is normally avidenced by the drawdown of funding for the project to commenes devaloprnent and construction
activities.

New Work Secured — Gross Profit Margin {New Work Secured): represents the estimated total project profit margin o be earned by
BLL #om projects which were secured during a financial period. When a written offer and acceptance ocours, the New Work Sscurad
becomes part of Backiog GPM.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Solutions (RES) continued
Bovis Lend Lease cominued

BLL Definitions continued

Preferred Bidder: This is the point in a PR project when the public sector client formally notifies one bidder that it has been sefected from
the short list of sarvice praviders, and intends o negotiats the contract with the Preferred Bidder on an exclusive basis. While this
notification is a non contractuai arrangement, it doss however confirm the client's intention o procsad 1o Financial Closa.

Private Finance Inffiative (PFI;: A PFis similar to 2 PPP, the key difference being that in a PPP a private sector antity has responsibility
for the capital and rurming costs of the facility, whersas a PH involves various responsibilities and risks ralating to the procurement andg
operation of a facility being transferrad to the private sector. The public sector pays for the facility and the associated services over a long
terrm contract period.

Profitability Ratio: raprasents the ratio of profit hefore tax to Realised GPM.

Public Private Partnership {PPP): In a PPP arrangement the Govarnment or Government authority retaing ownarship and responsibility
for the capital and rurming costs of a facility, however, it refies on a single contractor to take responsibility for the integration and
management for the entire design and construction chain.

Realised Gross Profit Margin {Realised GPM): represents total project revenue [ess direct project refated costs such as paymeris to
subcontractors and staff, site and ather costs incurred by BLE that are directly attributable to the project. 1t doas not include the allocation
of any general [or indirect) overheads,

Baring project construction it s Lerd Lease's policy not to recognise profit an projects other than to cover ovarneads until the cutcorne of
tha contracts can be refiably determined and they are at least 50% complate,
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Solutions (RES) continued
Integrated Development Businesses (IDB)

D8 pursues integrated real estate opportunities providing a rangs of services to clients including capital raising, project design and
developmant as well as the ongoing managament of the assels.

Key Financial Results
Operating Operating
{LossyProfit Bafore {Loss)Frofit
Tax ! Asgets

Jung
2002
ABm
Asig Pagcific
Dalfin Land Lease 270.0
tond Lease Developmaent 215.3
485.3
Americas
Actus Lend Laase 7.8
{Other 15.3
734
Europe
FEls 13.2
{Other . . 135.1
5227 . . 148.3
Global Management . .
Total 1,084.8 . 5 706.7
Asia Pacific
Hevenue

Fevenus for the vear ended June 2003 of AS300.7 milliar {June 2002 A$367.5 million) related to Dalfin Lend Lease sales of AS274.1 miflion
{dune 2002 A$183.6 milion} and Lend Leass Development sales of A$26.6 million (dune 2002 AR183.8 million).

The inerease in revenue attributabile to Delfin Lend Leass is primarily due to the procesds from the sals of Lend Lease’s interast in the North
Lakes project [AS42.5 million) and a full vears trading for Dalfin Land Lease which was acquired in August 2001,

Revenue from Larwd Lease Devaloprment for the year anded Juns 2003 included Newington Pracinets 1 and 3 which were aquity accountad
as Lend Lease only holds a 50% interest. Revarue from Lend Lease Davelopment for the year ended June 2002 included Nawingion
Fracinot 2 [B79% intarast) and Precinets 4 and & 100% interast) which were consalidated.

Operating Profit After Tax

Operating profit after tax for the year ended June 2003 was A$S6.3 million compared 1o ABB.8 million for the year ended June 2002, Deffin
Lend Leasa contrbuted A$43.2 milfion [une 2002 AS21.5 milion), ncluding AB11.2 million profit after tax on the safe of the North Lakas
project. Lend Lease Devsloprment, orincipally Jacksons Landing and Olymipic Village/Newington, cortributed AS13.1 million {June 2002
A%$24.3 milion). The decline in profit from Lend Lease Development is due to the timing of unit releases at Newingion and Jacksons
Landing.

Oparating profit after tax of A$24.3 milion for Lend Leass Development in the year ended June 2002 included AS7.5 miflion from the sale of
Newington industrial Park and Newington Retail Cendre. Dalfin Lend Lease contributed a profit of AS21.5 miflion in the yvear ended June
2002, which comprised profits from Lend Leases's axisting urban communities businass, and the profits from Delfin Umited since its
acduisition in August 2001.

included in Lend Lease Daveloprment is Lend Lease's Asian operations which contributed an operating profit after tax of AB3.8 million in the
vear ended June 2003 {June 2002 AS3.6 millior). The profit principally relates to the sale of previously written down assets. No
devalopment activity is currently baing undertaken in Asia. The operating profit after tax for the financial year ended June 2002 also includesd
a profit after tax of AB2.2 million from the sale of equity in the Da Chang Water Treatmert Flant,
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Solutions (RES) continued

Integrated Development Businesses (IDB) continued
Asia Pacific continued

Overview of Businesses

Delfin Lend Lease

Thea business is focusad on the creation of largs scale wrban centres through cormmunity buiiding and developmant. The emphasis is on
sustainable social, enwvirenmaental and economic solstions through planning, urban design and infrastructure provision. The developmernts
are usually carried out in parinership with a landowner ard where sver possible the payments for land are linked to the proceeds from tha
sale of land lots. This achisvas a lower risk profile as the development and resulting cash: flows can be phased according to market
conditions.

The foliowing table provides a summary of the Dalfin Land Lease projects,

Juna June

2003 2002
Number of projects 21
MNurmber of residential lots settiod during the year 4,183
Average price per lot sold AFBE,000
Sales Backiog number of lots) A2 800

Buring the year Delfin Lend Lease sold its interest in the North Lakes projact to its ioint venture partner for consideration of AB42.5 milion,
reduciryy Backlog by approxirnately 8,000 [ots. This reduction in Backlog was partly offset by agreements with Boral Limited to undertake
tha Nelson Ridge praisct in Sydnay, with approximately 1,500 [ots and a mixed use site,

Lend Lease Deveiopment {LLD)

LLEY is currently involved in thres large developmant projects, two in Sydneay and ong in Melbourng, The bwo astablished projects, Jacksans
Landing and Olympic Village/Newington, ars mainky residential devslopments but include commercial, industrial and retail pracinets. The
developrment at Victoria Harbouwr i1 Melboume is a waterfront regeneration projact and will include residential, cormmercial and retail
pracincts. A further project, St Patrick’s, s a amaller, premium residential project in Sydnay.

Afurther two projects have baan securad during the vear ended Juns 2003, the Bouss Hill prodect in Sydney and the redeavelopment of the
Fwiry Waters Besort in South East Queensland. Including these additional projects, Lend Lease Development has a sales backlog of
approximaiely 5,300 dweliings.

The kay active projects are listed balow:

irvestrmant/ irvestmant/
[rventory at lrwentory at
30 Juns 2003 30 June 2002
Froject ABm A Expected Profit Emergencea
Oiympic Vilage/Nawingion, Sydnay 12.8 8.0 Frecincts 2, 4 and 5 completed,
sold and profits recognised.
Fracinots 1 and 3 up o 2008,
Jacksons Landing, Sydney 79.5 BE.D Staged development up to 2007,
Victoria Harbour, Melbourne 17.8 115 Staged developmant aver the
next 20 years.
St Patricks, Sydney 4.4 14.3 Staged developmant over the

next 5 years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Solutions (RES) continued

Integrated Development Businesses (IDB) continued
Asia Pacific continued

Overview of Businesses continued

Lend Lease Development (LLD} continued

tend Lease Developrmant has an interest in thres ather development led projects.

investmant/ lrrvastment/
lrwentory at frvantory at
30 June 2063 30 June 2002
Froject A%m A Status
Fox Entertainrmert Precinet, Sydney 50 4.7 Continue to review options.
Brarling Park 1, Sydney 15.0 15.0 Continus to review options.
Hickson Road, Sydnay . 10.5 MNew office for Lend Lease in
Sydney. Presold to Deutsche
Office Trust,
Americas
Revenue

Revenue for the year ended June 2003 of A3280.4 milliory (June 2002 A$184.6 million) principally related to Actus Lend Lease. Fevenue
from Actus Lend Lease nciuded the Fort Hood project of A$148.6 million {June 2002 A$65.7 milion) which was under construction during
tha year and revenue from MILCON projects of A$122.6 milllion {June 2002 AS128.2 million).

Operating Profit/{Loss) After Tax

The operating profit after tax for the year ended June 2003 of A$3.6 million is largely attrbutable 10 Actus Lend Lease which had an
operating profit of AB4.2 miflior, principally from the Fort Hood and Beaufort Parris Island projects. Actus Lend Lease’s operating profit
includes a charge of A$S.3 milion relating to the cost of bidding for new military housing proiots.

The operating loss after tax for tha financial year ended Jung 2002 of AB4.5 milion included a profit of AE3.4 milion fom Actus Land Leass
uffsat by a loss of ART.9 miflior, principally refatad to overheads and the cost of pursuing project opporiunitias, ncluding the San Francisco
Fars profsct.

Overview of Businesses
Actus Lend Lease

The primary focus of Actus Lend Lease is the privatised Military Housing program for all branches of the US military. Tha current status of
Actus Lend Lease projects is set out balow,

Privatisation Projecis

Estimated

Estimatec Capitai Spand’ Contract
Base Nurnbar of Units {ASm) Status Cortract Langth End Data
Fort Hood, Texas 5,800 470 Operational 50 years 2051
Beaufort Parris Islard, South Carolina 1,700 250 Operational 50 years 20563
Fort Camphbell, Kentucky 4,800 830 Fraferred Bicder 50 years 2054
Arrny RCE Hawaii 7700 2,770 Preferrad Bidder B0 years 2055
Total 20,100 4120

1 Owver the inital fve vears of the contract.

The Backlog GPM in respect of Actus Lend Lease's privatisation projects at June 2005 was AS54.7 millon: and reprasents the GPM
expected to be eamed fom Fort Hood ard Beaufort Paris |siand over the next ten years. Fort Camphell is expected to reach financial closa
during the 2004 financial year, which will further increase Backlaog GPR. The Army RCE project in Hawai, which was awarded Prefarred
Bidder status on 7 August 2003, is expected to reach financial close during the 2005 financial year, which will further increase Backlog
GPM,
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Solutions (RES) continued

Integrated Deveiopment Businesses (IDB) continued
Americas continued

Overview of Businesses continued

Actus Lend Lease sontinued

Military Construction Projects {MILCON}

The S Government also procurss construction services from Actus Lend Lease under the MILCON method. These projects arebid an a
design and construction fixed price basis anly. The projscts do not involve any developrnarnt praject financing or facifities managemant of
tha site. The MILCON projects currently being carried out are set out balow,

Capital Spend

Base ABm) Status

Fort Camphell 28 Under construction
Ford islard 63 Under construction
Travis 49 Urdar construction
Fort Huachuea 17 Under constructon
Lemoors B Urdar construction
Hickarn/Bellerws 37 Uinder construction
Total 2585

Piers Development Project, San Francisco

Tha main development project i1 North Amarica is The Fiers on the waterfront in San Francisco. Lend Lease currently holds a 52% interast
in tha San Francisco Cruise Terminal joint venture. This venture has an axclusive right to negotiate with the Fort of San Francisco to davelop
Piars 30 - 32, The project will e a mixed use development with the condominim portion expected to commancee during the June 2004
financial year. Capitalised costs of A311.7 million are includead in inventory as at 30 June 2003,

Europe
Hevenue

Revenue for the vear ended June 2003 of A$113.6 miflion principally refated to facilitiss management on PR cortracts of AS30.5 million and
procesds from the sale of the Tres Aguas shopping centre [AS43.7 million).

Revenue of ABS22.7 milion in the vear ended June 2002 principally related to the sale of Touchwood, Solihull to the Lend Leasa Retail
Partnarship (A%481.8 million) and additionad reverus recognised from the sals of Overgate, Dundsae of AB13.1 milion dus to addifional
space baing st

Operating Profit After Tax

The operating loss after tax for the year endad June 2003 was A318.8 million. The profit on the sale of the investment in tha company that
awned the Tres Aguas shopping centre of AS12.7 milion and further profit recognisad fram the sale of Touchwood, Solihull of AS5.5 million
was o¥fsat by the cost of pursuing new prajects, principally PR, of AE28.0 milion {nciuding A$13.8 milion refating to the unsuccessiul bid
for the Allenby & Connaught miltary projectt and the provision against costs incurred on the Shell Centre in London of A$10.5 milion after
tax.

The operating profit after tax for the year ended Junga 2002 of A$2.7 milion included the profit on the sale of Touchwood, Solihul of A%24.1
milion and a profit from the sale of Lend Leasa's equity in the Calderdale PR Hospital of A$15.4 milion, offset by overheads and the cost of
purasing rew, principally PH-related projects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Solutions (RES) continued

Integrated Development Businesses (IDB) continued
Europe continued

Overview of Businesses

trban Hegeneration

The European business is currently pursuing a number of urban regeneration schemes in the UK, The key project secured to date is
Girasrwich FParinsuia.

invesimant  invesiment

nventonry inventary
at at
30 Juns 30 June Expacted
2003 2002 Profit
Froject ASm A Emerganca
Greerwich Perinsuia, - BESinjoint venture with Quintain Estates and English 13.8 8.4 2008 - 2018

London Partnerships, to regenarate approximately 100 acras of land
at Greenwich Paninsula, East London, including the
Millernizm Dome.

- Planning consent attaired subject 1o nagotiation of
infrastructurs for the site with foeal council,

- The project is in accardancs with Lend Lease’s strategy of
averaging third party capital. Under the terms of the
agreement IDB is ablz 1o manage the drawdown of land to
coincide with dernand.

- Tha davelopment agraerment was signed in May 2002 and
the first profit is expectad 1o be recognisad in the 2008
financial yvear.

Hetail and Other Projects

Lend Leasa's ongoing development activitias are structured to reduce risk by increasingly operating on a fee for work basis with incentive
faes lirdked 1o increases in assst value. The key developments ars as foliows:

invesimant frivastmant

inveniony frvartory
at 30 June at 30 June Expected
2003 2002 Froft
Froject Afm ABm Emargences
Tres Aguas / Carlos Il - Sale complated on 13 June 2003. - 245 Sold
Padrid — Gross proceeds of A$43.7 million,
- Profit after tax of AS12.7 million.
Chapelfisld, MNorwich - Conditionally forward sold, with purchaser contributing 1831 76.0 2005/06
AB100.0 milion during the year.
- The second paymant is expected 1o be made fallowing
practical campletion, subjact to the cenire baing 70% lat by
vaie and arsa.
- The cantre is currently 37% pre (st by value and 52% et by
ares,
Shiel Cantre, Londoen - Al December 2002, the planning appiication was refused by - 122 Subject to
et courneil, appesl
- lnvestment of A$12.2 million before tax has been fully
provided for
- AN appeal has baen lodgad and a dacision is not expected
uritit June 2004,
Bluawater Valley, - Land adiacent 10 Bluewsater shopping centre and 13.0 13.2 Subject to
Kent davelopmant options ars being evaluated. devalopmant

par
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Solutions (RES) continued

Integrated Development Businesses (IDB) continued

Europe continued

Overview of Businesses continued

Private Finance Initiative and Public Private Parinerships {PFl and PPP }

Lend Lease is established as a major infrastructure supplier in the UK healthears sector, BLL provides the construction sendcas while the
facifities management, eguity management, cost of bidding and management of PH projects s managed within iIDB.

Lend Lease currertly has eight UK and one italian health PH projects at Prefarred Bidder status or beyond, Lend Lease also has fouwr
sdlucation FH projects and two Government accommodation PRs. Laryd Lease is committed to further selactive investment in PR and PP
projects and is currently actively bidding for further proiects in the haalth and military sectors.

The status of IDB's PR and PRE projects as at 30 June 2003 are set out below:

Construction Fi Revenue
Revenue Backlog
A%m Asm’ Current Status Ericl Date

PF! Projects
Health
Calderdaie Hospital {UK) o4.5° 47.3 Oparational May 2031
Warcaster Hospital (UK 215,07 4.8 Operational Dec 2031
Hexfam Hospital (LK) 71.8° 17.3 Oparational Apr 2033
Brescia Hospital {taly) 40.3 Under construction Jun 2021
Roshampton Hospital (UK) 1344 4.7 Freferrad Bidder Jun 2033
Mancheaster (UK) 43G.2 825 Freferrad Bidder Dec 2037
Hawvarirg (LA 4961 475 Freferred Bidder Sep 2038
Leads (UK} 478.5 118.4 Freferrad Bidder Mar 2037
Bumilay (LK) 63.8 8.5 Freferrad Bidder Jun 2033
Education
MNeweastle Schools {UKS H16.5 40,6 Under construction Mar 2029
Lincoln Schools (LK) 45.5 155 Under sonstruction Sep 2032
Lilian Baylis School () 335 11.6 Under construction Aug 2029
Cork Maritima (iraland) 78.2 13.2 Under construction Aug 2025
Gther _
Traasury 1 1K 29667 5G.2 Operational Aug 2037
Treasury 2 (UK} 368.7 75.5 Under construction Aug 2037

3,584.0 615.6
PPP Projects
Miltary
SLAM (UK ** 2,308.5 Under construction

5,887.5 615.6

Fil Bacidog Revence ondy for firad 10 yaars. All BRI coatracts ron for 30-35 vears,

Conztruction phase of these projecis has been complatad.

The Single Living Accommodation Modernisation (SLAM) preiect has no predetermined end date.

4 SLAM invobves Duiding, refurbishing and maintaining the living accommodation af military bases across the United Kingdom. The project is baing delvered by Dabut
Services Limiled (s ioind venture betwaen Bove Lend Lease and Baboock SGI

03 M —

A key issues inthe PH market in the UK is the high cost associated with bidding for new projects due to the regquirement for detailed design
1o be submitted as part of the bidding procass. Nao costs associated with the bidding process were capfialised on Lend Lease's balance
sheet as at 30 June 2003, unfess Lend Lease or its consortium had been declared Praferred Bidder and was therefore in sole negotiation
on the project. A total of AB78.1 milion of capitalised costs were carriad on the balance shest as at June 2003 in refation to projects where
Lend Lease was the Preferred Bidder. The most significant projects, in terms of capitalised costs, are Havering Hospiial [AS33.0 milion} and
Manchester Hospital {AS22.7 miflion, which are both expected to reach financial close by Decembar 2003,

As the PREmodal maturas in the LIC, it is anticipated, that the cost of bidding for new projects will be reduced, for exarnple through the
introduction of batched bidding.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments (RE])

Strategic Raview

On 29 May 2003, Lend Lease announcad the nalisation of the REl strategic review. Land Lease intends to simplify its strategy to one real
estate services business, based on Bovis Land Lease's presance arournd the world with selective specialisation in real estate developrmert
services and funds management in sach of the major regions.

Accordingly, Lend Leass is axiting, over time, the North American real astate westmenis markets {both equity and debst) and real astate
tebt senvicas, Asian debt markets including managament of the Intermational Distrassed Debt Fund (IDBF) and other non parforming loan
senvicing activitiss, certain cormponents of the BEuropean real estate invastments business and the Global Fund managemsnt advisory
business.

Lend Leass ramains committed to cartain spacialised regional real estate sendcas and managemeant businesseas. In Australia and the Pacific
it will continue to oparate the asset and funds managament businessas of GFT, APFE, Property Ssourities, various other invastmant funds
ard retail property managameart services but excluding the managsment of the Lend Lease US Office Trust. In Asia, it will manage APIC &
ARG 1| and the retail property managemert businesses. In BEurops, the business will essentially comprise the retall centre funds
managemant and property managament business {including the Lend Lease Retadl Partnership, Lend Lease Overgate Partnership and the
retail cendres of Bluswater, Solinull and Cvergats) and Generali Lend Lease (GLL).

As aresutt of the strategio revisw, Lend Lease announced writedowns totaling US$800.0 million {approximataly A$988.0 million) after tax to
raflact a diminution in carrying value and tha cost of axiting those businesses. The actual fimal writedown reflacted in the Juna 2003
Consclidated Financial Statemenits is USEE74.0 million (AS945.0 mifion) after tax.

The foliowing table details those businesses freated as discontinuing operations in the Group's Consolidated Financial Statements.

Entity/Business Hegion FPurchasar/Intention Eifective Sale/Disposal date
US Equity Advisory us Moargan Stanley Signed; congents outstandirg
HC us MuniMae 1 Juty 2003

Caphdark Us GMAC 14 July 2005

Asset Manageament - Morth America us GMAC 14 July 2003

Asset Managerment - Mexico Us GMAC 7o he detarmined

Drebt Achvisory us GMAC Signed; consents cutstanding
Frograrm Lending us GMAC 29 July 2003

Lend Laase Hyparion SV Us GMAC 12 August 2005

HFF us Management 17 Juneg 2003

Cordia Senior Living Us Managameant 30 June 2003

Winn Residential us Wind dewn Not applicable

Lend Lease Rosen Us intendad disposal To be detarmined

Ruosen Consulting Us intendad disposal 7o he detarmined

VEF series co-mingled fund platform us interded disposal To be detarmined

Lend Leass Mortgage Capital us Wachovia Corporation Signed; consants outstanding
Structured Finance us intendad disposal Toy be detarrmined

Lend Lease Agri-Business UG interwied disposal To be determined

Lend Lease US Office Trust Australia Margan Stanley Signed; approval of LLUSOT Board required
Asia Debt Asia intended disposal To be detarmined

Gifobal Furd Advisory Gilobal Managsment To be determined

Europe Nar-Retail Equity Europe Wind cewn Not applicabie

tond Lease Houlihar Bovers Europa intericdied disposal To be detarmined

Aithaugh no sales have been agresd or spacific arrangements announced in respect of Lend Leasa Bosen, Rosan Consulting, the VEF
series co-mingled furwds, Lend Lease Agri-Businass, the Globai Advisory business platforrm and the US REE co-investrments, Lend Lease
irterds to axit these businesses and co-invastrnerts and, accordingly, they have baan classifisd as discortinuing operations for the
purposes of the Group's Consolidated Financial Statemeants.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued
Key Financial Results
The kay fnancial results of the continuing and discontiruing oparations are shown in ths following table.

Operating Profit/Loss)  Operating Frofit/{iLoss)

Operating Revarus Before Tax Aftar Tax Assals
Jung Jung June Jung Jure June June June
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Al A Afm A A Ak A ABm

Continuing Operations

Austrafia and Pacific 106.8 39.5 300 1654
Asia 21.2 (2.9 [4.43 173.9
Europe 1258 B 41.4 6011
North Amsrica’ Do o 20 2 13.0

Total continuing operations 278.8 1189

Discontinuing Operations

Austrafia and Pacific 2.3 1.0 1.4
Asia 329 (2.0 84.2
Europe 8.8 104 108.7
Morth America 6959 84.9 2,356.4

Gilckal management

740.9 2,580.7

Total Discontinuing operations

Total Giobhal RE] 1,019.7 3,858.8

1 Refors 1o iestmend income from King of Prussia,

Total REl operating profit alier tax, exciuding the writedown, increased 9% o AB153.1 million Tor the year ended June 2003 compared to
A$140.8 million for June 2002,

Operating profit after tax from continding operations increased AB13.1 million {18%) 10 ASS3.1 miflion for the year ended June 2003
compared to A$80.0 millior: for June 2002, The increase in profit was mainly dus to improvements in Asia which were principally attributed
1o a et reduction i sxpenses as June 2002 included ASD.E million of expansas relating to the proposead JREIT joint vantures with Takyu.

Oiparating profit after tax from discortinuing operations decreasad AS0.8 million {1%5) to ARSO.C million for the year endad June 2003
compared to A$80.8 million far June 2002,

Global Assets Under Management {AUM)

Discontinuing
Continuing Operations Oparations Total
June
Aust & Europe - 2003 June June June
Facific Asia Retail Total 2003 2003 2002
AZb USEh h Afh

AUM at beginning of financial period * 10.7 0.6 1.7 92.1
Additions 2.0 0.4 04 11.5
FReductions (1.5} (0.4 8.7
Met revaluations 0.4 0.1 {0.8)
Exchange gains/loss) * 7.0)
AUM at end of financial period 11.6 0.6 1.9 86.1
Feadod movernant in AUM % 8.4 0.0 11.8 5.5
AUM at end of finangial period
{exciuding foreign currency impacts) ASh 11.6 1.2 4.9 93.1
Exchange gain/foss) ' (0.2) {0.13 {7.0)
AUM at end of financial period A%h ii.6 1.0 4.8 86.1
Fariod movernent i AUM
{exciuding currancy changes) 2% i

1 Exchange gains/f0ss) arees from exchangs rate moverants in franslating ALM i local currency betwasn dune 2002 and Jure 2003,

2 Assets Under Management (ALUN) - Equity: reprasents the gross market value of real estate assets managedd in an advisory capacity on Hehalf of investars,
Azgers Lnder Managernent (AL - Commercisd Credil represents the cutstanding principal balance of commercial mongage loans and morngage backed seclrifies
wihiere morlgace Ioans am actively managed in an advisory capacity on ket of investors,
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments (REl continued
Global Assets Under Management (AUM) continued

Gicbal AUM decreasad by Ab4.1 bifion [4.8%) 1o ASB2.0 billion for tha year ended Juns 2003 compared to ABB6.1 bilfion at June 2002,
Exchuding tha impact of currency changas, Global AUM increased 5.8% for the year ended June 2003 comparad to June 2002,

AUM for continding operations increased AB1.2 billion (7.4%) to AB17.4 billion for the year ended June 2003 comparad to AB18.2 billion for
June 2002, Excluding the impact of currency changas, AUM for continuing operations increasad 9.2% for the year ended June 2003
vornparad to June 2002,

Discontinuirng Gparations

Rorth Aust & Glabal
Arnerica Pacific Asia Ewope Fund Totat
USEb AZb Ussb £h USEh Adb
AUM at beginaing of financial period? 38.4 14 0.2 .5
Additions 5.3 0.2 1.2
Reduction {4.5) (0.1}
Mt revaluations 04
Exchange gains/loss) *
AUM at end of financial period 38.3 1.3 - 0.1 1.7
AUM at end of financial period ASb 68.0 1.3 - 0.2 3.0
Exchange gain/foss) ! {8.5) {G.4)
AUM at end of financial pericd AShb 60.5 1.3 - 0.2 26

1 Exchange gains/foss) arses from exchange rate movermanis in franslating ALR in local corrency betwasn dune 2002 and June 2003,

2 Assets Under Management (2N - Equity: reprasents the gross market value of real estate assets managedd in an advisory capacity on behalf of investors,
Asents Lnder Managernent (ALIN; - Cornmercist Credil: represents the outstanding principal balanse of commercial mortgage loans ang morlgage backed saclrities
where morigace loans ar sciively managed in 2n advisary capacity on bahal of investors,

AUM for discontinuing opsrations decreased ASS.3 bilion (7.6%) o ASB4.6 bilion at Jung 2003 compared to A$69.9 hillion at Jure 2002,
Exciuding the impact of currancy changeas, AUM for discontinuing oparations increased 5.2% for the vear ended June 2003 comparad to
June 2002,

Giobal Assets Under Resolution (AUR)

There are no assets undar resolution in respect of continuing businesses.

Global Loans Under Servicing {LUS)

There are ro loans urder sarvicing in respect of continuing businessas.

Funds investment Performance

Tha investment performancs of continaing funds is reviewed in sach of the regional busirness sections.
Global Management Costs

Gilcbal managament cosis reflect the expenses of the Global Executive Management Tearn and other axternal costs for the six monih
period to 31 December 2002, With the move 1o the regiona organisational structure announced in February 2003, all costs associated with
the former giobal FEF management structure for the six months ended June 2003 have beany included in the results of the North American
discontinued operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued

North America

Tha REE North Armerica business consists broadly of real astate equity investment, real estate debt servicas and certain related real astate
activities.

Real Estate Equity

The real astate equity investment managament businasses engage in the raising of investor capital, the acquisition/disposition of real estate
assets and tha investment/asset management of real estate assets for cliants. Lend Lease has announced the saks or intended disposal of
its Faai Estate Equity business.

Although no sale has baen agreead or specific arrangarmants announced, Lend Lease continues 1o explore opiions 1o exit its investmant in
tha VEF sarias (VEF}, Lend Lease Rosen (LLE) and the Rosen Consulting Group (RCG) businessas. Accordingly, all Beal Estate Equity
businesses have been categorised as discontinuing operations in the Analysis of Rasults table on the following pags.

Reat Estate Debt

The real astate debt businesses raise nvestor capital, originate real astate loans, invest in read estals debt refated products, rmanags real
eatate lnans arnd servics real astate (cans for clients. Land Lease has announced the sale or imntended disposal of its Beal Estate Dabt and
senvicing businassas.

Although no sale has been agreed or specific arrangarmants announced, Lend Lease continuas 16 explore opiions 1o exit its investmant in
Lend Lease Agri-Business (LLAG). Accordingly, alt Heal Estate Dabt businesses have been categarisad as discontinuing operations in the
Aralysis of Results table on the following page.

Co-lnvestments

Lend Lease is to exit its LS ca-investments ovar time. Acsordingly, incame samed on co-invesimeants for the year endad June 2003 is
categorised as discontinuing operations and constitute Investrmant incoma in the Analysis of Resuits table following. King of Prussiais
included o cortiruing operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments (REl continued

North America continued

Analysis of Resuits

The resulis of REFs operations analysed between continuing and discontinuing operations are sat out balow:

Annuity Fees

Asset management fees
Froperty managament fees
Mortgage senvicing revenus

Totai annuity foes

Transaction Fees
Acquisition/disposition feas
Crigination fees

Inoentive foas

Other faes and inoorme

Total transaction fees

Tota! operational revenue
Business expensas
RE t haad

lrvvastrment income
Equity accounted profis
Gain on sale of nvestmeants

Profit before tax
Frofit/{loss) on FX hedge

Profit before tax {after FX hedge)
lneome tax expense

Profit after tax before minorities
Minority interasis

Net profit after tax

Net profit after tax ASm

Cordinging
Operations
Juns Juna

2003 2002
US3m

USEm

Discontinuirg
Operations Total
June Jurne
2003 2002 Jung 2003 Jung 2002
US3m LSSm USTm Abm USSm Abm
97.8 a7.8 188.1
2.6 2.6 5.0
TGA 7G.A 134.8
170.5 170.5 327.9
52.2 100.4
88.5 170.2
9.6 16.6
22.0 42,2
172.3 331.3
342.8 659.2
{283.5) (545.2)
33.7
19.2 37.0
4.9 9.4
2.4 4.8
68.3 131.3
(24.2)
68.3 1071
{13.6) (21.4)
54.7 85.7
{2.5) 0.8
54.2 84.9

1 Income tax expense in ABm is nat of the tax Denefit on the profit/foss) on the foreign exchange hadge.

het operating income increasad US32.9 milion 1o USH44.7 million for the year ended June 2003 comparad o USEAL.8 milian for June
2002, The increase was primarily dus 1o lower expenses {BS312.6 mifliory) offset by reductions in total annuity fees (US$2.4 milkon) and totad

transactions foes (USE?.3 million;.

Totat profit before tax decreased USHS.S mifion to USHE7 .4 milion for the yvear endad Juna 2003 compared to US368.3 milion for Juns
2002, Tha increase in nat operating income noted above was offset by lowsar sguity accounted profits [(US$3.5 million) and lower gains on
sales of investments (USH1.3 milion) for the year ended June 2003 comparad to June 2002, On 1 August 2002, Lend Eease increasad iis
ownarship stake in Land Lease Rosen fram 50% 1o 74.9% and then subssquently 16 77.5% on 15 Qetobar 2002. Equity accounted profits
from Lend Lease Rosan ware therglore fransferrad to operating profit from 1 August 2002, as they were mcluded on a consolidatad basis

rathar than an equity accounted basis.

Totad profit after tax decreased USES.4 million to USE47.8 million for the year ended June 2003 compared to USES4.2 million for Juna
2002, This reduction was primarily due to an increase in the effective tax rate due to tax benefits on armortisation of certain intangibles no

lorger being taken to account.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments (REl continued
North Arnerica continued
Review of Discontinuing Operations

Biscontinuing oparations include alf the former lrvestrment Managemant - Equity businesses {including VEF, LLR and BCG), HCI, all the Commarcial Credit businesses, HFF and invesimant income sarmad on oo
investmants (exciuding King of Frussia).

Analysis of Resuit
The analysis of the results of BEl's discontiruing operations for the year endad 30 June 2003 are set out below:

Yaar Ended June 2003 Year Ended June 2002
Irrvest hgt fravast Mot Commercial

- Ecyuity HCI Commercial Total Totat - Equity HCH Cradit HFF Todal Total

Lsém Uskn Credit USEm  HFF US3m UsSdm Lsém UsEm UStm Uss AD
Annuity Feesg
Asset management/advisory fses 7B.2 4.3 101 . . 11.%
Froperty management fees 2.0
Mortgage servicing revenue 9.9 5.6
Total annuity fees 78.2 14.3 70.0 5.6
Transaction Fees
Acguisition/disposition fees 14.8 26.1 1.8 17.8
Origination feas 17.4 61.8
incantive faas 5.4 1.2 1.5
Other fees and incomea 8.8 47 3.6
Total transaction fees 294 32.0 24.3 79.6
Total operational revenue 107.3 46.3 94.3 852
Buasinsss axpanses (G8.1) {24.1) (75.6) (78.3

REl corporate overheacs

frvastmant nooms
Equity accountaed profits
Ciagin on sale of investments

Praofit before tax
Frofit/lloss) on FX hadge

Profit before tax {after FX hedge}
fneome tax expense’

Profit after tax before minorities
Minority interests

Net profit after tax

1 Income tax expense in ASm is nat of tha tax benefit on the profil?goss) foreign exchange hedge.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued
North America continued

Review of Discontinuing Operations continued
Analysis of Results continued

Profit before tax from discontinuing operations decreased US$0.8 million to USES3.3 mifion for the year ended June 2003 compared to
USE54.1 million for Juna 2062, The result for the yvear ended June 2003 included dedlinas in net operating income for rvestment
Management - Equity (US$4.5 million) and Commercial Cradit (US$HE.5 milliony, offset by increases in net operating incoma for HCI {US$0.4
rmillion} and HFF (US$10.3 million) and reduced BEE Comporate overhead axpensa (US$3.2 million). Analysis of net operating income for each
of tha discontinued operations is shown bealow,

Frofit after tax from discontinuing operations decreased US$6.3 milion to US$E39.6 miflion for the year ended June 2003 compared o
US%45.9 millior for Juna 2002, The decrease was primariy due 1o [ower tax henafits recognised from the tax treatment for amortisation of
certain intangible assets. This increased the effective tax rate to 23% for the yvear ended June 2003 compared to 149 for Juns 2002,

Assets Under Management (AUM}

AU at Met AU at
June 2002 Addditions Reductions Revaluations June 2003
USEh USEb Us$b Us$h USEh
rvastment Managameant - Equity HiN| 1.1 (2.9) .1 RO ¥ 5 B
Reat Estate Securities 1.0 1.0 (.1 R e I
HCH 8.6 1.2 (G.2) Les
Commercial Credit 12.7 2.0 {1.3) 13.4
Total discontinuing operations AUM 38.4 5.3 {4.5) .1 30.3
Feriad rmovernent in AUM 9% 2.3

AUM for discontinuing operations increased USED.9 billion {29%) to US$39.3 bilion for the year ended June 2063 compared to US$38.4
biflion at Juna 2002. Movaments in AUM for the year ended June 2003 included net increases in AUM of USSC.9 biflion for Real Estate
Securities, US$1.0 biflion for HCH and US$0.7 bilion for Commereial Cradit, offset by a reduction of US$H1.7 billion for investment
Management - Equity.

Analysis of Net Operating iIncome by Business Unit
Investment Management - Equity

Net operating incoms decreased USE4.5 miflion to USE1 1.2 milion for the year endad June 2003 compared to US$15.7 milion for June
2002, Tha decrease was largsly attributable to decreased acquisition and disposition fees [USE1 1.0 milion), lower incentive feses samed
(USE2.2 milion} and lower financing and other incoms (US$2 4 milton) offsat by lower operating expensas {US$11.2 milion).

Net Operating Income - VEF series, Lend Lease Rosen and Rosean Consuiting

Lend Lease continues to explore options to axit its investment in the VEF series {VEF}, Land Lease Rosen (LLF) and the Rosen Consulting
Giroup (RCG) businssses, althaugh no contracted disposal or specific arrangaments have been announced to date. Included in the analysis
above are the operating results of the VEF series, LER and RCG.

Key movamearts in the net operating income of thase businasses are analysed on the following page.

tend Lease Annuat Consolidated Financial Report 2003 21



Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued

North America continued

Review of Discontinuing Operations continued

Analysis of Net Operating iIncome by Business Unit continued

Net Operating Income - VEF Series, Lend Lease Rosen and Rosen Consulting continued

Analysis of Rosuit

Year ended June 2003 Year ended Juns 2002
WEF Rosen VEF L Rasan
Series LL Rosenr  Consulting Tetal Serias Bosen®  Consuiting
USEm USEm UsSEm USE US3m USéEm US3m

Annuity Fees
Asset management/advisory feas 8.4 8.7 7.5
Total annuity fees 8.4 8.7 - 7.5

Transaction Fees

Acquisition/disposition fees 0.4

fncentive facs 0.1

Other fees and income 0.1 4.3
Total fransaction fees 3.5 o4 4.3
Total operational revenue 8.9 9.8 4.3

Expanses

Ecuity accountad profits/{loss}
Profit before tax and minorities

1 Lend Lease Mosen was aquity accounted in the year ended 30 June 2002,
Asset Management/Advisory Fees

Asset managemert / advisory fees increased US$10.6 millior to US$18.1 milfion for the year ended June 2003 comparad to US$7.5 milion
for June 2002, Tha increase was dus o the inclusion of asset manageament fees from Lend Lease Rosen on a consolidated basis, as a
rasult of Lend Eease acauiring an additional 24.9% of Lend Laase Rosen on 1 August 2002 and another 2.6% of Lend Lease Rasen on 15
Octobar 2002 (US38.7 milion), together with an increase in asset management fees earmed from the VEF saries (US$0.9 miflion).

The lavel of AUM is a drivar of asset managernent/advisory fees,

Assets Under Management {AUM}

AUM at Net AUM at
Jung 2002 Addditions Facustions FRevaluations June 2003
USEh USH: USEh LISED ISED
VEF Sarias commingied funds 23 0.1 (0.8) 1) LS
Feal Estate Securitias 1.0 1.0 (0.1) 1.9
Total AUM 3.3 14 {0.9} {0.1) 3.4
Fraricd movernent in AL 2% 30

AUM increased US$0.1 billion (3%) 1o USE3.4 billion for the year ended June 2003 compared to USH3.3 billion at Juns 2002, The increase
irn AU from Real Estate Securitias AUM relates o the acquisition of an additionad 27.5% of Lend Lease Rosan (USE0.8 bilion) and arganic
growth during the year (US$0.4 bilfion). Although AUM for the VEF series decreased 35% for the year ended June 2003, assst management
faes earnad from the VEF seriss increased 12%. The increase in asset management fees is dus to the release of a prior year asset
managemeant fee provision (US$1.0 million) relating to VEF IV In addition, asset managemeant faes for the VEF series are genarated on
capital commitied rather than the level of AUM. Accordingly, whils AUM for the VEF sarias daclined {largely dus 1o VEF V) the level of capital
cornmitted remained relatively constant,

Acquisition/Disposition Fees

Acauisition fess decreased USER.S milfion to USH0.4 milion for the year endad June 2003 on USE0.1 billon of acquisition volume
compared to accuisition feas eamad of USEC.T million on US$0.2 billion of acuisition volume for the yvear ended June 2002, No disposition
fass are earned by the VEF series of funds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued

North America continued

Review of Discontinuing Operations continued

Analysis of Net Operating iIncome by Business Unit continued

Net Operating Income - VEF series, Lend Lease Rosen and Rosen Consuiting continued
incentive Fees

Ne rmaterizl incentive fees wers aarmed from these oparations during tha year. The timing and guanturm of incentive faes is difficult to predict
as thay arg dapendent upon raal estate market investment performance and are generally paid towards the end of a fund’s life oycle. The
basis on which incentive fass are earmad for VEF seriss funds is detailed below.

The lavel of actual centive feas is depandent on hvestrnent performancs, the slate of real estate markets, amount of capital invested,
tiriing of licuidation of funds and a number of cther factors, Based on current asset vakiations, only VEF i is expected to generate a
matarial incantive fae, No ncentive foe is axpectad from VEF V.

indicative
Fund Equity Expected Gross AUM Expscted Faatisation of
irvested at Maxirmurm at Maxirmurm Possible Incentive
Curreroy Juneg 2003 Fund Equity  Jung 2003 Gross AU Faos
Enhanced
Valug Enhancement Furnd | USEm 161.3 161.3 331.7 331.7 2008
Valug Enhancement Fund Il USEm 317.4 317.4 474.7 474.7 2005
Valug Enhancernent Fund IV USEm 288.0 258.0 4727 4727
Valus Enhancernert Fund V USEm 1509 363.5 263.1 S00.0 2008
Frivate Equity Funds Bagis of Caleulation
Walue Entiancerneart Fund 8 and Hll 5% of that portion of 'Cumuiztive Distributions {5} that exceed an annualised 4%
returm above the "Avg Annoal CPE (AACP] up o but not including an annualised &%
raturn above the AACE:
Flus 7.5% of that partion of any CD that excaeds an annualised 8% ratum above the
AACH up to but not including ary annuaiised 8% retum above the AACHI;
Flus 15% of that portion of any CD that equals or exceeds an annualised 8% return
above the AACE!.
Value Entancerrent Fund W ard V Once a return of capital plus 10% pa simple is achisved, the Fund will make

distributions to investors and the ranager on a 50-50 basis until the manager
recaives an amount egual o 20% of the total return. Distributions are then made on
an BO-20 basis o investors,

Gther fees and Income

Other fees and incoms includs financing, consulting and other miscellanesous anciflary fess samad. Other feas and incorme decreased
USE1 .3 million to US34.4 milion for the year ended June 2003 compared 1o USES.7 milion for Juna 2002 primarily due to a reduction in
firancing activity for the VEF seriss for the year ended June 2003 compared to June 2002,

Expenses

Tota expenses increased USES.5 miflior to USE16.9 milion for the year ended June 2003 compared to USE11 .4 milion for June 2002 but
included an increase in expenses relating o LL Rosen on a consolidated basis as a result of Lend Lease acquiring an additional 27.5% of
LL Rosen during the year,

Housing and Commusity Investing (HCI)

HGH was sold effective 1 July 2003, Net operating income increased USEC.4 million to USE22.2 million for the year ended June 2003
compared to US$21.8 million for June 2002, The increase is largely attributable {0 increased operating revenus mainly generated from
higher acquisition and asset management fess oifset by lower disposition fees sarnad during the financial period and higher operating
BROESES,
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued

North America continued

Review of Discontinuing Operations continued

Analysis of Net Operating Income by Business Unit continued
Commerciai Credit

Net operating income decreased USES.5 miflior to USET8.7 million for the year ended June 2003 compared to USE25.2 milion for June
2002, Tha decrease is primarily attributable to lower servicing float interest revenues earnad [US$3.8 milion), [ower asset managerment
(USEL.C milion), Tower transaction origination fees (USE3.3 million), offset by a decraase in expenses (USE2.7 milion).

Lend Lease continues to axplore options to exit Lend Lease Agri-Businass (LLAG), although no contracied disposal or spacific
arrangerments have baen announced 10 date. Further analysis relating o this business i provided balow.

Net Operating Income ~ Lend Lease Agri-Business {(LLAG)

Net operating income for LLAG which is included in the resuits of Commercial Credit increased USE1.E milion to USE?.7 million for the year
erded June 2003 compared to USHE.2 milion for June 2002, Key movements in the net oparating ncome of this husinass are analysed
balow.

Analysis of Hesults ~ Lend Lease Agri-Business
Year Ended  Year Ended
June 2003 June 2002

Us$m UShm

Annuity Fees

Assat managament/advisery faes 0.8
Mortgage senvicing ravenua 2.0
Total annuity fees i2.8
Transaction Fees

Acquisition/disposition fess 1.8
Crigination feas 3.8
Total transaction fees 56
Total operationat revenue 184
Expensas {10.7)
Net operating income .7

Asset Management/Advisory Fees

Asset management faes are principally sarmed by LLAG from managing non performing loan porticlios, spaciad senvicing loans and
managing foreclosed real astate on behaf of clients. Asset management fees dacreased US$H0.8 milion to USE0.8 miflion for the year
ended June 2003 compared 1o US$H1 .6 million for June 2002, The dacraase was primarily dus o the disposition of foreclosed read astate
assets at the baginning of tha June 2003 fnancial year.

Mortgage Servicing Revenue

bortgage senvicing revenue of USE 2.0 milion for the year ended June 2003 was in line with mortgage servicing ravenues sarnad for June
2002,

Assets Under Management {AUM}

AUM is one driver of asset managament faes and mortgage senvicing revenues and is indicative of the lavel of activity in the husiness.
However, due to the muitipls types of sarvicing revenuas recognised, movemenis in mortgage senvicing revenuss are not dirsctly corrslated
to movemants in AUM. Changes in origination valume, servicing assst amortisation and anciliary activities, for example modifications,
prapayments and collateral releases may impact the senvicing revenueas recognised in any given year, The movermerit in AUM is shown in
tha following table.

AUM at Net CAUMat

June 2002 Additions Reductions  Revalustions  Jung 2003,
USED USED USEH USHE _ Ush

£L Agri-Business 2.6 0.4 (0.4) 26
Fradod rmovernert irn AUM %% 0.0

AUM of USE2.6 billion for the year ended June 2003 was in fine with AUM for June 2002,
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued

North America continued

Review of Discontinuing Operations continued

Analysis of Net Operating income by Business Unit continued
Commerciai Cradit continued

Acguisition/Disposition Fees

Dispasition fees increased USE1.5 mifion to USELE million for the year ended June 2003 compared to USE0.3 miflion for June 2002 and
wiere samad by LLAG in respect of the sale of foreclosed real estate.

Crigination Fees

COrigination fees of US$E3.8 milion were earned on origination: volurne of US$0.4 hiflion for the yvear ended June 2003 comparad 1o
origination fees of US33.3 milion on origination volurme of USED.S billion for June 2062,

Expenses

Totat expenses decreased USHE.3 milion 1o USF10.7 milkon for the year ended Jurne 2003 compared 1o USE11.0 miflior: far June 2002 and
was primarily dua to reductions resutting from the business re-positioning initiatives and cost raduction programs undertaken in the June
2002 financial vear.

Holliday Fenoglic Fowler {(HFF)

Met aperating incomie for HFE refers to the period 1 July 2002 10 17 Juns 2003, the date of effective sale. Net operating incoma increased
USH10.3 million to USEE.3 million for the vear ended June 2003 compared o a net operating loss of USE3.4 million for June 2002, The
increase is argely attributabis to increased acouisition fees from investrmant sales feaes, offset by lower origination fees for the perlod o 17
June 2003 compared 1o the full vear endad June 2002,

Investment Income
The table balow summarises investment income sarmead for the year ended June 2003

Year ended June 2003 Year anded Juna 2002
Total Total

_US$m _ Abm USEm Ak

Investment Management - Equity L
YCH R L

1.7 3.3
VEF series Les L (3.0} {5.8)
Other {i.15 . 2.3 4.4
3.9} 6.7) 1.0 1.9

Commercial Credit T e
Asset management porticlios SR e as T 3.5 6.8
Dlebt managament funds and porticlios LA 1700 0.4 0.8
High vield debt funds 0.9 1.5 04 0.2
10.0 17.G 4.¢ 7.8
Total investment income 6.1 10.3 5.0 8.7

Tatal nvestrment income increasad US$1 .1 milion to USSE.1 million for the year endad Juna 2003 cormpared to US$5.0 milion for June
2002, Tha moverment is largaly atiributabis to an increass ininvestment incoms from the VEF series net of share of partnership profits) and
irmpraved Fwestmant income eamead on Commercial Cradit assat management portfolios and funds, offset by a reduction in invastment
incams fram YOPIH (nat of share of partnership iosses) due 1o recent under parformance and writedowns of hotel assets held by the fund.

Equity Accounted Profits

Equity accountad profits for the vear ended June 2003 reprasent income aeamed on Lend Esase’s 50% intarest in Lend Lsass Hyperion
(USE1.9 milian} and income samed on Lend Laase's 50% interest in Lend Laase Rosen for the ong month period to 1 August 2002 (loss
USE0.5 milkon),
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued

North America continued

Review of Discontinuing Operations continued

Analysis of Net Operating income by Business Unit continued
Equity Accounted Profits contineed

On 1 August 2002, Lend Lease noreassd its ownership stake in Lend Lease Rosen from 50% to 74.9% {and subseguently increased to
77.5%;) and entered intG a thres-yaar agreement 1o purchase the remainder of the comparny from its partnar, Rosen Financial Services |1l
Equity accourted profits from Lend Lease Rosen in the year ended Jure 2003 are included on a consolidatad basis rather than on an
equity accounted basis.

Gain on Sale of Investments

Giain ary sale of investments of USHT .1 million reprasents the net gain earmed from reafisation of Lend Lease’s co-imvestiment in certain
Senior Living proparties.

Review of Continuing Operations
Continuing operations comprise invastment sarmings refating to Lend Lease’s investmant in King of Prussia.

investment income

Year ended Juna 2003 Year endad Juns 2002
USEm ABm USEm Ak
King of Prussia 1441 24.6 14.2 27.3

Totat mvestrnent income refating to King of Prussia marginally decraased USS0.1 milion to USE14.1 mifion for the year ended June 2003
camparad to USE14.2 million for June 2002,
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued

Australia and Pacific

Lend Lease will retain its real astate services and managerment businesses in Australia and Pacific. Lend Lease wili continue to report the
assat and funds managerment businasses of GPFT, APPE, Real Estate Securitias, various other wvestrment funds and the retall property
managemant servicas business included in the Analysis of Rasulis as continuing operations.

Lend Lease agresd {6 sall certain parts of the US Equity Advisory business to Morgan Stanley. Parsusant to the agreerment, Morgan Stanlay
will alsn assume the mansgement of the Lend Eease US Office Trust (LLUSOT) in Austradia and Facific, LLUSOT has therefore been
included i discontinuing operations.

Analysis of Resuits
Continuing Operations Discontinuirg Operations Cornbinsd
Jure 2003 June 2002 June 2003 June 2002 Juns 2003 June 2002
Australia &  Australia®  Austrafia & Australia &  Australia & Australia &

Pacifie Pacifie Pagific Fracific Pacific Pacific
Abm Abm Adm Abm ASm Al
Annaity Fees
Asset management faes D438 T 480 2.3 D474 4B3
invesimant managerment fses PURY- X+ RO 8.7 LA 8.7
Retall property management fees 16.9 16.3 8.8 16.3

Total annuity fees

69.0 2.3 683 713

Transaction Fees T
6.2 = 6.2

{ easing fees

Davelopmert management fees 1.1 LARE 111
Cther 3.9 0.5 3.9
Total transaction fees 21.2 - 22.1 21.2
Total aperational revenues g0.2 23 L e80d4 925

Expansas 1.8

irnvestment incorne

Ecuity aceounted profits SRR It - SO 3.4 LA T 3.1

Gair on sale of investments 4.6 4.6
Profit before tax LA3E 30.5 1.0 L 454 LT 405
Incomsa tax expense 12.6} {9.5) 0.4 131 {9.9)
Profit after tax 36.9 30.0 0.6 32.3 30.

Totat profit before tax noreased AS4.9 million {12%) to AB45.4 milion for the year ended June 2003 compared to A$40.5 million for Juna
2002 which included a A$12.9 milion reduction i expanses for the year ended June 2003 dus to overhead savings and the reversal of
prior year acoruais for which no liabilty remains. In addition, the June 2002 financial yaar included a AS4.8 miflion gain on the sale of
irvestmants.

Profit after tax increased A$1.7 millior: {59} to A$32.3 million for the year ended June 2003 compared 1o AF30.6 million for June 2002, The
effective toax rate increased from 24% to 20% as the prior year charge included the raversal of an over provision for tax of AB1.0 miflion, thus
reducing ncome iax expanss in tha Juna 2002 year,

Review of Continuing Operations

Frofit before tax from continued aperations increased A34.0 milion {10%} to AB43.5 milion for the year endad June 2003 compared to
A%$39.5 million for June 2002 and was largely attributable 1o the reduction in axpanses noted above.

Profit after tax from continuing operations increased A$0.S mifion [39) to A330.9 million for the year ended Juna 2003 comparad to AS30.0
riflion for June 2002 and was affectad by the increass in income tax expenss noted above,

Net Operating lncome

Net operating income increased A$9.9 million {35%) to A$38.3 million for the year endad June 2003 compared to A$28.4 million for June
2002, Kay movemsants in net oparating income are analysad balow.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued
Australia and Pacific continued

Review of Continuing Operations continued
Net Operating Income continued

Annuity Fees

Asset Management Fees

Asset management fees decreased AS2.5 million (5%} to AB43.5 milion for the year ended June 2003 compared to AS48.0 miflior: for June
2002. The decrease in asset management fees is mainiy attribuiabls {0 a restructure of the management fee recsived from GPT (ses balow
for further details of revised GFT management feeg), offset by an increase in ses dus to growth in AUM for GFT and APPE. In addition thare
was a change i the treatrmant of revenues and expenses in refation to the Suncorp-Matway Ratail Property Fund. This revision resulted in an
increase it asset management fees of AS2.2 miflion offset by a corresponding increase in expenses for the year ended June 2003 of A2.2
milion.

Tha basis upon which tha GFT management fae is calculated was changed with effact rom 1 January 2003, The new fee structure
includes a base managarment fag of 0.40% pear annum of gross assets (previously 0.55%) and the introduction of performance fee
campanent caloulated s monthly as 5% of the total retum periormance abova the SERYASK Froperty 200 Accumulation Index. The total
fae wifl be capped at 0.85% par annum. The fes restruciure raflacts a trend in the listed property trust ndustry towards the inclusion of a

performances bonus companant to fees. Lend Lease did not sarm a performance fee from GPT for the year ended June 2005.
investment Management fFees

trvastment raragement fees relate to the Real Estate Securities business. Although Real Estate Sscurities AUM grew by 32% in the year
ended June 2003 investrnent management fees decreased A$1.2 million due to the implementation of a new fee structurs in the atter part
of the June 2002 financial vear. In addition, the reported June 2003 fees wera reduced by a retrospective adjustimaent o previous years
fees earnad of AF1.5 million.

Hetait Property Management Fees

Retail Froparty Management fees are generally hased on a percentage of gross rental income genearated from the management of shopping
centras on behalf of GFT, AFPE and axtermal oint owners. Ratal Property Managerment feas marginally increased for the year ended Juna
2003 compared to June 2002 largsly dus to increased rental income from the centres including the addition of three shopping centres
followirg the acquisition: by APFE Retail of Suncorp-Metway Retall Property Fund i Novarmber 2001 and the performance of the
Haomemaker portfolio of assets for the full vear ended June 2003, offset by a reduction in fees rasulting from the sake of two shopping
centres during the year. Lend Lease managed 18 shopping centras as at June 20035,

Assets Under Management {AUM}

AUM at Net AL at
Jure 2002 Additions Reductions  Revaluations  June 2003

Afb AShb ASh Adb Alb
Gieneral Property Trust {including Darling Park Trust: 8.6 05 {0.2) RRDIE - £ PR
Austratian Prime Praperty Fund 1.6 0.1 0.1 0.1 RS B S
Feal Estate Securities 2.2 1.4 (1.0} (2.3 N3-S
Other accounts 0.3 {0.2) 0.1
Total continuing operations AUM 10.7 2.0 {1.5) .4 1.6
Fredod movernert i AL h g4

AUM from continuing operations increased AS0.9 bifion (896} to A$11.6 billion for the year endad June 2003 compared to AB1C.7 hilian for
June 2002, Tha increase was largely due to hvestments in Beal Estate Securities, capital axpenditurs by GFT and APPE on major retail
projects offset by a raduction in AUM from the sale of Barkstown SBguare by GPT and Bedbank Plaza by APPF.

Transaction Fees
Leasing fees

Leasing fess noreased A2 4 milion 1o ARS.E million for the year ended June 2003 compared to ARE.2 millior: for June 2002, The increase
in leasing fees mainly ralates to activities arising from the adgdition of threg centras acquired as part of the acquisition by APPE Retaif of
Suncorp-Metway Betail Property Fund, and increased ratail davelopmeant activities in cantres managed on behalf of GPT and ARPPE.

tend Lease Annuat Consolidated Financial Report 2003 38



Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued
Australia and Pacific continued

Review of Continuing Operations continued
Net Operating Income continued
Transaction Fees continued

Development Management Fees

Devalopment management fses increased A$1.5 milion 1o AS12.6 miflior: in the year endad June 2003 cornpared to A$11.1 millien for June
2002, Tha increase was a result of increased retail developrmant activities in retail centres managed on behalf of GFT and APPE. Major
projects that continued redevaloprment during the financiad period included Erina Fair (%210 million), Flareat (A$42 millior) and Sunshine
Fiaza (ASS0 milion). In addition, GFT has commenced a AR226 milion redevelopment of Melbourne Centrai,

incentive Fees
Na incentiva fees were sarmed during the year ended June 2003,
Cther Fees and Income

Other transaction fees decreased A$3.0 milion to ABC.9 million for tha year endad Juns 2003 compared to AB3.9 million for Juns 2002,
The decraass fargely relates to ons off recovariss for marketing initiatives pursuad in certain retail centres during the year anded June 2002,
bt rot repeated for the vear ended June 2003,

Expenses

Totat expenses from continuing operations decreased A$13.6 miflion (22%) 1o A848.2 milion for the year ended Juns 2003 cornpared to
ABE1.8 million for Jure 2002, The decreass is largely attribliable to savings achisved as a result of the Group wide business repositioning
project and the reversal of expenses acorued in prior pericds for which ne ahility remains. In addition, the 2002 financial year ncluded a
nurnizer of one off costs such as increased provision for insurarces after the HIH liquidation and rastructuring costs associated with the
Giroup-wide businass re-positioning project.

Other Income
fnvestment Income

trvastment income for tha year ended June 2003 was largely in ine with June 2002 and relates to income earned on Lend Lease's co-
irvesiments in APPF {AS3.4 million) and Real Estate Partners | {AS0.2 million}.

Equity Accounted Profits/(Losses)

Equity accounted profits of A$1.6 million includes Land Lease's share of income from interests in Kiwi Property Group (Kiwi) and Darling
Fark Trust Operators. Equity accounted profits from Kiwi decreased by AS1.4 miflion to AB0.4 milion for the year endad June 2003
camparad 1o June 2002 following the saje of Lend Laase’s 50% interest in Kiwi ary 28 March 2002, The income for the vear ended 2063
for Kiwi relates to the reversal of a provision for wind up costs provided at June 2002, Equity accounted profit for Darding Park Trust
Operators was largely in line with the pravious year at A$1.2 million,

Gain on Sale of Investments

Giain on sals of investmants for the year ended June 2002 relates to the sale of Lend Lease’s 50% interest in Kiwi,
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued
Australia and Pacific continued

Review of Continuing Operations continued
Funds investment Performance

Dlataited halow are the latest available returns for cartain REL funds compared to appropriate benchmarks, whare applicable,

Before Fees Leveraged Returns % AUM
frvastmant Region 1 yadr 3 years 5 years Al
Private Equity Flagship Funds at 30 June 2003
Austrafian Prirme Property Fund - Retai Austradia 141 1.7 1.9 1.2
Austrafian Prime Property Fundg - Commercial Austraiia 78 8.3 B.9 0.3
Austrafian Prime Property Fund - Industrial Austrafia 12.2 116 1.4 0.2
Industry Benchmark at 30 June 2003
Marears Diversified Property Fund Index Austrafia 111 10.5 HXC
Real Estate Securitias Australia 138 4.8 12.3 2.8
Industry Benchmark at 30 June 2003
SEP/ASX 200 Property Accumulation Index Australia 12 13.6 11.4
Public Equity Flagship Funds at 30 June 2003
Gieneral Property Trust Austratia 1.8 0.4 9.8 8.9
Industry Benchmark at 30 June 2003
S&P/ASK 200 LPT Property Accurmulation Index Austratia 124 13.6 1.4

1 Reprasants amounizs included in Assete Lnder Management at June 2003 of AS11.6 hilion,

Review of Discontinuing Operations - LLUSOT

Profit hefore tax from discontinued operations increased A30.9 million to A$1.9 milior: for the year ended June 2003 compared to A$1.0
miflian for June 2002 and was largely attributable to increased asset management feas from higher average asseais under ranagement
during the vear,

Profit after tax from discontinuing operations increased AB0.B milion to A$1.4 milion for the year ended June 2003 compared to ABC.6
miffion for Jung 2002.

Assets Under Management {AUM}

AUM at Met AL at
June 2002 Additions Reductions  Revaluations  June 2003
Al AZh Adh Al Afb
Land Lease US Office Trust 14 0.2 1.3
Fradad movernent in AUM % 18.2
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued
Asia

irr May 2003, Lend Lease announced its intantion to no longer pursue a distressed dabt business in Asia, but rather focus its efforts on the
managemant of AFIC, which Lend Laase is transforming into a retail asset fund. AFIC ramains an integral part of Lend Lease's real estata
irvestmant business in Asia Pacific.

Lend Lease will continue 1o manage the Lend Lease International Distressed Dabt Fund (D5F) but will axplore aptions for ultimately axiting
this businass in the near future. In addition, it is unlkealy that Eend Leass will launch further global properties funds and is in discussion with
managemeant in ralation 1o an axit rom the Giobal Fund management advisory business,

Continuing operations include the management of the Asia Pacific Investrmant Company (AFIC), Asia Pacific Investment Company No 2
AFIC ) and property managemeant services provided to APIC I for its retall assets - referred 1o as Retal Asset & Funds Management
balow.

Discontinuing operations includs the Asian asset management business, which is invalved in the acquisition, managamaent, servicing and
resciution of sub performing and rnon pearforming loan and real estate portfolios {including the maragement of IDDFL

Analysis of Resuit
Continuing Opsrations Escortinging Operations Combined
Jure 2003 June 2002 Juns 2003 June 2002 June 2003 June 2002
Retal Asset  Retadl Asset Commarcial  Comrmergial

& Funds & Funds Cradit/Other  Cradit/Cther
Mgt Mgt Equity Equity Totad Total
Abm Abm Afm ABm Afm A

Annuity Feesg

Asset managermerit/Advisory fees 11.3 22.5 33.8
Retail proparty managemeant faas 1.5 1.5
Total annuity fees 12.8 353

Transaction Fees

Acquisition fees 1.5
incentive fees 8.2
Leasing fess

Devaloprment management feas

Financing/Consulting/Other 16.8

Total transaction fees

Total operational revenues
Expenses

frvastmant incoms

Profit/{loss) before tax
Frofit on FX hedge

Profit/(loss) before tax {after FX hedge}
fncome tax expense |

Profit/(loss) after tax before minorities
Minority interests

Profit/floss) after tax

1 Income tax expense in ASm is nat of the tax henefit on the profit/foss) on the {oreign exchange hedge.
Profit Resulis

The total nat loss before tax increased AS2.9 milion to AS7.8 million for the year ended Jure 2003 compared to a net loss hefore tax of
A%4.8 million for June 2002, The increase in net ioas before tax for the year ended June 2003 was largely atirbutable to a reduction in
investmaent income of ABTE.7 million, primarily from the Asia Dabt business, partially offset by an increase in nat oparating income of A$14.0
rilfion.

The total loss after tax increased AB1.8 milion to ARB.4 million for the year ended June 2003 compared 1o a net loss after tax of ASG.5
mifiion for June 2002.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued
Asia continued

Review of Continuing Operations

Profit Before Tax

Frofit bafore tax from continuing operations increased A$10.2 milton o AS7.3 million for the year ended June 2003 compared 1o a [oss
before tax of AS2.9 miflior June 2002 and was argely attributabia to a significant reduction in nat expenses (A319.0 million) offset by a
reduction in financing, consulting and other revenua (A36.8 million). Expenses in June 2002 included costs associated with the proposed
joint venturs with Toky.

Profit after tax from continuing operations increased ARS.2 miion to A$4.8 million for the year ended June 2003 compared to a joss after
tax of A%4.4 milion for June 2002 and was impacted by the utlisation of certain tax benafits in the currant Enancial year that wera not
available in the prior financial year.

Net Operating lncome

Met operating income increased A%$11.8 million to ABT.3 miflion for the year ended June 2003 compared to a net operating loss of AS4.5
rrillion for June 2002, Kay movamants in nat oparating income are analysed below.

Annuity Fees

Annuity fees relate to advisory faes for the managemaent of ARIC and property management fees derived fram a major retail asset owned by
ARIC I, Advisory fees decreased AS2.8 million {25%;) to ABB.E mifion for the vear ended June 2003 compared to A$11.3 milion for June
2002, Tha decline was mainly atiributable to a dacrease in advisory faes refating to the managermant of APIC and AFIC H, effective from
Octobar 2002,

Retail property management fees of AS1.2 million for the year ended June 2003 wera largely in fne with June 2002,
Assets Under Management {AUM}

AL at Nat AUM at
June 2002 Additions Reductions  Revaluations  June 2003
USEh US3 USEh USSh
Continuing Operations:
APIC 0.6 {0.4)
ARG 0.4
Total continuing operations AUM 0.6 0.4 {4} -
Farad movernert irnn AUM ki

AUM from continuing oparations remains unchangsd net of a transfer of retall assats rom APIC to ARG 1.
APIC/APIC H

APIC 1| was incorporated on 30 August 2002 and will primarily focus on the retail sector and accordingly the retail assets of ARIC have been
transfarred to APIC | during the period. The axisting office, residential and indusirial assets in APIC will be divested over tima.

Transaction Fees

Developrmant management fees of AR1.0 mifion were derived from the management of devalopment activities on assats owned by APIC
and the Global Fund.

teasing feas of AR1.7 miflion represent income genarated from leasing of retail and office space at Parkway Parade, Singapors.

Finance/Consulting/Cther fees of A$S.8 milion in June 2002 primarily refate 1o the provision of retadl consulting services. The Retail
Consultancy business unit was transferrsd 1o the Real Estate Solutions business in Asia in the Juns 2002 year and accordingly, no ravenue
has been recardad for the year ended June 2003,

Expenses

Totat expenses from continuing operations decreasad A$19.0 miflion to A$E.1 million for the year endead June 2003 compared to A$24 .1
rrillion for June 2002, Expenses for June 2002 included costs associated with the Retail Consultancy business unit transferred to Bead
Estate Solutions of approximately AS7.6 milion, expenditure of A$3.5 milion incurred to astablish & joint varture with Tolkyu before
negotiations ware suspended in August 2002 and axpanses associated with the proposad SREIT joint venturs in Singapora [A$2.0 million)
that was also suspanded.

Tokyu Business Alliance

On 20 August 2002, Tokyu Corpoeration, Tokyu Land Corporation: and Lend Lease announcead the termination of formai negotiations to
estabiish a joint venture real estate invesimant managermenrt business in Japan.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued

Asia continued

Review of Continuing Operations continued

investment income

frvastment incoms relates to distributions received from APIC. No distributions were recaived for the year ended June 2003,
Review of Discontinuing Operations

The loss bafore tax from discontinuing operations noreased AS13.1 million to AS15.1 mifion for the year ended June 2003 compared to a
net losa before tax of AR2.0 miflior: far June 2002

The foss befors ta of AR15.1 million for the year ended June 2003 constituted the following components:
Asia Global Fund Advisory

- Aloss bafore tax of A$3.3 million in relation to the Asian Global Fund advisory platform; including asset management/advisory feas of
A%1.5 million and develapment management fzes of AB0.S milion, offset by operating expenses of A$5.3 miflion.

Assets Under Management (AUM) - Asia Global Fund Advisory

AU at Net AUM at
Jung 2002 Addelitions Facdustions Ravakations June 2003
USHD USEh USED SED US$§:;_
tond Leaase Globat Fund 0.4 0.2 0.6
Frericd movernant in AUM % 5G.0

Asia Debt

- Aloss bafore tax of A$11.8 miflion in relation to the Asia Debt business; including asset management/advisory faes of AS15.1 miflion,
ncentive fees earnad from servicing IDDF portfolios in Korea and third party portfolios in Japan of AB7.8 milion, offset by expenses of
AB2B.0 milion and investmant income losses of ASB.4 miflion.

fnvestrment Balance

irvestmant Irvestment
Balance at Currency Balance at
June 2002 Additions Reductions Translations Jure P03
USEm USEm: USEm USEm USEm
IO0F and its investrnent partners 1253 200.5 {136.8) 2.5
Third partias (non IDDF markiates) 181.0 {B0.6) 1.0
Total invesiment balances 306.3 208.5 (217.2) 3.5

o
=

Farad rmovernert

trvastmant balance represents the carrying value of bvastments and is based on the lower of amortised cost or estimated fair value.
Armounts invested decreased USE4.2 million {19%) to USE302.1 milliar: for the year ended June 2003, iDDF resolved many of its
irvestmerds at a faster rate than was anticipated, and in conjunction with the ongoing reduction in non-DEF mandates, investmeant
balances have marginally reduced during the year,

frvestrent balance at June 2003 also incarporates a writedown of USE21.9 million in the carrying value of IDDF's investments in Japan
during the year ended 30 Juns 2003, The rasults for the yvear include Lend Lease’s proportional share of the USE21.9 milfion provision
taken against IDDF's Japanese investmenis, the impact of which is included undar lavestrart [ncome o the following page.

Assets Under Resolution (AUR)

AUR at Currency AUR at
June 2002 Additions Reductions Translations June 2003
USkb USEb Ustb Ustb Ustb
IDOF and its investment partners 1.8 1.1 0.8
Thired parties nor [DOF mandates) 5.4 (2.8}
Total AUR 7.3 1.1 (3.7}

o
=

Farind movemeant in AUR
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued
Asia continued

Review of Discontinuing Operations continued
Asia Debt continued

Assets Under Resolution (AUR) continued

Assets under resolution represents the legal loan balances of assets managed and sendced on behaif of investors and serves only as a
broad indication of tha volume of activity in tha business. Actual amounts invested can vary depanding on the type and quality of the
underlying loans. Feas are sarmed on dollars wested ot loan balances and thus movamants in AUR values do not directly corrslate with
tha movaments in underling revanue streams,

AUR decreased USE2.6 billion {36%) to USE4A.7 bilion for the year ended June 2003 comparad 1o US$7.3 bilion at June 2002, Tha
decrease in AUR has been driven by the resolution of a large third party mandate which had a material legal [oan balance but small
investmant value.

Investment Income
June 2003 Juna 2003 June 2002 June 2002

Total Total Total Total

USEm Abm USEm A
fnternationat Distressad Dabt Funcd 3.7 7.
Other 0.3 0.6
Total 4.0 7.7

frvastment incoms primarily relates to IDOF and declined A$14.1 milion to ASE.4) milian for the year ended June 2003 compared 1o AS7.7
rmillion for June 2002, The decline is largely attributabla to a provision of USE10.6 milion taken against the carrying value of Lend Lease’s
irvestmant in ID0F ralated to adverse markat impacts on certain Japanese portfolios within IDDF,
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued

Europe

Lend Lease will continue 1¢ operate #s ratail asset and property managemeant businesses, haold investrmants in retail property furds and
assats and in certain joint veriure arrangemenis, ncluding:

- the managamert of Bluewater, Overgate and Solibull on behalf of investars {including Lend Leasa's 30% dirsct ownership in
Bhewatar);

- the managamenrt of the Lend Lease Retait Partnership and the Lend Lease Ovargate Parinarship {LLOF);

- the property managemient of UK ratall shoppirg centres and the Larry Smith retall centre management business in Spain; and

- investrerts in General Lend Lease (GLE).

Non retait activities and the Global Fund advisory business platiorm are referred to in the Analysis of Results as discontinued operationa.

Analysis of Resuits

Discontinuing
Continuirng Cperations Operations Cornbined
Juns June June June June June Juns June
2003 2002 2003 2003 2002 2003 2003 2002
Europe -~ Europe - Europe - Europe - Europe - Europe - Europs Europe
Retail Fetail Feetail Gther Other Othar Total Total

£m £m _ASm £m Adm_ ASm A

Annuity Fees
Advisory/asset managermernt

faes 2.6 2.4 1.4
Furicds ranagement fees 1.0 0.8
Froperty management fees 2.4 24
Larry Srith revenue 1.4 1.6
Total annuity fees 7.9 7.3 1.4
Transaction fees 3.2 1.4 24

Total operational revenues . . 130 - . RO 8T
Expanses y

frvestment oome _.
Equity accounted profit 0.2 1.5 BT %= L -

Giain on sale of investments 5.7 _ _ _ _

Prafit before tax 22.3 23.0 : LB LT8R
Giain/fioss) on FX hedge

Profit before tax {after FX - AT

hedge) 22.3 23.0 LA T

fncome tax expense {6.4) {7.3}

Profit after tax 1549 15.7

1 Income tax expense in ABm is nat of the tax Denefit on the profit/foss) on the foreign exchange hadge.

Total profit bafore tax increased AS14.7 million {30%) to ABS4.4 miliion for the year ended June 2003 compared o AS48.7 million for June
2002, The increase was in part due to an improvamant in net operating income (A329.5 milion) and investment income [AS4.3 mrillion) for
tha year ended June 2003, in addition, the year ended June 2002 included a gain on sale of fvestmeants (AB15.8 million) and equity
accourted profits largely refating to an investrment in Lend Lease Porto Retail {AS3.8 million).

The total profit after tax increasad A$16.0 million (509%) to AB47.9 milion for the yvear endad June 2003 compared to A$31.8 million for June
2002,

Review of Continuing Operations

Frofit before tax from continued aperations decreased £0.7 million to £22.3 million for the vear ended Juna 2003 compared 1o £23.0 million
for June 2002, Reduced net operating lossses and improved investment incams were offset by the gain on sale of investiment noted above.

Frofit after tax from contiruing eperations increased £0.2 milion to £15.9 miflion for the year ended June 2003 compared to £15.7 milien
for Supe 2002,
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued
Europe continued

Review of Continuing Operations continued
Net Operating Income/{Loss}

Tha net operating loss improved £4.2 milion o a nat oparating loss of 20.9 miflion for the year ended June 2003 compared to a nat
operating loss of £5.1 million for Jure 2002, Key movements in net operating incoma are analysed balow,

Annuity Fees

Advisory/asset management fees increased £0.2 million to £2.6 milian in the year ended June 2003 compared to £2.4 miflion for Jung
2002, Tha increase is largaly attributad to the inclusion of asset management fass from the Lend Lease Overgate Partnership and the
Salihull centre for the il financial vear wheraas the prior year included only asset managament fees for the nine month period from
September 2001 (201 milion).

Froperty Management fees ara generated from the management of retall cantres {Bluewater, Oveargate and Salbhudl} and increased £0.5
million to £2.8 milkon for the year anded June 2003 comypared 1o £2.4 miflion for to June 2002, The increass is mainly dus o increased
cost racovarias from the retall centras under managemeant.

Larry Srnith revenue decreased L0.2 milion to £1.4 million for the year ended June 2003 comparad to £1.6 million for June 2002, The
decrease is largely attributable to the loss of the property managsment and lsasing contract for the Arrdbida centre pursuant to the sale of
Lend Lease's B0% sharg in the centre and the termination of unprofitable asset managerment contracts,

Assets Under Management {AUM}

AUM at Nat AUM af
June 2002 Addcditions Raductions Ravalsations June 2003

£h Eb £h b b

Investment Management - Equity
Continuing Operations

Bilugwatar 1.3 0.1

Touchwood 0.2 R s N
Overgate 0.1 LA e
Joint vertures/separate accounts 0.1 (3.1 0.2

Total continuing operations AUM 1.7 041 - 0.1 1.9
Frariod movernent in ALIM e 1.8

1 Ancludes Lend Leasa's 4.95% indirect inferest in the Touchwaood, Solingk retal centre via the Lend Lease Fetsd Partnership.
2 Includes Lend Leasa's 30.7% indirect interest in the Overgate, Dundes retail centre via the Lend Lease Overgata Partnership,
3 Incluges Lend Lease’s proportionat share of AUM from General Lend Leaze and Lend Lease Houlban Fovars,

AUM from continuing operations increasad £0.2 hilion (11.8%; to £1.9 billion for the year endead June 2003 comparsd to £1.7 billion at
June 2002 due 1o additional investments managed by Generali Lend Lease and a revaiuation of the Bluswater Shopping Genire. The
centre was re-vaiued to 1.4 biflior: as at June 2003.

Transaction Fees

Tota transaction fees of £3.2 million for the year ended June 2003 represent incentive feas derived fraom the sale of Lend Lease Retait
Fartriarship performance fes shares which ware awarded 1o Lend Lease basad on the performance of the Partnarship over the thres vear
periods ended Decamber 2001 and Decermnbier 2002 (totalling £2.4 million), fes income for managing the sale of shares in the Lend Lease
Retail Partnarship (£0.2 miflion) and Larry Smith leasing ravenus {£0.6 milion}.

Fund Incentive Fees

Dratailed halow is the basis on which incentive fees are sarmed for the key funds. The leval of actual incentive faes is dependant on
invesiment periormance, the state of real astate markets, amount of capital invested, timing of liquidation of funds and a number of other
factors.
Fund Equity Expected Gross AUM Expscted indicative
irvesied at Maxirmurm at Maxirmurm Raalisation of

Currercy N 2003 Fund Eguit J 2003 Gross AU Incentive Faes
Core
Lend Lease Retall Parinership £m 785 Annualy from 2002
Land Lease Overgate Partoership £rm 151 Arnually from 2004
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued
Europe continued

Review of Continuing Operations continued
Net Operating Income/{Loss) continued

Fund Incentive Fees continued

Frivate Equity Funds Bagis of Caleulation

Farformance fees are based upon a thres year rolling average out performance of the
i dlirect proparty benchmark {80) for retall centras. The performanice of the fund's
propertiss rmust be 110% of the (PD benchmark befare any performance fee is
payabla. For aach 1.0% of out performance a fee of 0.15% of assats undar
management is payable (capped at 0.50% for any one year). Fees are payabla
annually. At lsast haif of the parformance feg can be taken as cash, with the
remainder taken as an additional irterest in the Partnership which cary then be sold

Lond Lease Fetall Partnership

Farformance fees are based on a thrae year rolling average out performance of the
LK direct proparty markest benchmark (°0) for retail centres. Parformance must
axcaad the IPD benchmark before any performance fag is payable. For sach 1% of
out performance afee of 0.18% of assats under management is payable (capped at
0.50% for any one year). The frst ioe is payable in Decamber 2003, then anmually and
irs cash,

Land Lease Overgate Partoership

Expenses

Expeanses decreased £1.5 million to E12.0 milion for the vear ended June 2003 compared to £13.5 miilion for June 2002, The cost
reductions are largaly due to the Group wide repositioning project undertaken in the pricr financial year,

Other Income

Investment Income

Year ended June 2003 Year anded Juna 2002
Total Total

A% £m Alrn
Blugwater, Kent 17.4 483
Overgate, Dundee 2.6 5.6
Lend Lease Retall Fartnership A 3.1
Lend Lease Overgate Partnership R 2.2 8.1
frvastrment expense A (1.4} {5.4)
Other ) 0.4 0.3
Total investment income 23.0 20.9 58.0

Bluswater investment income of £18.8 milion relates to the Net Operating Incorna (NO) of Bluswater derived from Lend Lease's 30% direct
irterest (30% at Juna 2002} The increased NOI is dus to the improved performance of the retail centre.

Mo NOEwas directly sarned frorm Overgate for the year ended June 2003, The Overgate invastment incame of £2.0 million for the year
erded June 2002 refates to the NOF derived from Lend Leasa's 100% interast in the Centre and related to the pariod 1 July 20071 1o 28
Septernter 2001, At that date the forward sals pre conditions relating to lease targets had been mat and the investors in the Lend Lease
Overgate Partnership mads thair final paymeant and receivad 1009% of the NOI thereaiter,

Lend Lease Ratall Parinership (LLRP) invastmant income of £1.3 milkon relates 1o Lend Lease's 5.02% interest in LLRF which owns a 25%
irtersst in Bluewater and, throughout tha financial year, prograssively increased its ownership interast in Touchwood, Solbull. Up to June
2003, 98.5% of the Cenire had baen purchased by LLRP for a total £185.0 million.

Lend Lease Overgate Partnership (LLGH) invastmant income of £2.3 milion relates to Lend Laase's 30.7% interast in LLOP.

frvestment expenses incurred for the year ended June 2003 primarily refates to the Bluswater retall cantra. Investmant axpenses incurred in
the period to Juns 2002 alse includes axpenses relating 1o tha Bluewater ratail centre, but primarily related to a deferred ratum payable to
irvestars in the LLOP, as Lend Lease was reguired to pay the investors a returm of 8.5% par annurn on the deposit for sale up 1o 28
Septernber 2001,
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued
Europe continued

Review of Continuing Operations continued
Other Income continued

Other invastment income inciudes the part reversal of a provision against the carmying valus of Lend Laasa’s 30.7% interast in the Overgate
Fartrarship (£1.5 million), offset by Lend Leasa's share of a writedown 1o net realisable valus of real estate securities in a new European
based mutual fund European SICAV) managed by L Houlhan Rovers at June 2003 (£0.3 million).

Equity Accounted Profits/(Losses)

Equity accounted profits of £0.2 million relate to Lard Lease's 40% interast in Generali Lend Lease (GLL), a joint venturs with the
Assicurazioni Generall S.32.A. group. In June 2002, Lend Eease sold its interast in Lend Lease Porto Retall (Porto Retail) and accordingly, no
equity accounted profit was attributable to Land Lease during the year snded Juns 2003, Porto Retall generated squity accounted profits of
£1.1 million for the year ended June 2002,

Gain on Sale of Investments
frr June 2002, Lend Lease sold its interasts in Land Lease Porto Betail and Larry Smith & Associates SRE.
Funds nvestment Performance

Dretailed below are returmns for various periods o 30 June for certain BEl funds compared o appropriate benchmarks, where applicable.

Before Feas Leveraged Returns % Al
Irvvastrment Fagion 1 yasr 3 years 5 yaars £
Lend Lease Retail Parinership Europe 11.2 8.8 577
Lend Eease Guargate Partnarship Europs 12.2 137
lrwestrmant Property Database (Benchmark) Europe 8.7 8.8

1 Represerds amounis included in Assate Under Management at June 2003 of £1.9 Difion,
Review of Discontinuing Operations

Tha profit before tax from discontinued oparations increased by £6.3 milion to £1.8 milion for the year ended June 2003 compared o a
[oss before tax of £4.4 milion for June 2002,

The orofit before tax of £1.8 milion constituted the following componants:

- a profit before tax of £3.5 milion i ralation to the Glohal Fund advisory platfermy; including advisary fees sarmsd of £6.7 milfion fargely
arising from increased assets under management during tha yaar), fransaction fees of £2.3 million samad in connection with
acquisitions, dispositions and aranging finance, offset by operating expeansas of £5.5 million; and

- an operating loss bafore tax of £1.8 million in refation to new business inftiativas that ware formearly pursued {e.g. establishmant of new
funds or separate account mandatas) cutside the retail sector. The loss for the year included asset managament fees sarmad (£1.1
rmiflion), acquisition, loan arrangement and advisary fees (1.4 million), disposition fess (£0.5 million), offsst by expenseas of £4.6 million
which included costs associated with sstablishment of a real estate services infrastructure {capital raising, transactions and fund
structuring), new business sat up costs, net of cost reductions arising from the strategic dacision to exit from growth initiatives and
close the European Real Estate Funds Managemert platiorm.

Assets Under Managemaent {AUM)

AlM at MNet AUM at
June 2002 Adddditions Reductions FRevaluations June 2003
o b b h h
Joint ventures/separate accounts .1 . AR o)k T
Land Lease Global Fund (.1 0.6 0.7
Total (.2 0.6 - - 0.8
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments {(REl continued
Europe continued

Review of Discontinuing Operations continued
Fund Incentive Fees

Datailed below is the basis on which incertive fees are earnad fur the Giobal Fund. The level of actual incentive faes is dependent on
invesiment periormance, the state of real astate markets, amount of capital invested, timing of liquidation of funds and a number of other
factors.

Fund Equity Expected Gross AUM Expscted indicative
rvested at Meirmurn at Meximum Reaafisation of
Currercy June 2003 Fund Equity  Jung 2003 Gross AU Incentive Faes
Gpportunistic
Lend Laase Global Fund LISEm 528.0 528.0 1,727 1,727 2008 to 2008
Frivata Equity Funds Basis of Caloulation
Lend Lease Gicbal Fund Incentive Fees ~ The advisor sharas in the simple cumalative net fund retums above

12.0%. The advisor participates in 25% of the excess retums up 1o 30%, and
thareafter, is entitied to 22.5% of the excess retums. Incentive fees are payable at a
rate of 50% as returns on investments are realised with the balance payahle on final
liquiclation of the fund based on final fund retums. Pravious payments are subject to a
clawback if in excess of final detarmined amounts.

Options - The advisor has been granted options tatalling 7.5% of the issued capita
of the Glabal Fund. Options will vast as capital is called from investors (pro rata) and
wilt he axercisabla on final Eoguidation of the fund.

nvestments and Co-investments

Lend Lease, whare appropyiate, has co-invested in funds alongside clients. Such investments are often, in eifect, seed capital to astablish a
furid. The maority of funds in which Lend Leass co-invests are clasad endad funds that are weighted towards capital growth rather than
incame genaration. As Australian Accounting Standards prohibit recording unrealised capital gains as profit, Lend Eease's total returm on
tha investimant fincluding ncentive fees, if any) is gensgrally only recognised on liquidation of the funds. Until iquidation, Lend Lease recaives
its shara of the net operating income distributed by each fund.

Lend Lease intends to exit s US, IDDF, Non-Retail Europeaan and Global Properties Fund co-invastmants over time. Accordirgly,
irvestmeant earmings from these co-invastmants have been classified as discontinuing operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Real Estate Investments (REl) continued

hvestments and Co-investments continued
The foliowing table summarises co-invesimenis at June 2003, as wel as future commitrments to co-investmeants.,

Lend Lease
Share of
Neoms
lrvestrnant Future Total Indicative June
June 2003 Commiiments  Comrmitments Fund 2003
frvastmant Region Abn ABm A%m LicsLiciation ASm
Continuing R
Asia Pagcific S T
Austraian Prime Praperty Fund Australiz 7408 70 49.5 Open ended 3.4
Feoal Estate FPartners | Ausiralia S 2B [ 0.5 34 2005 0.2
Feal Estate Partners # Australia L 10.0 10,0 2010
Asia Pacific investment Company Asia Lars Ll 37.8 2004
Asia Pacific nvestrment Company i Asia 32.8 39.59 2008
Total Asia Pacific 130.1 10.5 140.6 3.6
Europe ST
Lend Lease Retal Fartnership Europe LOE0s 2.3 626 20117 3.5
Land Leass Overgate Partnership Europe 100.6 4.5 1052 zo08° 6.3
Total Europe 166.9 5.9 167.8 9.8
Total Continuing 291.0 17.4 308.4 13.4
Discontinuing el
Asia Pagific
Lend Leasa intemational Distressed Debit LT
Furi Asia 45.8 99.9 14567 2008 6.8
Europe R
tend Lease European Peal Estate
Securities SICAY Europe 18.5 Open: anded {1.8)
Cierrman industrial Property Furdd Europe 2.4 2008 0.8
Total Europe - 21.2 {0.8}
North America
Valug Erhancernent Fund 1 Americas 184 16.4 2005 8.4
Valus Enhancemert Fund 1V Americas 1183 18.3 2007 (5.8)
Value Enhiancernent Fund v Americas 334 417 75.1 2008 1.6
Yarrnouth Capital Partriers Limited U
Frartrarship B Americas 0 4bE L. 45.5 2004 5.3
tend Lease Real Estate Sacurities Americas . 208 L 208 Open andead 1.0
Other Various 47.0 28.4 76.4 Warkous 14.2
Total North America 181.2 714 252.3 10.3
Global L T
Lend Lease Global Properties Fund SICAF Glotad 153.9 1539 2008
Total Discontinuing 402.1 171.0 573.1 2.7
Total Co-nvestments 693.1 188.4 881.5 16.1

1 Represents Lend Lease's share of income earned bafora o in A%,

2 Fund fite is periodically extended for four years, unless invesiors efect otherwdas, I fully extended the Lend Lease Fetail Partnership has & 40 vear life ending in 2035,
Land tease’s co-invesiment is commitied to the end of the fund’s life.

3 Fund e iz periodicatly extended for four years, unless investors slact stherwize, f fully extendad the Lend Lesse Ovargate Partnershio nas a 40 year He ending in
2040, Lend Lease’s co-investment is required 1o De at least & rinimum of 10% of subscribed capital 1o the end of the fund's e,

trvastment earmings rom Australian co-investrments, European retail co-invesiments and the co-invastments in AFIC and ARIC 1] have been
chassifisd as continuing operations for the pumose of the Consolidatad Financial Statemants,
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Other

Non Core Investments

Non core imvestments includes thoses nvestments that are not integral o Land Lease oparations such as iBM Globai Services IBMGSA) in

Austradia, Lend Lease Asta Water Trust in Asia and Chalvarton and THI in Europe.
The segment resulis for the year ended June 2003 are summarisad below:

Operating Profit/iLoss)  Operating Prosit/{Loss}

Operating Bevenus Before Tax After Tax Segment Assets
June June Jurs June Jurs Juna June Jura
2003 2002 2003 002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Adm Afm A%m A%m
Asia Pacifie
IBMGESA . . 16.8 58.6
Capital Services . . (2.5) 17.5
Westpac Banking Corporation:
Sale of sharas subject to hedgs
arrangaments . . 282
42.5 76.1
Europe
Capital Services . . 9.2 19.3
Americas
Coclsaings Inc . . 2.4
95.4
Asia Pacific

The profit after tax for the year ended June 2003 of AFS.6 milion principally relates to distributions received Fom IBMGSA offset by a

provision against the imnvestment in Lend Lease Asia Water Trust of AES.3 million. Tha June 2002 profit included a A$28.2 milion profit after

tax from unwinding the final ranche of the previously hedged Westpac shares.
Europe

European investrments in Capital Services comprises Cheivarton, THE and Clacion. The profit after tax of A316.8 million comprises the
raversal of provisions following the receipt of proceeds from the sale of properties in Chelvarton, liguidation distributions from THI and
Chelvarton and the recognition of tax benefits in respect of previcus provisions raised against the exposure to Chelverton,

Segrrent assets of AB16.1 milton relates 1o loans to the Chelverton Group. The status of this investrment is sumimarisad balow.
Chelverton Group

Buring the year ended June 2003 Lend Lease sold its 50% intersst in the Chelverton Group. The Group's remaining interest relates to
levans outstanding which are partly secured by assats in the UK and Europe.

THE plc {THY)

Lend Lease has a 14.3% interest in THI which is in administration. Provisions were raised in prior pariods to cover exposures to this
investmaent. Liquidation proceeds of A$7.9 million were recebved during the period.

Americas

The profit after tax of ASZ.4 million in the year ended June 2002 principaily relates o the sale of Lend Leasa's interest in Coolsavings nc.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Other continued
Corporate

Corporate comprises central overhisads net of ravanue and recoverias from the Group's operating businesses, finanes costs and
amortisation. Thase charges ars summarised below:

Operating Profit/{Loss) Operating Profit/Loss)
Before Tax After Tax Segmert Assets
Jurg June June Juna Jung June
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
MNet Corporate Overheads
Arnortisation
Giroup Traasury

Total Corporate Services '

1 Excludes group restructuring costs of A532.5 milkon after tax which are separalely disclosed in the Segment Mesulis Summary.
Net Corporate Overheads

MNet corporate costs are made up as follows:

June Jung

2003 2002

Alm A

Giross corporate costs 89.8
Shared Servicas 12.0
101.6
Lass: Recovarias from aperating businesses (78.1)
Lend Lease Foundation 2.7
Ciher 4.2
Gperating loss hefore tax 30.4
Operating loss after tax 40.8

Gross corporate overheads increased from A$101.6 miffiors for the year ended June 2002 o A$111.3 milfion for the year endad 30 Juns
2003. This ncrease is principally due to costs associated with the Group's strategic review (A%7.0 milion), the provision required to make
good the Australia Square tenancy (A$7.3 milion) and the introduction of several human resource initiatives [AS4.1 million} for learming and
devslopmant offset by savings arising from the resdaw of the Group’s ovarhead structure.

Savings in gross overheads were partly offset by lower recharges 1o the Group's operating businesses of AB16.7 milion,

The Corporate tax charge for the year endad June 2003 benefited from the one-off release of tax provisions whereas the year ended June
2002 was impacted by prior year under provisions for tax.

Lend Lease Foundation cosis and revenue remained constant as thers wars no rmajor change in dividends received from Lend Laase
shares.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Other continued

Group Amortisation

Arnartisation chargas are largely in raspact of managerment agresmants and goodwill which ars reported at the Group, not business unit,
leval,

Book Valus Arnartisation Charge

June June Jung Junes
2003 2002 2003 2002
Adm Afm Afrn Al

Management Agreements

REIUS

Discontinuing aperations
REl Australia

Continuing operations

Goodwill
Bovis Group
Delfin Group
COther
REIUS
Discontinuing operations

Other intangible assets

Total Group amortisation
FX hadae allocation

Amortisation agjusted for FX hedge allogation

As aresutt of the sale of REIUS businessas and the writedown of the RBEI US goodwill and managamant agreement book values, the
arnartisation charge going forward will be sigrificantly reduced.

Group Treasury
Operating FProfit/Loss) Cperating Profit/Loss)
Befora Tax After Tax Assets
Jung June June June June June
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Abm Abrm Afm Abm Adm A

26.3
(68.0)
241

21.8
(37.9)
18,0

frtarast revenue
Interest axpanse and borrowing costs
MNat hadge henolits

534.7

Total Group Traasury {14.5}

interest Revenue and Borrowing Costs

fnterast revenue increased by ABS.5 milfion to A$27.3 milion (after tax) for the year ended 30 June 2003, This was primarily due o higher
average cash balances during the yvear. Throughout the year axcass cash aver working capital reguirements ware consolidated in Australia.
This cash was hwvested in commercial paper and bank bills issusd by financial intermediaries and corporatas with an acceptable invesimant
grade credit rating. The oredit risk on cash invastments is managed through a Board approved credit policy. As most of the interest
reveniue is earmed in Australia there is minimal impact from BEX movements. The average interest rate samead on invested cash during the
year was 4.85% (June 2002 4.7%).

Borrawing costs primarily relate to interest on the AB500 million meadium term note due July 2005 and the US$250 milion guararteed notes
dus Juns 2005, Borrowing costs comprise ASE6.4 miflion before tax (Juna 2002 A$81.8 million), offsat by an FX hadge loss allocation of
AB0.T midllion in June 2003 (June 2002 A$13.8 million gain). Interest rates on the Group's borrowings are 70% fixed and 309% floating.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Other continued
Group Treasury continued
Net Hedge Benefit

A net hedge benefit was sarmed on the Group's hadging of foreign exchange expaosures of ASZZ.6 milion {a#ter tax) compared to AF16.9
rrillion {after tax) in the prior financial yvear. This incraase is primarily due to favourable interest rate differentials between the US and
Austrafia, aamed on hedging the Group’s US Dollar position {including intercomparny toans).

The impact of forsigr exchange movemerits included in the Statements of Financial Parformance diffars from net hedge banefits disclosed
above as gains and losses arising on hadging the Group's forsign deneminated eamings are allocated {FX hedge allocation} to business
unit's operating profit befora tax, interast and armortisation.

Lend Lease uses Forward Forsign Exchange Contracts to hedge a proportion of forscast revenue ard GPM from foreign operations, this
hedging results in a proportion of foreign denominated samings being hedged as iollows:

Year Encing 30 June 2004 Year Ending 30 June 2005 Yaar Ending 30 June 2006
Average Rate of Average Rate of
Average Rate of Undertyirg Undarlying
Portion Undarlying Fortion Hedge Hedge
Hedged Hedge Confracts Hadged Contracts Fartion Hedged Canfracts
Foreign Operations
US Dollars 70-100% 0.5% 50-T0% 0.56 10-30% 0.82
Founds Sterling 70-100% 0.38 B50-TO% .38 10-30% 0.3%

As the rate of the underlying hedges in tha year ended June 2003 was similar fo the actual average rate for the year, the loss of A2 4
rmillion was [ower than the loss of A$21.9 million in the prior financial year. This resufted in a lower FX hedge allocation to the business unit’s
operating profit before tax, intarsst and armaortisation.

Additionally, whare Land Lease hedges business unit cash Hows, any FX gains and lossas arising on the hedgas are allocated direcily to
business unit oparading profit.

The impact of forsigrs sxchange movemenis on the Group's net assets is detailed in the Foreign Currency Translation Resenve (FCTR) in
the year endad Jung 2003, the FOTR dabit balance horeased reducing reserves by AES.9 milion. Due to the writadown: of the US RES
business, the appreciation of the AS relative to the USE had fittls impact on FCTR this year.

Credit Strength

Management principally analyses credit strangth in terms of interest coverage and targets approximately six timas EBITDA to intarest
expense ratio. The key borrowing ratios are shown balow,

June

2002
Cash A%rn 804
Borrowings AJm 5938.6
Toital equity Akmi 3.752.%
Borowings to total assals % 10.8
Giross dabt to shareholders’ equity % 250
Met (cash)/debt to shareholders” ety % 0.8
Debt to sharehoiders' equity plus debt % 200
Credit rating Rating A-/BaaZ
Interast coverage Tirnes 7.8
Interast coverage target Tirnes 8.0

1 Cafcuiaied as EBITDA (before the writedown of BEI US businesses of ABD45.0 milion} pius interest revenue divided by nat horrawing costs excluding foreign exchange
beneft,
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations (MD&A) continued

Other continued

Statement of Financial Position (Balance Sheet)

Balance Sheet Summary by Major Component

Juns June Inereass/
2003 2002 {Dacraasa)
AZm A
Cash 8041 (36.5)
Real estate devalopment inventories B57.6 79.4
Feal estale development investmeants 140.8 [42.0)
Feat ostate co-investments BE3.7 31.0
Other rea estate invesimenis B43.5 (37.1)
Other invastments 52.1 {9.3)
Giondwil 1,043.9 (343.8)
Maragement agresmernts 581.1 (448.2)
Borrowings (938.8) 54.0
Other net assets/fligbilties) (501.8) 8.5
Sharghoiders’ equity 3,752.4 {744.5}
1 Other net assels/fabilities includes frade craditors and recaivablies, provisions and other fisbifilies including deferred 1ax.
Totat equity decreased from AB3.8 bilion to AS3.0 bilion primarily due to the writedown of tha RE! businesses.
Cash Flow
The following table summarnises the major cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2003,
Jung June
2003 2002
ASm Afm
Cash at the beginning of financial year 1,118.6
Summary of Major Cash Transactions During Financial Year
Operating Activities
MNet receipts in the course of operations 173.8
MNet proparty developmant receipts 518.5
Tax payments (142.0
MNet interast paicl (52.3;
Other oparating cash recaipts 54.4
Net cash provided by operating activities 557.4
Other Cash Transactions
Fayrnent of dividends [73.3;
Net BEl Co-imesstments (142.3}
Nat marigage [oans and tax credit properties investments 218.2}
Froceads on sale of investmenis fincluding North Lakes) 126.7
Nat borrowing repayments (243.6}
Purchase of contralied entitiss (including Land Lease Rosean Real Estate Securities) 73.8
Other nat cash flows 15.3)
Net cash deployad for financial year 214.5
Closing cash balance at end of financial year 8044

Wet proparty development cash flows during Juns 2003 include the payment receivad fram Capital Shopping Centres in relation 1o

Chapelfisid, Norsich. June 2002 included cash fows from Clympic Village, Sydney (A5240.9 milion) Touchwood Court, Solihull ($139.9
milion; and Cvergate Certtra, Dundes {$132.1 millior),
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Five Year Profile

June June June Juna June

2003 002 2001 2000 1599
Profitability
Gperating revenue ASm 12,478 11,454 12,997 4119
Gperating profit before tax {excluding writedown
of RE| businesses} * ASm 391 241 756 516
Gperating profit after tax {excluding writedown
of REl businesses} ! ASm 226 151 432 420
Gperating {loss)/profit after tax (inciuding writedown
of RE| businesses} ASm 226 151 432 420
Divisional Contribution
Biovis Lend Lsase Al 113 S0 56 37
integrated Development Businesses A%m 40 31 11 128
Reai Estate nvestments A 141 117 137 G
Ecuuity Imvestments A%m 28 a3 44 5
Other Al 25 {58) 53 28
Financtal Services Al 23t 200
Corporate amortisation Adm (92} B3 {564 {15
Camporate othar Adm (30 {25} {38) {79)
Total ASm: 226 151 432 420
EBTDA® Al 585 339 H36 576
Eamings per share ™ cents 52.1 335 B85.0 a8
Operating proft after tax to shareholders’ equity {ROE}
for the year % 6.1 4.1 8.1 12.1
Dividend per share © nents 18 21 64 80
Diividend payout ratio % 34.4 59.6 756 72.0
Corporate Strength
Total assets Al 8,587 4,060 10,842 7,251
Cash Al 804 1,118 3,484 821
Barrowings A%m 439 1,081 1,048 1,210
Current assets A%m 4,015 4,278 6,266 2,234
Current labifities A 3,245 3,568 3,800 2,452
Sharshoiders” aquity Al 3,752 3,667 5,307 3,489
Cash fiows from operations A% 557 287 728 303
et asset backing per share AL 8.63 8.54 16,38 6.88
Ratio of currant assais to current labilities times 1.24 1.20 1.65 0.91
Dbt to sharsholders' equity % 25.0 29.5 187 34.9
Drebt to sharsholders’ equity plus dabt Y 20.0 22.8 16.5 253
Met debt to sharshalders” equity % 0.9 (1.0 [45.9) 17.0
Dlabt to fotal markat capitafisation % 205 2.0 9.6 11.6
Shares or issue m 435 430 512 504
MNurmber of sharsholdars No. 86,003 87,516 58,553 45113
Number of equivalant full tme employees Mo, 10,554 10,484 g,774 4 BE27
Assets under management Adb 851 921 71.1 732
Shareholders’ Returns and Statistics
Froportion of shares on issues to top 20 sharshoiders % 59.9 54.3 60.8 B4.4
Staff sharsholdings % 13.7 141 137 13.4
Total dividends paid or declared ASm 7B G0 327 303
Share price as at 30 June as quotad on the Austratian
Stock Exchangs AR 10.54 12.55 21.51 20.74

Based on opsarating resulis excluding the writedown of BEl businesses of A5882.0 milion: before 1ax (A5645.0 million after tax).
Includes Group Treasury and Corporate adriinistration senvices.

Return On Equity (ROE} including the writedown of REI businesses was (23.8%) for June 2003.

1
2
3
4 Earnings per share inciuding the weitetiown of BE! businesses was (183.1) cents for June 2003, Equily represents the aversge balance {or the year,
a8
£ June 2003 s cafculaled esing the final davidend declared since 30 June 2003 1o De paid 18 Septernber 2003,
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Statements of Financial Performance
Year Bnded 30 June 2003

MNote

Revenue from Ordinary Activities
Revenue from the sale of development properties
Revanus from the pravision of servicss

Other ravenuas from ordinasy operating activities

Siay
3ih)
3ie)

Total revenue from ordinary activities

Expenses from Ordinary Activities

integrated property development activities

Froject and construction managerment activitias

Feal estate equity and debt management activities
Crolinary expanses

Witadown of REl businesses 4
Equity investmant activities 2
Adminisiration axpenses
Borrowirg costs
Total expenses from ordinary activities
Share of nat profit of associates accounted for using ihe equity method 32
Share of net profit of joint ventura entities using the equity method 33
{Loss)/profit before tax from ordinary activities
fncome tax expenss refating to ordinary activitiss 5lah
{Lass)/profit after tax from ordinary activities
Ordinary profit after tax attributabils to outside equity interasts
Net flossi/profit after tax attributabile to members of Lend Lease
Corporation Limitad
Non Owner Transaction Changes in Equity
Drecrease in Foreign Currency Transiation Resenve 23
Increase/{dacreases) in retained profits on initial adoption of:

Hevised AASE 1028 'Employss Beneiits’ 24

AASBE 1044 Provisions, Contingerit Liabifitias and Contingant

Assals’ 24
Total changes in equity from non owner related transactions
attributable i the members of Lend Lease Corporation Limited
Earnings per share
Basic {cents) 6
Diluted {cents) 6
Alternativa earnings par share’

Basic [cents) 6
Diuted [cents) &

Consolidated Compearty
June Jure June June
2003 2002 2003 2002

Afrn A

B18.2
11,2209
438.3
12,478.0

(B06.6)
(10,269.8)

{BEBE.T)

(22.4)
(73.8)

1 The June 2003 altarmnative basic and dduted samings per share amounts have bean caloulated after excluding tha impact of the AR50 million aflar tax writadown of

the RE| businassas.

The accomparying notes form part of thase consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Siatements of Financial Position

As at 30 June 2003
Consolidated COMpany
June June Jung Juneg
2003 2002 2003 2002
Nota Afm ABm

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 G
Recaivabies B 2,787.0
frvantorios g
Other investrments 11
Other assets 16
Total current assets 2,787.1
Non Current Assels
Recoivabies B 3277
friventories g
Equity accounted invastments 10
Other investrments 11 1,327.5
Futurs income tax benefit S(d 366
Froparty, plant and equiprmert 12 6.9
Gioocwil 13
Managemeant agreemanis 14
Other intangibles 15
Other assets 16
Total non current assets 1,608.7
Total assets 4,485.8
Current Liabilities
Creditors 17 3807
Current tax liabilities B{) 358
Frovisions 19 70
Other interest baaring labilities 20
Other nors interest bearing liabilties 21
Tatal current lizhilities 494 .4
Non Current Liabilities
Crediors 17 9842
Borowings 15
Frovisions 19
Frovision for deferrag income tax Blc) 8.2
Other interest baaring labilities 20
Other nors interest bearing liabilties 21
Total non surrent liabilities 350.4
Total abilities 1,453.8
Net assels 3,032.0
Ecuaity
Contributed equity 22 7977
Resarves 23 104.8
Fetained profits 24 2,129.7
Total parent equily interest 3,032.0
Ouiside equity interssts in controlled entities 25
Total equity 26 3,032.0

The accomparying notes form part of thase consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Siatements of Cash Flows
Year Bnded 30 June 2003

Consolidated COMpany
June June Junas June
2003 2002 2003 2002
Nete AZm ABm

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash racaipts in the course of operations 11,9527 724
Cash payrnerts in the course of operations (11.808.9 {54.3)
integrated property developmant recaipts 28] 1,185.8
integrated property development expenditure 23 [B47.1}
interast receaived 31 146.1
Dividends receaived 374 B0.3
Bistributions from parinerships receivad 25(b} 220
Income tax paid in respect of oparations 24{h) (142.0% {23.9)
frterest paid B34 {51.6)
Net cash provided by operating activities 29{a} 557.4 149.¢
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Froceeds from sale/redemption of current vestments 23{h) BA3.7
Purchases of current investrnants 24{h) (808.9;
Froceeds from sala/redemption of non carrent invesiments 28{h) 126.7
Purchases of nor current fvestments 28{h) (142.3} {A02.0)
Froceads from sals of other assets
Rapayment of {loans ta)/loans from associates/related partias 28] 34.0 24.8
Fayment for acouisition of controlled entities 29(e) (173.9}
Froceeds from sale of controlied entitics 23l 5.7
Froceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3.1
Furchases of proparty, plant and squipment {327} {0.8)

Furchases of management agresments
Frocesds from sale of management agresments

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Frocesds from borrowings 28lh)
Repayment of borowings 25(k)
Wet procssds from share issuss 2z
Fayments for share buybacks 2z
Dividends paid

Decrease in financing of controlled entities

Raturn of capital to ouiside suity intersst

32.7

(73.3)
60,9

Net cash {used in¥/provided by financing activities 229.3

Other Cash Flow ltems

Effact of sxchange rats changes on cash and cash eguivalernts
Cash balances in controlled entities acguired

Cash balances in cordrolled entities sald

Net decrease from other items

Net {decreaselincrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial
period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial pericd 7

The accomparying notes form part of thase consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

{b)

Summary of Principal Accounting Policies
Hasis of Preparation

The arnual financial report is & general purpose financial report, which has been prepared in accordance with applicable Accounting
Standards, Urgent issuas Group Consansus Views, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accourting Standards
Board ard the Corporations Act 2001, The Financial Statermertts have heen prepared under the historical cost convention and,
except where stated, doas not take into account changing values or fair vadues of non current assats. The accourting policies have
Baen consistently applisd by sach entity in the consalidated entity and ars consistent with thosea of the pravious financial year, excapt
wherg othenwise noted.

Basis of Consolidation

The Lend Laase Group (Lend Laase) consolidation comprises all entities controliad by Lend Lease Corporation Limited {Lend Lease
Corporation).

Where an entity sither bagan or ceased to be cortralled during the financial period, the resulis are includad only from the date control
comencead or up to the date conirol ceasad,

The balances, and effecis of transactions, between conirofled entities included in the Consolidated Financial Staternents, have been
gliminated.

Qutsida interasts in the equity and results of the antitias that are contralled by Lend Lease are shown a8 a separate tem in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue
Revenue from the Sale of Development Properties represents:
- for resicdential lard salas, upon settlement of contract,

- for non residential fand sales, upon exchange of contract where ali the conditions under the salas contract have been met or are
reasonably lkely to be met; and

- for residential and nors residential built form property development sales, upon exchangs of sales contracts whan all conditions
uryier the sales contract havs been met or are likely to be met, in accordance with the propartion of the development
complated, provided construction work in progress is more than 50% complets.

Revenue from the Provision of Services represents:

- for property construction, the value of work parformed using the percentage complete method, which is measured by reference
to actual costs to date as a percentage of total forecast costs for sach contract; and

- for property and funds managermant, capital sarvices and property developrmert, managerment fee antitlament for servicas
renderad.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised whan declared.

Rental Income

Rental income &5 recognisad on an aceruals basis,
Proceeds on Sale of Investments

Procesds on saie of invastmants are recognised when an unconditional contract is in place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

()

(e}

(f)

{g}

Summary of Principal Accounting Policies continued
Profits
Profits are brought to account:

- for property construction, prograssively at an armount equivalent to general overhaads or an amount equivalent 1o the vaiue of
work performad when the outsome of a contract can be reliably determined {Lend Lease doss not considar that the cutcormne of
a construction cortract can be reliably determined until it is at lsast 50% complets);

- for resicential land sales upon settlerment of cantract;

- for nor residential land sales upon exchange of contract where all the conditions under the sades contract have baan met or are
likely to ba mat; and

- for residential and nors residential built form proparty development sales, upon exchangs of sales contracts whan all conditions
urier the sales contract hava heen met or are reasonably likely o be met, i accordance with the proportion that the
development is completed, provided construction work in prograss is more than 50% complete. Whare a loss on a contract is
foraseaable, the full loss is recognised in the current period.

Taxation

Land Lease applies the liability mathod of tax effect accounting whershy income tax expense is calculated on the pre tax profit
adjusted for parmanant differences. Income tax refating 1o timing differences arising from itams being brought to accourt in different
periods for incoms tax and accounting purposes is carried forward in the Staterment of Financial Fosition as 'Fuiurs income tax
Banefit’ or ‘Frovision for deferred income tax’. Future incoma tax benafits ralating to income tax losses are anly brought to account
when their reafisation is virtually certain.

The Compary is the head entity in an Australian Tax Consolidated Group comprising afl the Australian whaolly ownad subsidiarias. The
Cormpany intends to enter the Australian Tax Consolidation Regime effective 1 July 2002,

The Company recognises ail of the current and delerred tax assets and liabilities of the Australian Tax Consolidated Group [aitar
sfimination of intra group transactions).

The Australian Tax Consolidated Group has enterad into a tax lunding arrangernant that requires wholly owned Australian subsidiariss
1o maka contributions to the Comipany for tax liabilities and deferred tax balances arising from external fransactions acourring after the
impiamantation of tax consolidation. The contributions are broadly calculated as if sach entity paid tax on a stand alore basis.

The assats and Habilities arising under the Australian tax funding arrangement are recognised as intercompary assets and fiabilities
with a conseguential adjustment 1o income tax expensafravenus.

Recoverable Amount of Non Current Assets Valued on a Cost Basis

The carrying armount of nan currert assets valued on the cost basis are raviewed to determing whether thay are in axcess of thair
recoverable amount at balance date. if the carrying amount of a non current asset excesads its recoverable amourst, the asset is
written down to the lower amount. I assessing recoverable amounts of non current assets, the relevant net cash flows have bean
discountad 1o thair present value, except whare specifically stated.

Investments

invesimeants are carmiad at the lower of cost or recoverabile armaurt, The assessment of nat recoverable amount of sach holding is
carried out at lsast every thras years by an independent valuer, with more frequent valuations obitained for large investments hald.

The independent vaiuers determine the recoverabla amourt of each asset using valuation methodologies appropriate to the particular
riature and circumstances of sach asset or class of assels. Such methodologiss, where appropriate, include discounting the
expectad nat cash flows to their presant valua,

Associates

Associates are those antities over which the economic entity axarcises significant influence, but noat control. lmvastrnenits in associates
are accourtied for uaing the squity method. This method requires the carrying armount of investrmenis in associates to be adjusted by
the sconomic entity’s share of the associates’ net profit or loss after tax and othar movemerds in rasarves, These amournis are
recogrised in the Group’s Statement of Financial Performance and consalidated reserves respactivaly.

Dividends fram associates represent a return of the Group's investrnent and as such are applied as a reduction to the carrying valus
of the investment,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

(h)

®

0

{k}

{h

{rri}

Summmary of Principal Accounting Policies continued

Parinerships

interests in partnarships are accounted for using the sguity method. Interests in partnarships are carried at the lower of the aguity
accounted carrying amourt and recoverable armount. The equity accounted carrying amount is the historical cost plus Land Lease's
share of the partnership's result less any drawings or distributions mads o Lend Laase. Lend Laase’s share of the parinarship's rasult
& included in the Staterment of Financial FPerformance for the period.

Joint Venture Entities

A joint venture ertity is an entify which has a contractual arrangament whersty two or more partias undertake an sconomic activity
which is subject to joint control,

Irvestrments in joint veniure entities are accountad for using the eauity method. Investrmenis in joint venture entities are carried at the
iowar of the equity accountad carrying armount and recoverable amount.

Lend Lease's shars of juint veniure entities' net profit or loss after tax is recognised in the Staternent of Financial Performance for the
period. Other movamants in joint veniure entities’ resarvas are recognisad directly in consclidated reserves,

Joint Yenture Operations

Ajoint venture operation is a joint venture that is not in the form of an entity, Lend Leasa's interast in an unincorporated joint verture is
brought 1o account by including #ts nterest in the following amounts in the appropriate categories in the Statements of Financia
Position and Financial Parformance:

- sach of the individual assats amployed in the joint veniure;

- liakilities incurred by the consolidated artity in relation 1o the joirt venture and the liabilities for which # is ointly and/or severally
lisatsle,

- axpenses ncurred i relation to the joint venture; and
- revenue earnad in relation to the joint venture,
Receivabies

Trade debtors are cardad at armounts due and are generally due for settfement within 30 days. The callactability of debts is reviewad
on an ongoing basis. Debis which ars known to be uncollactable are written off. Speciic provisions are made for doubtful accounts.

Pre Contract and Project Bidding Costs

Land Leases expenses all pre contract and project biddling costs, unless thers is a high degras of certainty that a contract will be
entared into {at least prefarred bidder status) ang that the costs will ba fully recoverable from contract reverwes. Costs praviously
expensad are not subsaquently reinstated whan a contract award is achisved.

Inventories
Property Held for Sale

Property acquired for development and sale in the ordinary course of business is carried & cost to date, including borrowing costs
ncurred.

The net realisable valus of sach holding is assessad at sach reporting period and a provision for diminution in value is raised by the
Directors where cost (ncluding costs 1o complets) exceeads net realisabie value. In determining net realisable value the Directors have
regard o indepeandent vaiuations obtained in accordancs with Note 18 Summary of Principat Accounting Policiss.

Construction and Development Work in Progress

The gross amount of construction and development work in progress consists of costs attributable to work pertormad together with
emerging orofit and after oraviding for any foreseeabla lusses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

(0}
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{a)

{r}

(s)

Summary of Principal Accounting Policies continued
Property, Plant and Equipment

Land, buildings and lsasshold improvemsnts are carried at the fower of cost or recoverable amount,

Except for investment properties, depreciation is provided on cost or valuation over the economic [vas of the assets. Amartisation is
provided on leasehold nprovernerts over the rarmaining periad of the lease. Most plant is depreciated over a period not exceading 10
years, furnitura and fittings over 15 years, motor vehicias over 8 years and computer eguipment over 3 years. The straight line method
of depreciation/araortisation is used.

The carrying amounit of non current assets valued on the cost basis are reviewad to determing whather thay ars in axcass of thair
recoverable amount at reporting date. I the carrying amount of a non current assat excesds its recoverable amount, the asset is
written down 1o the lower amount. The writedown is recognised as an expense in the financial period in which it cocurs.

IT Software Systems

Direct costs incurred in the development of major IT Systerns are capitalised on the Statermnent of Financial Position. A majer [T
Software System is one that has a total cost in excess of AF10.0 million and that will provide demonstrable ongoing benafits to Lend
Lease. [T Systerms are amortised on a straight iine basis over a period not exceeding five yaars, The carrying amaount is reviewed to
detarming whether it is in excass of the recoverabls amount frefar Note 1(s) Surnmary of Principal Accounting Policies).

Managerment Agreements

Managemenrt agreements are held at the lower of cost or recoverabie amount. These agrasments are independently vaiued in
accordance with Lend Lease policy using discount rates and rmethodologies appropriate to sach particular managamant agreement.
Managemerd agreements are amortised over thair estimated useful ives, assessad 1o be no maore than 50 years.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the axcess of the purchase consideration plus incidental acquisition costs over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired on the acquisition of a controlled entity, and is amortised on a straight ling basis over a period to which the banefits
are expectad to arise, nat excesding 20 years.

in estanblishing the fair value of the identifiable nat assets acouired, a liability for restructiuring costs is only recognised at the date of
acquisition where tharg is a demonstrable sommitrmeant and a detaiiad plan. The fability is only recognised where there is little ar na
discretion to avoid payrmenis to other parties in settlement of costs of the restructuring and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
fialbdity as at the date of acquisition can be made.

The unarmortised balance of goodwill is reviewsd and whers the balance exceads the valus of expacted fuiure benefits, the difference
i5 chargad o the Statement of Financial Performance.

Employee Benefits

Employess' superannuation funds and retirement plans provide bensfits for amployess. In addition, Lend Lease pravides an smployes
profit sharing schame and share plans for employees, subject to eligibifity. Cordributions by Lend Lease companies are charged
against current income.

The provisions for employee entitlermeants to wages, salarias, annual teave and sick Isave represent prasent obiigations resutting from
amployaes’ servicas provided up to the balance date, caloulated at undiscounted armounts based on remuneration wage and salary
rates that Lend Lease expacts o pay as at sach reporting date including refated on costs.

The provision for employvies entitiements to long sarvice leave represents the present vaiue of the estimated future cash ocutflows to be
rnade resutting from employeess’ servicas provided up to bajance date. Considaration is given 10 expected future incraases in wage
and salary rates including refated on costs and expected settlement dates based on tumover history,

Creditors
Trade Creditors

Liakilitias are recognised for amaounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether or not billed to Lend Leasa,
Trade accouris payabie are normally sattied within 80 days.

Insurance Claims

A liability for outstanding claims is recognised in respact of Lend Lease’s wholly owned special purposs captive insurance subsidiary.
The liability covers clairmns incurred but ot yet paid, incurred but not reportad claims and the anticipated direct and indirsct costs of
sattling those claims. The labifity for outstanding claims is measured as the presant value of the expectad future payments, refiecting
the fact that all the claims do not have to b paid out in the immediate future. The expected future payrments ares than discountad 1o a
presant value at the reporting date, using discount ratas based on investment opporiunities avaitable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

{v)

{w)

Summmary of Principal Accounting Policies continued
Borrowings

Borrowings are carried on the Staterment of Financial Position at the sum of the drawn principal and accrued interest, which is
accrued at the contractad rate,

Foreign Currency

Land Lease's international currency managamant strategy and palicy is detailed in Note 30 international Currancy Management and
Financial Instruments.

Assets and Habifities of salf sustaining forsign oparations and, where applicable, the corresponding forward foreign exchange contract
hadges are converted at rates of axchangs ruling at reporting date and the resutiing foraign currency gains and losses are recordad
rieat of income tax in the Foreign Currency Transkation Resarve. Othar Foreign Currency Translation Raserve amounts are transferrad
to retained eamings whan the underlying assets changs in nature or are realised.

All other assets and kabifities denominated in foreign currency, and where applicable the corresponding forward foreign exchange
contract hadges, are converted at rates of axchangs at reporting date and the resulting forsign currency gains and kosseas are taken to
the Staternent of Financial Performance in the financial period in which they arise.

Forward foreign exchange contracts are entered into to cover the anticipated excess of revenus less expenses within foreign
aperations [refer Note 30 international Currancy Managerment and Financial Instruments). These foraign exchange coniracts are
converted at the ruling rates of axchangs at balance date. The resulting forsign exchange gains and iosses arg taken o the Statement
of Financial Parformance for Fedge condraces that relate to the current fnancial pariod, or hald on the Statement of Financial Position
as ar assel or labilty for hedge contracts that relate to futurs financial periods, provided that sufficient axcass of ravenue over
expenses are anticipated to be made by the forsign operations. The affect is to record revenue after expensas frorm foreign oparations
at the hedged exchangs rate.

Derivatives

{eng Lease is exposed to changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates and uses interest rate swaps, Cross cuUrency swaps,
options, and forward forsign exchange contracts to hedge thess risks.

Derivative financial instruments designated as effective hadges are accountad for on the same basis as the underlying exposurs,

interast payments and receipts under interest rate swap contracts are recognised on an acoruals basis in the Statemert of Financial
Parformance as an adjustment to interast expense during the financial period, or capitalisad within inveritorias whan incurred in
relation to property acquired for developrnent and sale (refer Note 1{m) Surmmary of Frincipal Accounting Folicies).

Group policy parmits the purchase and sale of options. Purchased aptions are treated as effective hedges. Seid options are not
treated as sifective hadges for accounting purposes and tharsiore thase options arg immediately recognised o the Staterment of
Financial Pasition. Changes in the value of such options are recognised in the Statement of Financial Parformance. As at 30 Juns
2003, there were no such options outstanding. Tha same treatrment is given 1o any other form of derivative transaction entered inte
which is not classified as an effective hedge. At 30 Junes 2003, thare were no such dervatives outstanding.

The accounting policy for forward foraign exchange contracts &5 set out in Note il Summary of Principal Accounting Policies.
Provisions

Provisions are raised o recognise future obligations as a resuft of a past svert where 1 probable that an cutflow of sconomic
benafits will be regquired 1o settls the obligation.

Provisions for restruciuring are only recognised when a detaied plan has been approvaed and the restructuring has aithar cormmenocad
or been publicly announced. Costs refated to ongoing activities are not provided for,

Provisions for non canceliabile operating lease rentals payabis on surplus lsased pramises are raised when it is determined that no
substantive fture banefit will be obtained from its occupancy and sub lease rentals are less.

Where the carrying amount of 4 non current asset is detarmined o be in excess of #s recoverabla armount at balances dats, than a
provision against 1his assat is raised.

Provisions for dividends are recognised in the reporting pericd in which they are declared.
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Summmary of Principal Accounting Policies continued
Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include interest, amortisation of discounts or pramiumis ralating 1o borrowings, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred
in connection with arrangement of borrowings and forsign exchange differences nat of hadged amaounts on borrowings.

Ancllary costs incurrad in connaction with the arrangameant of borrowings are capitalised and amortised over tha lifa of the
Borowings.

Barrowing casts are expensed as incurred unless they relate o qualifying assets. Gualifying assets are assets which take mors than
12 months to prepare for thelr intendad use o saia. n thass circumstances, borrowing costs are capitalised 1o the costs of the
assets. Where funds are horrowed specifically for the acquisition ar construction of a qualifyving asset, the amount of borrowing costs
capitalised are those incurred in relation to that borrowing. Where funds are borrowed generally, borrowing costs are capitalissd using
a weighted average interest rate.

Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per shars is determined by dividing net profit after income tax attributabile to members of tha company, excluding any
costs of sarvicing agquity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ardinary shares sutstanding during the
financiai period, adjusted for bonus slements in ordinary shares issuad during the financial period.

Employee Share Plans

Lend Lease employee share plans are funded by Lend Lease contributions at the rate of up to 7.5% of each individual employes’s
anrwal salary and employes profit share caleulated at the rate of up to 7.5% of profit before tax in accordance with a Profit Sharing
Desd.

Thase contributions are expensed by the Company in the Statement of Financial Performancs. Ths Lend Lease employee share plans
uiifise these contributions for on market purchases of shares in Land Leass Corporation. Shares acquired by the Lend Lease
employae share plans are allocated to individual employess in accordances with their salary and profit share antitisments.

in addition, an annual aliotment of 0.5% of the issuad capitai of Lend Lease Corporation fs granted to various employse share plans
far allocation to employess based on individuai and departmeantal performances. Thase shares ars issuad to the plans at 50 cents per
share and this amount is expensed in the Statemant of Financial Performance at issue dats. Thess shares rmay be allocated 1o
ndivicdual smpioyaes either during the curant financial period or future financial pariods frefar Note 35 Ermploveas’ and Directors’
Compansation),

Change in Accounting Policy
Employee Benefits

As from 1 July 2002, Land Lease applied the revised AASE 1028 ‘Employes Banefits' for the first time.

The liability for wages and salaries, annual lsave, sick lsave and long senvice leave is now calouiated using the remuneration rates
Land Lease expects 1o pay as at sach reporting dale, not wage and salary ratas current at reporting date.

Tha indtial adjustments to the Lend Lease Consolidated Financial Report as at 1 July 2002 as a result of this change are A$1.5 milion
increasa in provision for employee benefits, AS1.1 million decrease in opening retained profits and ABD.4 miflion increass in future
neornes tax bensfit. As a result of this change in accounting policy, employes benefits expeanse increased by AS0.E millior and
noome tax expense decreased by AS0.3 mifion for the reporting peried to 30 Juns 2003,

Had the revised accounting policy always been applisd in the pravious financial pariod, the financial npact of the change in policy as
at 1 July 2001 would have besn a A$1.3 milion increase in provision for employes benefits, AR0.9 milion decrease in opaning
retained profits and A$C.4 milion increasa in future income tax benefit. Emplayes benefits would have increased by AS0.5 milion and
nuome tax expanse decreased by ABRD.2 million in tha reporting period to 30 June 2002,

Provisionhs, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Asg from 1 July 2002, Land Lease applied the new AASE 1044 ‘Provdsions, Cortingant Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ for the first
time.

Dividends are now recognised at the time they are declared, determined or publicly recommended. Previously, final dividends were
recagrised in the financial period 1o which they related, avan thaugh the dividends weres annaunced attar the end of that financiad
period. As a result of this change, the adiustments 1o the Consclidated Financial Report as at 1 July 2002 was a A$39.1 million
norease in opaning retained profits and a A$39.1 milion decraase in provision for dividends. There was no impact on profit or loss for
the raporting period to 30 dune 2003,

Had the revised accounting policy alweays been applisd in the pravious financial period, the financial impact of the change in policy as
at 1 July 2001 weuld have been a AF38.8 million increase in opening retainsd profits and AB38.8 milion decrease in provision for
dividends. There wouid have baen no impact on profit or loss for the reporting period o 30 Junes 2002,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

2. Segment Reporting
The sagment results are discussad and anatysed in the Managemant's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (MD&A) included withir this report.

Business Segment Summary

Share of Met Group Operating
Profivoss) of Equity Group Opersting {Loss) Profit Grroun Operating
Segrment Other Unallocated Group Dparating Segment ) Ancouniad Other Unallocated (Loss)Prof After Tax from Ordinary {Lose)Prafit
Fraverue ' Favenus Fevenue * Resuit Before Tax™* Investraants Fovenues & Expenses Before Tax Actities * Aftor Tax
kg June Jufe Juns SUNE Jung June Juns June e June Julrie Jure June June Jung June LN
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 20053 2002 20053 20032 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
ABm Am ABm: Adm ABm ABm Adm Am Am ASm A AFm ASm 5 A%m ASm ASm
Projact and Constructio
Managemem‘: 101779 12, 10,2207 1144 4, 57 .4 1127
Integraled Proparty
Developrment © 1.084.8 1.084.8 57.0 3.5 52.: a0.5
Total Rea Estate
Solutions A 11,3055 X 153.3
FEl - Equity’ 53,6 . H38.5 2, 51.: 113.0
FEI - Dokt 37538 Rl 3802 . 3 22, 278
Total Reai Estate
Invastments 140.8
Total Core Real Estate 294.1
Non Core Businesses/
e O e
Frestructuring Cost
Equity Investiments * 8.2
Othar 25.9
Total Non Core
Businesses 54.1
Total Segment
Unalipcated Corporate {126.9) {126.9) K 121.8
Total Group . 18.8 381.1 % 226.3

ASSE 1005 'Segrnent Reparting’ does not permit Sartain items of revenus and expenses to be sttibuted to particular segments for the purposes of determining segment revendes and segment results, These inciude corporale expenses, interest

and diviciend revence, proceeds on the sale of investments (unless the segment’s operalions are primarily of & financial nature} and income tax axpenses.,

Sagment revendes, expenses and rasults include imer segment transfers between business segment of AR08 milkon, inter segment transfers are priced on an arm’s langth basis.

Segment results nciude amoriisalion (BES4.6 milion) and restrociurng costs JABET.3 milion) which have Dean reciassified in "Other Unallocated Hevendes and Expanses’ to enable reconciliation: 1o the MORA resits.

- Presentation and clagsification is consistent with MDEA,

Faprasents the Group net {lose)/profit before Outside Equity Interast.

Private Finance Inifistives (PFis) and Actus Lend Lease which were pravicusly disclosed iy the prior period as part of Project and Construction Managemend are now included n Integrated Property Deveiopment. The comparatives have Deen

changed in fne with BES revizsed managemend structurs, as previously advized in the June 2002 MO&A,

AEl - Equity includes discontinuing operations’ segmant revenue of AS295.8 million (2002 AB354.2 midien, segrment loas Defore tax of AR830.7 million (2002 profit of AS1C.C miion}, and segrnent loss after tax of ASS82.1 milion (2002 loss of AS3.1

mrdlkon) (refer Note 37 Gizcontnuing Operations).

8 HEl - Dabt includes discortinuing oparations” segment revenue of AS313.8 mifion {2002 AR373.8 milion). segmerd 10535 befors tax of A5218.8 milion 2002 profit of A4 milion), and segrsnt oss after tax of ASZ50.5 milion (2002 loss of 8836
millon) (refer Note 37 Dizcontinuing Operations},

& Jupe 2002 segment resels refates o the disposal of £ milion Westpas shares,

Tu 05 M2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

2. Segment Reporting continued

Business Segment Summary continued

Mon Cazh Expenses
other than

Dapreciztion 4 Crepraciation & Segrent Ecpuity Acooonied
Arnoriisation’ Amortisation® Assets | Investments
June Jung June June June Julrye June Julr
2003 2002 2003 20032 2003 20032 2003 20032
Afm ¢ ABm Afm Afm

Project & Construction

Alanagerment # B33 17.8 33337 4.8
witegrated Proparty

Dievaloprient i 7.7 {14.3 5523
Totat Heal Estate

Solutions 35 ,886.0
HE - Eqpuity® 52,7 BR1E
HEI - Daht” 184 754.1
Totat Heal Estate

Investnents 1.3 LB05.7
Total Core Real Estate 4.8 4917
Non Core Businesses/

One OFf Hormns

Featruchuring Cost

Eqjuity Irvestmants 223

Cgr 11.2 733
Total Non Core

Busin 335 733
Totat Segment 108.3 L585.0
Unallocated Corporate

Totat Group

LInallocaied
Corporate
Assots’
June June
2003 2002

; ABm

Unakocated
Toeal Acquistion of Mon Segraent Corporate Total
Group Asseis Current Assets’ Lisdilities * Liathilties * Gircug Lishilities
e June Jung SN SUNE L Jrue June June Jung
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 20032 20033 2002
A5m ABra A%ra ABm ABM Afm ABra

91.3 26.1 2834 19.2 2,607.8

FGE.7 783 247.48 18.7 254.3

2,882.2

25.0 =létah
27.2 127.7
56.2 £84.1
160.6 3,876.3
45.3
- 45.3
160.6 3,621.6

1 AASE 1005 'Segment Meporting” does not permit coartain aseets and fabiities 10 be atiributed 10 parlicliar segrmaenis for the purposes of determining segmant assels and segmard fabiities. These include hooms tax azsete and labiities and

borrowings and liabilities related to assets that are the subliect of finance fease liakilities,
2 Reprasanis segment amortsation and depreciation,

3 Mon cash expenss represents those non cash lemns included in the reconciistion of profit from ordinary actihvities afler income tax to net cash prosdded Dy operating activities fefer Note 29 MNotes 1o the Slsternents of Cash Flows).
4 The agquisition of segmant assels thal are expected 1o be used during more than one year, These agssts represant capital expenditure and include assets acquired under finance leases but exclude investments.
5 Privata Finance hitiedives [°Flz) and Actus Lend Lease which were praviously disclosed in the prior period as part of Project & Construction Managernent are naw inciuded in Inegrated Properly Development. The comparatives have been changedd

in line with MES' revized management struclure ag prevdously advised in the June 2002 MD&A.

B REl - Equity inciudes disconfinuing operstions’ segment asaels of AES02.4 milion (2002 A%1,813.2 milion) and ssgrment lishiftes of AS152.8 milion (2002 A%1,246.3 milion) fefer Note 37 Discontinuing Operations),
7 REl - Dabt inchudes discontinuing operations” segment assets of AST3E.2 milion {2002 AST53.8 milkon) and segment fabdities of A5215.0 milion 2002 AS127.7 milion) frefer Nate 37 Discontinuing Cperations).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

2. Segment Reporting continued

Geographical Segment Summary

Group Operating
Sagmant Group Oparating Giroup {Loss)/Frogt {Losa)/Froft Segrmert Acuisition of
Raverue Favenue Betore Tax After Tax Assets Non Carrertt Assets
June Juna June June June Jurs June June Jung June Jung June
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
A%m A ASrm ABm Al A Abm Afm A A ASrm Ak

Australia and Pacific | 1,657.8 8440 99.6
North America 7,084.53 4,403.6 53.0
Asia® 24949.4 4847
Europe * 3,243.5 1,862.7

Total Segment
Unallscated Corporaie
Total Group

12,478.0

1 tcludes discontinuing cperations” segment revenue of A$3.9 milion {2002 AS2.3 milion); segment profit before 1ax of AS1.2 miflion {2002 profit of 451.0 milion) and segment profit after tax of AS0.8 rmilkon (2002 profit of AC.A million) fefer
Mota 37 Discontinuing Operations),

2 includes discontinuing operations” segmerd revenue of AS554.7 milion (2002 AZ680.1 milkon); segmert ioss before tax of AETES.2 mikon (2002 profit of 2831.5 milion) and segrient loss affer tax of ASB68.2 milion (2002 profit of AS15.8
milkon) irefer Mote 37 Giscontinuing Operations},

3 includes discontinuing operations” segmend revenue of AS1E.2 mifion (2002 AS26.3 million); segment foss before tax of AR3E.3 milion (2002 loss of A55.1 milion) and segment less after of AB42.2 million (2002 toss of AF11.4 rikion) {rafer
Mote 37 Discontinuing Oparations),

4 includes discontinuing operations” segmend revenue of AS31.8 milion (2002 A5%.8 milkon): segment 10ss before tax of AF26.0 milion (2002 loss of 4812.0 milkon) and segment 10ss after tax of AB23.0 million {2002 10ss of A511.7 rmikion) {refer
Mote 37 Discontinuing Oparations),

Business Segments

The consolidated entity comprisas the fullowing main businass segmenis, based on the consalidated antity’s managament reporting system:

Real Estate Solutions
The Group's Real Estate Solutions business encompasses two major business activities as follows:

Project and Construction Management
Heal estate project management, construction management and enginssring.

Integrated Property Development

All aspects of property devalopmant from concept through to design, planring, construction, firancing and leasing o everiual sale. In addition, this business segment is responsibile for the creation and
rnanagemert of Private Finarce Intiatives [PH's) including Build Operate Tranasfer (BOT) projects.

Real Estate Investments

Reat Estate Investments - Equity

Maragament of real estate invastment funds on behalf of clisnts, co-irvastrmert in funds, portfolic managamant, the lsasing, maragemant and redevelapment of shopping centres and acting as financial
adhvisor and arranger of project financs and refated sarvicss,

includes discontinued operations {refar Note 37 Discontinued Operations).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

2. Segment Reporting continued
Business Segrments continued

FReat Estate Investments - Debt

Management of real sstate associated debt comprising: co-investment real sstate assets, origination and sarvicing of commearcial
rnortgageas and mazzaning oans, resciution of sub parforming and non performing cormmarcial mortgagss.

Thase are now discontinuing operations (refer Note 37 Discortinuing Operations).
Equity Investments

Stratagy has baen from time to time to make and hold investments in companias whare a strategic business rationale existed, and
where a mutually bereficial business relationship with theses companies couid be developed. The decision to west or divest equity
imvastments is determined after considaration of both strategic and valuation factors.

Other
Cther includas the following business activitias:
Capital Services

The principal activities of Capital Servicas arg as investor in infrastruciure assets and asset fund rmanagsrs, and invastor in UK read
estata development companies. This business is focussed on maxirmising the value of its axisting investments and is not pursuing ary
raw invesimants.

IT+T and eBusiness hwestments

investments in information technology andg telscommunication {IT+T) services companias and various eBusinass venturas,
Unaliocated Business Segments

Corporate

Group treasury, amortisation and Corporate administration services. All financing cosis that are not dirsctly refated to real astate
devaloprnent projects or investmenis are reporiad in unaliocated corporaie,

Geographical Segments

The Group's businasses operate on a global basis, Segment revenue is based on the geographical location of customers; and
segment assets are basad on the geographical location of the assets. The Group's business segments operate geographicaily as
fullovas:

Australia and Pacific

Real astate project managernent; construction managameant and engineering; property developmeant; real estate squity investrment
rmanagament, investor in infrastructure assets and assst fund managers; invastments in technology and telscommunications sanices
companias and holder of investrnents in strategic companises.

North America

Real astate project managernent; construction managsment and engingering; property developmeant; real sstate equity and detit
vestmert management; and invastmeants in technology and telecommunications services companias.

Asia

Real astate project managerment; construction and enginesring; property development; real estate equity and debt investmient
rnanagemant,

Europe

Heal estate project managerment; construction managemeant and engineering; proparty development; real estate aquity investrnent
raragamart; invastor in infrastruciure assets and asset fund managers,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Consclidated Company
June June Jung Juneg
2003 002 2003 002
ABm ABm A ABm

Revenue
Revenue fom sale of development propertiss B18.8
Revenue from the provision of services 11,2208
Other revenua from ordinary aperating activities

Totai revenue

(@)

Total comprising:

Revenue from the Sale of Development Properties
Touchwood, Solihul

Olympic Vilaga/Newington, Sydriey

Cvargate Centre, Dundes

Adimiralty industriad Park, Singapore

Urban Cormnmunitiss projects

Total revenue from the sale of devalopment properties

{b)

Ravenue from the Provision of Services

Real Estate Solutions
Project and construction managemaer:t | 10,378.3
Integrated property development 481

10,4284

Real Estate lnvesiments
Froperty ard funds managesmient
Othar

Total revenue frons the provision of services

{c)

Other Revenues from COrdinary Operating Activities

Dividends Received
Controliad entities
Other related parties
Other carporations

Rental Income
Biuewatar, Kant
Ovargata, Dundes
Othar

Interest Received
Controliad entities
Othear ralated parties
Other carporations

1 June 2003 includes decraase in revenue of ABED7.1 milion due 1o foreign currency translation movement as & result of the strengthening Australian Gollar
curing the yeaar,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

{c)

Revenue continued

Cther Revenues from Ordinary Operaling Activities

continued

Proceeds on Sale of Investments
Tres Aguas

Morth Lakes {Urban Community)
Hulliday Fengalio Fowler

Chabhvertarn Group Lirmited

Lend Laase Chelverton intermationai
Wastpas Banking Corporation

Bowvis Thames Shanghai Limited (Da Chang)
Lend Lease Porto Retall (Arrabidal
Kiwi Froperty Group

Lend Lease European Mutual Furd
Calderdale

Larry Srith, itaty

Othar

Share of Partnerships’ Resuit
King of Prussia

Lend Leass Overgate Partnership
Lend Lease Fetall Parinership
YCRII

Other Revenue
Guarantas feas
Distributions receivad
Cther

Total other revenues from crdinary operating activities

Consolidated Compary
Jung June June Junes
2003 2002 2003 2002

oAb  Abm  ASm  Adm

A rmore detailed anadysis of ravenue is included within Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Cparations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Consolidated Cormpany
Juns Juna June June
2003 2002 2003 2002
Ami ABm A ABm

4. Ordinary Loss/{Profit} ltems

Loss/(profit) from ordinary activities before income tax is arrived at after
including:

Dapraciation and amortisation
Depreciatiar: of [T systems
Dapraciation: of property, plant and equipment
Less: Capitalisad depreciation
Armortisation of lsased plant and aquiprnert
Arnortisation of gaochwil
Amortisation of management agreaments
Arnertisation of other intangibles

2.0

Totai depreciation and amortisation 2.0

Borrowing costs
Nar interest borrowing costs

frterast borrowing costs
Cortreflad entities
Related antitias
Othar corparations
Less: Capitalisad interest borrowing costs

51.6

Net interest borrowing costs 516

Total borrowing costs 51.6

{Frofitt on sale of invesimants
Tres Aguas
North Lakas {Urban Community)
Wastpac Barking Corporation
Lend Eease Forto Fetall (Arrabidal
Calderdale
Othar

Totai fprofity on sale of investments

Met provisions raised/written back}
Dirndration in valug of praperty inventorias
Dirrdrution in valug of fvesimerts
Ermnpioyes hanedts
Construction risks
Ernpioyse termination provisions - Group restructure
Other provisions

Net provisions raised/{written back}

Met bad and doubtful debts axpense including raisedAwritten back) of
prevision for doubtful debts

MNet forsign exchange ([gainyioss

Loss on sale of property, plant and eqguipment

Operating leasa rental expansa

Finarce lease expanse

Tha interest borrowing costs other corporations (A$59.9 million) mainly refatas to the guarantesd notes,

The net foreign exchange gain of AS31.1 milion [dune 2002 A$2.5 milion [oas) comprises three elements. Fistly, during the financial
yaar a portion of revenue and Gross Profit Margin derived from US and UK operations were hedged resulting in a foreign exchangs
ioss and hedge cost of ASZ.4 million {Jung 2002 net loss of A$20.4 milton). Frofits on the forgign operations are decreassd by these
insses on the hedges which resulted in forsign profits emerging at the hedged rate. Secondly, the net foraign exchange gain on
transactions was AB1.4 miflion (June 2002 net lass of AS3.0 milion). Thicdly, during the financial period, a net hadging bansfit of
AE31.6 milion arose (June 2002 AB20.9 million due primarily to a favourable incraase in interest rate diffsrentials batween the US and
Australia.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Consolidated Comparyy
June June June Juna
2003 2002 2003 2002

Afm A%

4. Ordinary Loss/{Profit} ltems continued

Individually significant expenses included in loss/profit} from ordinary
aclivities before income tax expense:

Witedaown of REF businesses
Gioodwill
Management agreernants
IT systems
Froparty, plant and squipment
Restractuning provisions
Ernpioyes termination provision - REl restructure
Other assets and expenses

Totai writedown of BEl businesses

Consolidated Company
June June June June
2003 2002 2003 2002

AS000s AS00Cs ASOD0s ARC00s

Auditors' Remuneration

Amounts received or due and receivable by the auditors of Lend Lease
Corporation for:

Auditing and review of Enancial reports

Cther services
Tax services
Intemationasl assignaes tax services
Accounting advice and verification to support contractual claim
Accounting adwvice
Acquisition due diligence
[T risk review
Other sarvices

Total other services
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Consolidated Comparty
June June June June
2003 2002 2003 2002
Adrm Afrm AFm AZm

5. Taxation
{a) Incorne Tax Expense
{Loss)/profit befors tax from ordinary activities 106.0
Prima facie income tax {benefit)/expense at 30% of (loss)/profit
from ordinary activities 318
Tax effect of parmanent differencas:
Hebateabls dividends (18.1)
Non assessable ncome {24.0)
Armortisation axpense
Equity accourted profits
Non aflowable expensas 53.0
Non deductible provisions
Witeoff of tax lnsses
Variation in overseas tax rates
Income tax expense relating to wholly owned Australian subsidiaries ©
Recovery of income tax expense from wholly cwred Australian
subsidiarias *
Gther
109
Income iax (benefit}/expense for current financiai period before
individually significant permanent differences 42.7
individually significant parmanent differences:
Non recognition of future incomsa tax banafits refating to writedown of RE
businesses
Variation in ovarseas tax rates in relation to RE writedown
Wiriteoff of future ncome tax benafits praviously recognised in prior yaars in
relation to writedown of BEl businessas
42.7
income tax foven/under providad in pravious financil periods 2.3
Total income tax expense 45.0
{b)  Current Tax Labilities
Movernenits during the financiad period were as follows:
Balancs at baginning of financial period 41.4
incomsa fax paid {27.2)
Addition through acouisition of controfled entities
Tax logses transferrad in {21.2)
Prior Enancial period under/(over) provision .5
Balance transiarred to the Company from wholly owned Australian
subsidiaries upan nplemeantation of tax consolidation
Current financial period ncome tax expanss on {ossi/profit from ordinary
activities after adjiusting for tirning differences AGA
33.6

1 Represents fhe current and deferred fax transactions recogrised by the Company in reepect of tranzactions of wholy owned Australian subsidisries in the
Austrafian Tax Consclidation Group {refer Note 1(d} Summary of Principal Accounting Pokcies).

2 Reprezerts the recovery of income tax expense by the Company from wholly cwned Austrakan subsidiaries in the Australian Tax Consolidation Group under a
tax funding arrangement efer Mote 148 Surarmany of Principat Accounting Poficies),
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Corsolidated Company
Jdune June June June
2003 2002 2003 2002
A Adm Abm Afm

5. Taxation continued

{c) Provision for Deferred Income Tax
Pravision for deferred income tax comprises the estimated labifity at the
applicable incorme tax rates on the following items:

Davelopment expenditure deductible prior to recognition of project profits
Datgrred parinarship income

Unraalised foreign exchange movaments

Deferrad income tax transferrad to the Company fram wholly cwned
Australian subsidiaries in the Australian Tax Consolidated Group upon
gmplamantation of tax corsolidation

Gther

{d} Future Incorme Tax Benefit
Futurs incoma tax banefit comprises the estimated future benefit at the
applicahle incorme tax rates on the following items:

Provisions and accruals nat currantly deductible

Unrealised accounting profit an construction projects

Taxabia profit on sale of investment not yet recognised for accounting
pUpOSses

Tax losses carried forwardg

Daforrad interast costs

Unrealised forsign exchange movameants

Future incame tax transferred to the Compary from wholly owned Australian
subsidiarias in the Australian Tax Consolidatad Group upor: @nplamarntation
of tax consolidation

Gther

Future Income Tax Benefit Nai Taken to Account
Futurs income tax banefit arising from tax (osses not recognised at reporting
date as realisation of tha bhensfit is not regardad as virtually cartain

Land Leass Corporation Limited intends to enter the Australian Tax
Consolidation Regime effective 1 July 2002, however, any ufure incoma tax
bensfita, which may arisa on implementation of the Australian Tax
Consolidations Regims, cannot be ralisbly estimated at this time.

6. Dividends and Earnings Per Share
Dividends

Interim Dividend
10 cents par share paid March 2003 March 2002 9 cents per share}

Final Bividend Declared Subsequent to Reporting Date
20 cents per share payable 18 September 2003
{June 2002 B cents per sharg)

tend Lease Annuat Consolidated Financial Report 2003 19



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

6. Dividends and Earnings Per Share continued
Dividends continued
Dividends Not Recognised at Year End

Since 30 June 2003, the Directors have declared an unfranked fina! dividend of 20 cents per shara, o be paid on 18 Saeptember
2003,

The final effect of this dividend has not been brought to account for the year ended 30 June 2003 as a result of the change in
acoourting policy for providing for dividends {refer Note Hw) Sumirnary of Principal Accounting Policies) and will ba recognised in
subsecuent financial reports.

Dividend Franking

As per the 28 May 2003 announcemert, the final dividenid of 20 cents par share declared sines 30 June 2003 will ba unfranked. This
reprasents a change from Lend Laase Corporation’s pravious policy of only paying fully franiked dividends. The interim dividend paid
on 14 March 2003 {10 cents per shara) was a fully franked dividend.

The dividend franking account balance at 30 June 2003 s nil 30 June 2002 nil} this is caloulated after adjusting for franking credits
which will arise from the payment of income tax provided in the accourts, tax losses utilisad in the current period and expectad
franking dehits arising from refunds of tax in dispute (refer Note 16 Other Assets).

The balance of the franking account has baen calculated on a basis consistent with the Comparny's accounting policies. Lend Leasa
intends o anter the Australian Tax Consolidation Fegime, effective 1 July 2002, which regquires the keeping of a single franking
accourt for the Austraian Tax Consolidated Group. The amount of Fanking credits available to sharsholders disclosad at 30 June
2003 has been measured under the new legisiation as those availabile frorm the Australian Tax Consolidated Group.

Consolidated

June Junes
2003 2002
MNurmter Musmiber
M
Earnings Per Share (EFPS)
Waaighted average shares ard share eguivalants 431.7

Earnings per share *

Basic
Dilged
12 rnths 12 mths
June June
2003 2002
Adm Al

Reconciliation of Alternative Earnings
Met {oss)/profit after income tax attributable to mambers of Lend Lease Corporation Limited used in

calculating basic and diluted EFS 226.3
Exclude: Writedown of BEl businessas after tax

Exclucie: Writeoff of RE businesses' fufure incarma tax bengdits praviously recognised in prior years

Earnings used in caiculating alternative basic and diluted EPS 226.3

Alternative earnings per share (cents} ®
Basic
Diluted

1 An adjustraent factor of 999448 has been appied o prior fnancial year comparatives. This iz atfributabio 1o the bonus alermaent for the prior financial period
relating to the issue of shares at less than market pricge, such as the Share Election Plan and Shars Purchasea Plan,

2 The altemative bazic and dhited eamings per share amonds have been calculated after excluding the impact of the ASS45 .0 milion afler tax writadown of tha
RE: businesses.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash
Sheart tarm investrmerts

Short term investrments earm variable rates of interest which averaged 4.8%
per anram during the year to 30 June 2003 [dune 2002 4.7%).

Gash is managed through a Board approved oredit policy. Throughout the
yaar cash was mostly invested in cormmercial paper and bank bills used by

financia intermediaries and corporates with an accepiable investment grade

crech rating.

Receivables

Current
Trade debiors
L ags: Provision for doubtiul debts

Ralated party receivabiles

Managed oroperty trusts

Controflad entities

Associate entitiss
Fyrmont Trust (Jacksons Landing;
IBM Globhal Services Austradia
tend Lease Retal Partnership
Cithar
Less: Frovision for doubiful debits

Cther receivabies
CapMark advances
Millenniurn Fartners advance
Advances o davalopars on Housing and Community investing HCH
projects
FProcaads from sale of Lend Lease European Mutual Fund
Oihar

Norn Current
Loans made to Directors of controlied entities of Lend Lease Corporation
Othar loans to emiployess
Related party receivables
Cortrofled entitiss
Associate entitiss
Fyrmont Trust (Jacksons Landing)
THE ple
Lass: Provision for doustful delbt
Othar
Less: Frovision for doustful delbt
Other recaivabios
Less: Frovision for doubiful debt

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Consolidaied
June June
2003 2000
ASm

2B7.7
£16.4

Company
June Jung
2003 2002

Adm

0.1

2,787.0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

8. BReceivables continued
Current

Unlass otherwise stated, receivables do not carry interest and are not discounted to present values. They are carried at astimated
amounts recaivable in termas of contractual or other commercial arrangamerts and are recognised in accordance with the accounting
poiicies as st out in Note 1(k) Summary of Principal Accounting Policies. Receivablas are subject to a review of collectability by the
Board of the relevant group company. Frovisions are made for any doubtful debis,

Tha receivables from managed property trusts of AB44.1 milion mainty relates to managerment and asset devalopmert fess accrusd
in relation to General Property Trust {GFT) and Austratian Prime Property Fund {(APPF).

The receivable from Pyrmont Trust of AS21.1 miflion includes trust distrinutions and development fees owing o Lend Lease in relation
to the Jacksons Landing devefopment at Pyrmont.

Gther recaivables of AS74.9 miflion primarily relates to management fees owing and various loans provided in the normal coursa of
Business.

Non Current

The loans made to Directors of Land Lease Corporation or cantroliad antities are i accordance with a scheme approved by
shareholders in the General Maating. Other loans are loans provided o employases.

The raceivable from Pyrmont Trust of AS45.1 miflion is a loan 1o the joint venture to fund development expenditure.

The related party receivables other of A$29.8 milion mairdy comprises loans in relstion to Bovis Lend Lease Private Finance initiatives
PR projects (AB13.0 milion) and advances to partners of developrment projects (AB12.3 million). The balance comprises a number of
other srmall gerns.

Gther receivables of ABZ.S million, mainy related to advances to landowners of davelopment property, is fully recoverable by 2005.
Non currert receivables ars due in accordance with the following schadule:

Consolidated
June Juna
2003 2002
A% A

8.2
46.3
211
75.6

Between 1 and 2 years
Bebtween 2 and & years
Altar 5 years

Consolidatad Campary
June Juns June June
2003 2002 2003 2002
Adm A ASm Am

8. Inventories

Cutrent
Froperty held for sale at cost
Less: Provision for dimination in valus

Construction wark i prograss

Norn Current
Froperty held for sale at cost
Less: Provision for dimination in valus

Totai inventories
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

MNote

8. Inventories continued

Property Held for Sale

Total cost of proparty held for sals includas:
Cost of acquisition
Davelopment expenses
Construction sxpenses
Ratas and taxes capitalised
Borrowing cosis capitalised

Totat cost
Less: Provision for dimiration in valus

Book value

Book vaiue comprises:
nearme producing
Nar incarme producing

Total property held for sale is comprised of:

Biuewater, Kart

Urbsan Cornmunitios, Austrafia
Less: Provision for dirninution
Chapelfieki, Norwich
Owergate, Dundes

Legs: Provision for dirminution
Victoria Harbour, Melbourrs
Darling FPark Stage 1, Sydney
Less: Provision for diminution
Bluewatar Valiay, Kent
Greenwich Feninsuda, London
Fiars Project, San Francisco
St Patricks, Sydney

Shell Centre, London

Less: Provision for disminution
Hickson Road, Sydrey

Other

Less: Provision for diminution

Totai

Land Lease’s 20.7% interast in Overgate, Dundee which was
recorded ininventories at June 2002 has been reclassified to
Note 11 Othar invastrents at 30 June 2003 to refiect Land
Laasa's long tarm holding.

Construction and Development i Progress

Current
Contract costs incurred to date
Frofit racognised to data

L eas: Prograss billings received and recaivabla on complatad contracts

Net construction work in progress

Net construction waork in progress comprises:
Amounts due from customears - inventories
Armourts due to customers - trade crediors

17

Advances on construction projects in progress included in trade
creditors
Retantions on construction projects included in progress hillings

Consolidated Compary
June June June June
2003 2002 2003 2002
ABm Afm Afm A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

9. Inventories continued
Tha amounis due from customears ~ inventories of AB245.0 million at 30 June 2003 relates to Bovis Lend Lease and reprasents costs
nourred on projects in excess of that biled to clients.
The amouris due to custormers - trade creditars of AS597.4 miflion at 30 June 2003 relates to Bovis Lend Lease and reprasents
Billings raised to clients in axcass of costs and profits recognised on thase projects.
Consolidated Sompary
Courdry June Jurie Jura June
of 2003 2002 2003 2002
Newte Origir: Al Abmi AL ABm
10. Equity Accounted Investments
Non Current
Associates
Retirament by Dasign Pty Lid Avstralia
Tras Aguas {Paseo Commarcial Carios 1), Madnid Spain
Forest Gardens Besidential Land Daveloprnent 31{a) Alsstralia
LM Irvarsionas | SA. de GV, (Mexican Dlistressed
Loans) Maxico
LM Irwvarsionas # S.A. de CV. (Mexican Distressed
Loang) htaxico
Catalyst Healthcars (Worcester LK
Darting Park Trust Gparator Pty Limited Australia
General Lend Lease Garmany
Watile Grove Davaloprment 31{a) Alstralia
Chalverton Properties Limited LHe
Land Lease Rosen Real Estate Securities LLC USA
Cther
Less: Frovision for diminution
32
Joint Ventures
Caroling Springs Joint Vanture 31ia) Alsstralia
Pyrmont Trast (Jacksans Landing) 3 Australia
Mirvac Land Lease Village Cansartim (MNewingion} Australia
Mawsason Lakes Economic Davelopment Projact 31{a) Alsstralia
Fox Fetail and Entertainment Precingt Australia
North Lakes Developrnent Joint Vanture Alstralia
Cther
33

Total equity accounted investments
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Consolidated Company
Country June Jura Jurs Junes
of 2003 2002 2003 2002
Note Crigin Afm Abm Al Al
11. Other Investments
Current
Mortgage lnans Usa
Tax cradit propertias LISA
Non Current
Shares in Other Corporations, Interests
in Trusts and Partnerships
Kirng of Prussia Associales 31id) LISA
Land Lease Giobal Property Fund, SICAF Luxamboury
Lend Lease Gvergate Partnarship 31 LK
Lend Laase Retall Partnership 3ihy (B34
Yarmouth Capital Partnars Lirnited
Fartnership § LISA
Austrafian Prime Proparty Fund (APPF} Australia
Lend Laase international Distressed Dabt Fund LUSA
IBM Gilobal Services Austradia Limited Australia
Asia Pacific investrment Company I1APIC ) 31(e} Singapore
Asia Pacific invastment Compary (APIC) 31(e} Singapore
Value Enhancement Fund V USA
Value Enhancement Fund [V UsA
Value Enhancerment Fund Il LISA
Lend Lease SICAY Real Estate Securities Fund Luxemboury
Lend Lease US Real Estate Securities Fund USA
ChBS Bonds LISA
Thai Market project Thaitarg
Lend Lease Asia Water Trust Australia
hulti farnity Co-ivestrnent Funds USA
Real Estate Dabt Fund Co-invastrneris USA
Winn Property Management Usa
Mezzanine Dabt Co-investrnent USA
Tax Crecit Funds Co-investmenis UBA
Dahit Maragemant Fund Co-lrvestrmernt UsaA
Li Funy Distribution Centre China
Bradford Regenaration Co. Ui

Sharas in cordrolled entities
Other

Less: Provision for dirmirution

Totai other investments

Land Lease’s 20.7% interest in Overgate, Dundee which was recorded in Note 8 Invantories at June 2002, has been classified to
Note 11 Other Investmants as at 30 Junes 2003 to reflect Lend Lease’s long term holding.

tend Lease Annuat Consolidated Financial Report 2003 35



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Consolidatad Comparyy
June Jure June June
003 2002 2003 2002
Alm A Ak Afm

12. Property, Plant and Equipment

Lard at Directors' valuation

Buitdings and leasehold improvements at cost
Accurnuiated agpreciation

Fant and aguipment at cost
Accurnidated oepreciation

Leasad plant and squipment at cost
Accurnidated armaorbisation

Total carrying amousnt

Reconciiations
Raconciliations of the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and
sauipment are sst out balow:

Freehold Land

Carrying amount at beginning of financial year
Disposat

Effect of exchange rate movernerts/other

Carrying amoust at end of financial year

Buildings and Leasehold Improvements
Carrying amount at baginning of financial year
Additions

Disposais

REf husinesses writadown

Depregiation

Disposat of antity

Effect of exchange rate movernerts/other

Carrying amousi at end of financial year

Plant and Equipment

Carrying amount at beginning of financid year
Additions

Disposais

REF husinesses writadown

Acauisition through entity acquired
Depregiation

Disposat of antity

Effect of exchange rate movernents/other

Carrying amousi at end of financial year

Leased Plant and Equipment

Carrying amount at baginning of inancial year
Additions

Disposais

Acquisition through entity acquired
Armortisation

Carrying amousi at end of financial year

Total carrying amousnt
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Consolidated Cormpany
June June June Jurs
2003 2002 2003 2002
Afrn Afm ABm ABm
13. Goodwill

Bovis Larwd Leasa Group 791.4

Accurnulated arnarfisation {105.5)

Lend Lease Real Estate Invesimants - US 341.0

Accurnulatad armaortisation 56.3)

Daffiry Group 75.7

Accurnulated arnarfisatian y

Larry Smith

Accurnulated arnartisatian

Torefioct the Directors” valuation of the axpected future bengfits of the

goochedl relating to Land Lease's BE businesses, a writedown totalling

AB2E52.0 million (US$147.8 miflion) has been recognised in the June 2003

consclidated inancial resuits.

{and Lease Feal Estate Invastment goodwill is carrisd at recoverable amount

and all other goodwill is carried at cost less amortisation. Recoverabla

amount is determined in accordance with Lend Laase's accounting policy for

goodwil (Note 1) Summary of Principal Accourting Policies).

14. Management Agreements

FReal Estate Investments

Lend Laase Real Estate investmants - US
Accurnidated amartisation

General Property Trust

Accurniiated armartisation

Australian Prime Property Fund
Accurnulatedd armartisation

Lend Loase US Office Trust

Torafiset the Dirsctors valuation of the expacted future benafits of management agreermenits relating to the Lend Lease RE business,
a writedown totalling AE350.8 mifliors (USEZ10.1 milion} has baer recognised in the Land Lease June 2003 consalidated fnancial
results.

Land Leasa's Real Estate Investiment’s US management agreements are carriad at recoverabls ameount and all other managernenit
agreernarts are carried at cost lass amortisation. Recovarabla amount is determinad in accordance with Lend Lease’s accounting
policy for managemeant agreements {refer Note o) Summary of Frincipal Accounting Folicies).

The Directors” current unrecorded valuation of the Genaral Property Trust managemant agreement is AB147.6 million Qune 2002
AB263.0 milion) based upon a valuation undertaken by Mark Pittodno, a Director of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, The basis of the
valuation was the nat present value of estimated futurs eamings from the managemant agreement at a discount rate of 12.10% (dune
2002 5.65%). The key factors that sontributed to the decrsase in valuation sincs June 2002 were the change to the discount rate
and a ravision of the management fee structure, offset by growth in funds under managemsnt.

The Dirsctors current unrecorded valuation of the managerment agraement betwaen Land Lease and the unlisted APPF pursuant to
the Trust Deed s AB63.7 miflion June 2002 A$61.0 million) based upon an independant valuation by Mark Pittorine, a Director of
Daloitte Touchs Tehmatsu at 30 Juns 2003 of the existing management agresmant. Tha basis of the valuation was the rnat prasent
value of estimated future eamings from the management agreament at a discount rate of 11.10% dune 2002 8.65%). The factor that
contributed to the increase in valuation since June 2002 was the growth in funds under managermeant, offset by the curant markst
trand placing dowmwards pressare on managemeant faes.

As announced on 17 June 2003, Lend Lease entared into an agreament with subsidiaries of Morgan Stanley and Co, Incorporated
Maorgan Starday) for Morgan Stanlsy to assurme ownarship of certain parts of the US real estate squity advisory business. Lend
Laasa's shares in Lend Lease USOT Managemant Limited are included in this transaction. Accordingly, the Directors have alectad
riot to conduct an independsnt valuation of the Land Lease US Office Trust management agreemant.
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Consolidated Compary
June June June June
2003 2002 2003 2002
Afm Afm Ak Afm

15. Other Intangibles
Oiher intangibles
Accirdated amortisation

Other intangibles include AF53.8 milion net of mortgage senvicing rights
which ralate to the origination and acquisition of sendeing rights for
rartgags loan portfolios which are amaortised ovar the e of the rights {on
average 10 years) against the fee incormne generated by the rights,

16. Other Assets

Current

Frepaymearts

Deferred bid costs on projects at preferred bidder status
Met marked 1o market forward exchange contracts
Ciher

Non Current

Frepaymerts

IT systermns

Accurnulatad! arnarfisation

Met marked to markeat forward exchange contracts
Marked to market cross currency swap

Other

Gther non current totaling ABB8.5 miflion includes AS85.3 mifliory which was paid during the financial year 10 the Australian Taxation
Gfice (ATO) in refation to an amended assessment issued for an Australian subsidiary for the yaar ended 30 June 1888, The
armendment relates 16 the forward sale and associated Wastpac share warrants issues agraement withy County Nabwest Securitias
Agstralia Limited in relation to 100 million Westpac shares and includes the payment of additional company tax of A340.7 million,
penatiies of A$20.3 milion and interest of AB34.3 milion. The Directors are vigorously disputing the assessment and wilt be pursuing
all necessary avenuas of objection and appeal. Lend Lease continuas to regard its tax treatment of the fransaction as proper and
remains corfidant of a succassiul legal challenge and that the amounts under the amendead assessment wifl not be charged to the
profit art loss account.

The marked to markst cross currency swap of AS13.1 million ncluded in non current represents the restated foreign exchange assets
on the cross currency swap used to hedge the ABS0G.0 milion medium ierm note dus in July 2005, June 2002 cross currency swaps
were disclosed under Cther Non interest Bearing Liabilities, duse to the relatively weaker value of the AS against the USS at that time
frefer Note 21 Othear Mon interast Bearing Lisbilities),
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Consclidated Cormpany
Jurs June June Jung
2003 2002 2003 2002
Note Adm ABm Afm Afrm
17. Creditors
Current

Trade creditors
Ravarue in excess of costs and profiis recognised on incomplate
orojects &
Daposit received in advance
lnearnad pramium rassrve
[nsurancs claim resene
Ralated party payables
Controflad entities
Oiher
Jther

Non Current
Controlled entities
Insurance claim raserve
Other

The deposit received in advance, represants a £40 million (A%100.0 miflion)
deposit recaived from Capitad Shapping Centres in accordancs with the
forward sale agreement for Chapeifisld, Norwich, Unearned prermium and
insurancs claim resenves relate to Lend Lease’s wholly owned spaciat
purpose captive insurance subsidiary.

18. Botrrowings and Financing Arrangements
{a) Borrowings

Non Current
Commarcial notes

Total borrowings

{b) Finance Facilities
Landd Lease operating businesses have access to
the following fines of cradit:

Total Facilities Available

Bank ovardrafis 14.5
Starwdby cash advance facifities 2750
Bank credit faciiities 2.348.6

Commarcial notes 2438.8

5,074.7

Facilities Utilised at Balance Date
Bank ovardrafts

Starwdby cash advance facifities

Bank credit faciiities

Commearcial notes

Facilities Not Utilised at Balance Date
Bank ovardrafis

Starwdby cash advance facifities

Bank credit faciiities

Commearcial notes

Total facilities available

Footnotes are located on the {ollowing page.
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Consclidated Cormpany
Jung June June Junas
2003 2002 2003 2002
A Abm A ABm

18. Borrowings and Financing Arrangements continued
{b) Finance Facilities continued

Bank Credit Facilities
Tha amouris drawn from the various facilities at 30 June 2003 were:

Unsecured Bank Loans

USH145.0 milion bark faciity at LIBOR plus (.35%, due Decernber 2003 °
£30.0 million bark factity at UBOR plus 0.26%, due Septernber 2003 °
£150.0 million bank facity at LIBOR plus 0.35%, dus Nevembar 2003 °

Secured Barnk Loans

USH300.0 milion secured mortgage warehouse faciity at LIBOR plus
(.575%, due February 2004 °

USE250.0 milion secured mortgage servicing facifity at LIBOR plus 0.875%,
dug March 2004 °

Total bank credit facilities

Commercial Notes

A$500.0 million Lend Lease commercial paper © )
US$250.0 milion Lend Lease 6.75% guaranteed notas, due June 2008”7
A31.5 hillion Lend Lease guaranteed note

Total commercial notes

Total borrowings

1 Avsilaiie cradit faciities have reduced by A$1,138.1 milion primarity due to the cancallation of AST11.5 milion unsscured bank loans and AS230.8 rilion
securad bank inans o reduce excess capacity, The remaining decrease is & result of foreign currancy translation movermantds,

2 This bank overdrait facility is used 10 finance working capital recuirernents for the US operations. Al 30 June 2003, USET 1.5 million {dune 2002 USHER.3

million) of the facikty is utiksed by cutstanding letters of cradit, USE73.5 milkon fune 2002 LSS30.7 milion} i= dzciosed as avallahle craci facilities,

Thiz zhort tarrm money marked facilty i used for general working capital purposes in the Europsan business. The fadiity an act as an overdraft, short term

money market loan or & guaramee facility, Al 30 June 2003, £2.0 milkon {June 2002 £22.5 milkory) of the facility is wllised by outstanding letters of credit. ©21.0

rilion [June 2002 £7 .5 rmilion) i disclosed as availabio credit {aciilies.

This facility iz used for shart ferm working capital recuirsments primariiy in the Eurcpean businass,

Thesa faciities are dtiized by Lend Leass Mortgage Capitsf for the Fannie Mas and the Freddie Mac mortgage originations and are securad by the loans. These

ohligations are genarally settled wilhin 30 - 45 days of grigination. The USE300.0 millien facility expires in Felruary 2004 and the LISE250.0 milion faciity

expires in March 2004, Of the USS250.0 milion faciity LISS103.0 miflion is availabie immadisiely with the remaining USS15C.0 miflion availabie and subject to

markel conditions,

& Lend Lease has & ASSC0.0 milion Australian cornmercial paper program. The amount draven under the faciity at 30 June 2003 was ail, the availabiity of which

iz subject to market condtions.

On 30 Jung 1888 Lend Lease issued 21444 US5250.0 milion of bonds with a coupon of 8.75% pa, due to mature on 30 June 2005,

B In 1999 Lend Lease (U5) Firnance Ing. izssed ASS00.0 milion in notes due Juby 2005 wilk & coupon of 7.5% undar itz A81.5 hilion Multt [zeue Detd Program.
This issue has been swapped nto LSS, The svaiiabifty of the AS1.0 bilion halsnce is subject to market conditions.,

s}

f

—l

The following scheduls profiles the 30 June 2003 borrowings by currency and interast axposure after interast rate swaps and
currency swaps have baan taken into considaration,

lrterast Exposurs Currency *
Fixed Floating A% LSS
Abm ASrn AZm ABm
Bietweaen 1 and 5 yaars 52168 283.0 B84.6
Total 6521.6 263.0 - 884.6

1 Resulting iderest rate exposure after interest rate swaps.
2 Resulting horrowings by clrrency Nciuding currancy Swans.
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18. Botrowings and Financing Arrangements continued
{c) Financing Guarantees
Lend Lease was guarantor of a bank loan faciiity for £1.5 miflion {A%$3.75 miflion) for Chelverton Properties Limited. This was repaid in
January 2003,
Land Lease is guarartor for bank loan facilities for US$13.8 milion (A$21.2 million) for Cordia Serior Living in relation o1 Westmont #
LLC USERA million (AES.2 milion), Rosevilla US$1.0 million (AS1.5 million) and Rosegarden USE3.4 milfion (AS14.5 million).
Lsnd Lease is the guarantor of the prograssive repayment of a AB31 .4 million advance by a financier to SARV Pty Lid, a partnar in a
property devalopment project baing undertaken by Delfin Land Lease.
Land Lease s guarantor of A$10.3 million of a debt facility for the Carcline Springs ioint venture,
Lard Lease is guarartor of 509 of a bank loan facilty for Ofymipic Vitlage/Newington for A368.0 million.
Land Lease has provided guarartess to the equity invastors in two tax credit funds syndicated by the HCI business. Lend Lease has
guarantaad the rate of raturm on USEES5.0 million (AS100.0 million; of aquity invested. At this time, no payments are dua or sxpected
under the guarariess. Foliowing the sale of the HO businesses on 1 July 2003, the purchaser, Muni Mas has indemnified Lend Lease
for thess guaraniess,
Land Lease has given guarantees in support of utiised financing facilities included within the on balance sheet borrowings of A$884.6
rniflior: {June 2002 ARS38.6 miflion) disclosed above, which are held by various controliad entitiss. Thase guarantess are issusd in
respect of antitias internal to Lend Laase and do not constitute an additional obligation to that already existing from on balance shest
Borrowings.
Consolidatad Sompary
Jung June Juns June
2003 2002 2003 2002
Nota A%m A Al Afm
19. Provisions
Current
Dividends 8

Employee benefits

Construction risks

REl restructuring

Employes termination provisions
REl businesses
Othar

Cther

Nort Current
Employes bensfits
Othar
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Consolidatad Comparyy
June June June June
2003 2002 2003 2002
Afm Afm Ak Afm

19. Provisions continued

Reconciliations

Reconcifiations of the carrying amounts of each class of provision, except for
ermpioyes benefits are sat out balow:

Current

Dividends
Carrying amourts at beginning of financial year
Adjustrnent on adoption of AASE 1044 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilties and
Contingent Assets’
Provisions made during the financial year
Final dividend {year ending Jure 2002}
Interim dividend (year ending June 2003)
Interm dividend [year ending Juns 20062)
FPaymants made during the financial year

345

35.1

388
{F3.3}

Carrying amount at end of financial year 304

Construction Risks

Carrying amounis at beginning of financial year
Provisions raised/(written back) during the financial year
Paymants made during the financial year

Gther

Eifects of exchange rate movements

Caryying amount at end of financial year

RE! Restructuring
Carrying amaount at beginning of financial year
Frovisions raised during the finandcial yeay

Carrying amount at end of financial year

Employee Termination

Carrying amaounts at baginning of the fnancial year
Frovisions raised during the financial year - RE restructure
Frovision raised during the Enancial year - Group restructuras
Effacts of exchange rate movermeris/other

Carrying amount at end of the financial year

Cther

Carrying amouris at beginning of financial year
Frowisions raised/(writtery back) during the Snancial year
Incraase through acquisitions of antity

Fayrnenis made during the financial year

Othar

Effects of excharge rate movemants

89.3
(55.8)

2.9

Caryying amount at end of financial year 30.8

Non Current

Cther

Garrying amouris at beginning of financial year
Frovisions raised during the financial year
Fayrnenis made during the financial year
Effects of axchange rate movemeants/other

Caryying amount at end of financial year
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19. Provisions continued
Tha construction risks provision of ABB3.7 miflian mainky comprises a maintanance and warranty provision of A$59.8 million {Juns
2002 ABB0.9 milion} to covar speciic or estimated claims that arise due to defects or lagal disputes in relation to completed projects.
Tha RE! restruciuring provision of A$152.0 miflion, raised in relation 1o the REb writedown was estahlished o cover expenses refated
to restructuring the REE business and primarily relates 1o rationalisation costs.
Other provisions {ourent and non current) tntaliing ARBE.2 milion comprise of a number of provisions including those in respect of
defaults on mortgage foans originated for Fannie Mag AS47.7 million {Jung 2002 A$48.5 million). The balance in other provisions
AF37.5 milion [dune 2002 AR76.9 milion) refates to spacific ems not otharwise provided for in thess Financial Statements,
Consolidatad Sompary
June June June June
2003 2002 2003 2002
Note Abm ASm
20. Other Interest Bearing Liabilities
Current
Deferred settiement on acquisition - development properties
Bluswater lease liability 3t
Finance lease fability
Dther
Non Current
Bluewatear leass liabilty 3t
Finance lease liahility
Dther
21. Other Non Interest Bearing Liabilities

Current

Daterred settlement on acquisition - controfled entities
Daferrad income

Deferrad gain on foreign currency hadges

Cther

Non Current

Datarred settiement on acquisition - controlled entities
Marked to market cross currency swap

Datarred gain on forsign currancy haedges

Other

The current deferred settlement on acquisition of controliad entities of A$12.9 million relatas mainly to deferrad purchasa payments for
the Baston Financial Group (A%11.4 million). Some portion of the deferrad settiement components are contingent on certain
GLECOIMas.

The marked to rmarket cross currency swap of ASSE.3 million ncluded in non currert at June 2002 reprasents the restated forsign
exchange liabilities an the crass curancy swap used to hedge the ABSC0.0 milion mediur term note due in July 2005, The June
20035 swaps are disclosed under Other Assats Non Current dua 1o the appreciation of the AG against the USS (refer Note 16 Gther
Azseis),

Gther items includad in other non interest bearing iabilities are shown at face valus.
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Consolidatad Comparyy
June Jure June June
2003 2002 2003 2002
Abm A Ak Afm

22. Contributed Equity 797.7 797.7
MNote June 2003 June 2002
No, of N of
shares shares
m A%m M ASm
Ordinary shares issuad at beginning of financial year A28.8 765.8
Movaments during the financial year

lssues for:

Dividerid Reimvestment Han 1.0 12.8
Shars Furchase Fan 1.4 17.8
Share Election Plan (SEP) i 0.4

Othar” ) 0.1 0.5

Share buybacks ”

Alloeation to Lend Laass Employves Share Plans 2.0 1.0
Ordinary shares issued at end of financial year 434.5 797.7
1 tha sharss izsued under the SEF represent dividends foragone by SE? participantz. Thesa shares are izsued diraclly from share capital (rather than

regpurchased via on market fransactions) with the numoer of shares izsued based upon the sharg price at the date the dividend paymerds ware foragone.
2 Other issues relate to issues 1o non Exeoutive Directors (35,842 shares). These shares issued are equal in vakue 1o fees which wolkd othenwise be payable to
tha Directors iss approved by shareholders at the 2000 AGA).
3 Share buyoacks insludes 1.1 milkor shares with & vaiue of A38.5 milion which were settied and cancelled i July 2003,
As announced 29 May 2003, Lend Leass has commanced an on market share buyback of up to 10% (43.5 million shares) of s
ssued capital. As at 30 June 2003, 2.9 milfion sharas have baan bought back.
Holders of ordinary sharas are entitlad to receive dividends as declared from tims 1o time and are antitiad 1o one vote par shars at
shareholders' meetings. Ordinary sharehioldars rank after alf creditors in repayment of capital
Consolidated Compary
June June June June
2003 2002 2003 2002
ASm A%m Afm ASm
23. Reserves
Capital Reserve 104.6
Foraign Currency Translation Reserve
Opening balancs at beginning of financial year
Curency fluctuation attrbutabla 1o fransiation and hedging of seff sustaining
foreign operations
Closing balance at end of financial year -
Totai reserves 104.6

Nature and Purpose of Reserves

Capital Resetve

The capital reserve comprises realised capiial profits on the disposal of assets which did not attract Capital Giaing Tax.
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

The Foreign Currancy Translation Resenve recaords the foreign currency differencas net of incorme tax arising from the translation of saff
sustaining forsigr: cperations, the translation of transactions that hedge the Compary’s net investment in a foreign operation or the
translation of foreign currency moneatary iterms forming part of the net investrment in a seif sustaining operation Fefer to Note 1{u)
Surmmary of Principal Accounting Policies),
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MNote

24.

Retained Profits

Retained profits at baginning of Enhancial year

Incraased/decrease) in retained profits on iniial adoption of:
Ravisad AASE 1028 ‘Emplayee Benefits’
AASE 1044 Provisions, Cortingent Liabiltias and
Contingent Assets’

Nat (loss)/profit atiributable to members of Lend Leasa

Corporation Limited

Dividends foregone pursuart to share slection plan

Dividends paid

Retained profits at end of financial year

25.

Qutside Equity Interests in Controlied Entities
Cutside equity interasts in controliad entities comprise:
Lend Eoase Actus (25%)

Lend Lease Korea Ltd 10%:}

Jther

Represanted by:

Iterest in retained losses at end of the fnancial year
Interest in share capital

Totai cutside equity interest

26.

Total Equity Reconciliation
Equity at beginning of financial year

Moverients comprise:

Movernenis in contributed equity

Dividencs paid

Dividends foregone pursuant to share alection plan

Net {lossp/profit atiributable to members of Lend Lease

Corporation Limited

Adjusiment o retainsd profits on initial adoption of;
Ravised AASE 1028 'Employes Benefits”
AASE 1044 ‘Provisions, Corttingsnt Liabilties & Contingerit
Assets'

Cther changes in equity
Movement in Forsign Currency Translation Reserve

22

24

24

24

23

Total revenues, expenses and valuation adjustments
attributable to members of Lend Lease Corporation Limited
Total changes in oulside equity interasts in controlled antities

25

Totai movemaent in eguity for financiai year

Equity at end of financial year

Consolidated

June June
2003 2002
Adm Adm

27485

Comparny
June June
2003 2002
ASm Afm

21458
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27. Contingent Liabilities
Lard Lease has the following contingant liabilities:
Thars ars a numbear of lagal claims and exposuras (other than items included in Notes 28, 31 and 32) which arise from the normai
courss of business. Thara is significant uncertainty as o wheathar a futurs liability will arise i ragpect of these items. The amount of
Hability, i ary, which may arise cannot be measurad reliably at this time. The Directors are of the opinion that all known liabilties have
bean brought to accourt and that adequate provision has been made for any anticipated losses.
Lard Leass, which has a 23% investrmant interast in IBMGSA, has guaranteed in proportion 1o its ownership intarest any moneatary
Hability refated 10 the performance of IBMGSA arising under IT ouisoursirg confracts with Health insurance Commission, Medibank
Private, Westpac and Dapartment of Health.
in certain circumstances, Lend Leass also guaranisss the due performance of particular Group entities in respect of their obligations.
This includes bonding and bank guarantes facilties utilised primarily by the Real Estate Solutions businasses. These guararntess are
provided in respect of activities that are in the ordinary coursa of business and any known losses in respact of the refevant contracts
have basn braught o account.
The Cornparty provides financial guaranteas on bank facilities of cartain entitias. These are disclosed in Mote 18 Borrowings and
Financing Arrangemarts.
Land Lease has provided warranties in connection with tha sale of HCL, HFF and Capblark Senvices and the North American Asset
Managemert (distressed debt) business. The warranties include ownership, authority, compliance with refevant laws, disclosure of
rmaterial issues and accuracy and completenass of information provided. Warrantias have also been given in relation to payment of
taxes and compliance with taxation laws, The amount of liability, if any, cannot be measurad reliably at this time.
The Australizn Taxation Office (ATO) is continuing an audit of the holding cormpany and cartain other Australian subsidiaries within the
Land Lease Group. A number of issuss have baean raised by the ATO in respect of thair audit and discussions are ongoing, The
ultimaie cutcome of the tax audit cannot be refiably estimatad at this time.
Datails of the June 1896 amended assessrmant issuad by tha ATO in relation 1o the forward sale and warranis issue agreemient for
Wastpac shares are disclosad in Note 168 Othar Assats.
Consolidatad Comparyy
June June June June
2003 2002 2003 2002
Abm A A Agm
28. Commitments
{a) Operating Leases
Estimated aggregate amount of oparating lease expenditure agreed or
contracted but not provided for in the financial statements:
Land and buildings - self occupied
Fiant and equipment
Bus within 1 yaar
Blus betweery 1 and § years
Plua later than 5 years
{b  Capital Expenditure
At balance date the aggregate amount of capital expenditure contracied but
riot provided for in the financial statements:
D within 1 year
{c} Controlled Entities

At balance data the aggregate amount of axpenditure contracted but not
proviced for in the financial statermeris:

Due within 1 yaar - Bosen Financial Servicas |
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Consolidated Company
Juneg June Jung Juneg
2003 2002 2003 002
Nee ABm Afm Afrm ABm

28. Commitments continued

{d) Finance Lease Commitments
At halance date the aggregate amount of finance lsases
contracted:

Due within 1 year
e batween 1 and 5 years

Legs: Fulurs lease finance chargss

Lease labhifities provided for in the #nancial statements:

Cugrant 20
MNor Gurrent 20

{g) Investments
At balance date capital commitrmants existed in respect of
interests in partnarships, vestrnants or joint vanturas contracted
bt ot provided for in the financial statements:

Due within 1 year
Lend Eaase Intemational Distressad Debt Fund
Walle Enhancemsant Fund W
Tactical Office Partnarship
Multi farnity limvestmert Funds
Mezzaning Dabt Co-investment
Lend Lease Global Property Fund, Luxembourg
CMBS B-aces
Cihar

Due batween 1 and & years
Frivate Finance Initiatives {PF's)
Multi Farnidy Investrment Funds
Other
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Consolidated Comparny
June June June June
2003 2002 2003 2002

Afm

Adm

29. Notes to the Statements of Cash Flows

{a) Reconciliation of {Loss)/Profit attributable to members of
tend Lease Corporation to Net Cash Provided by Cperating
Activities

Net {loss)/profit atfributable to members of Lend Lease Corporation
Arnartisation and depraciation

Ciain on sale of investments and fixed asseis

Foreign exchange (gain)/loss and currency hedging costs

Equity accounted profit

MNet movement in provisions

Write down of REl US businsssas

MNat bad and doubiful debts expansa

Net cash provided by operating activities before changes
in assets and liabilities

Dacrease/iincrease) in receivables
{incraass)/decreass in inventories

Increase in othar assels
{Decrease)/increase in creditors

Decrease in other fahifitios

Decrease in defarred tax tems
Increase/{decrease) in current tax provision
Drecrease in other provisions

Decrease in other intangibles

Net cash provided by operating activities

Consolidatad

Fecaipts Expanditure
June Juns June June
2003 2002 2003 2002
Afm A Ak Afm

(b Supplementary Information
integrated property developmant recsipts and expenditure:

Bluewater, Kent

Clympic Vilaga/MNewington, Sydnay
Admiralty Industrial Park, Singapore
Touchweood Court, Safihull
Guargate Centra, Dundese
Chapealfisid, Norwich

Jacksons Landing, Sydnay

Varsity Lakes, Gold Coast

Forest Gardens, Caims

Twin Waters/MNorth Shore, Sunshine Coast
Craigiebumn, Melboume

Pakanharm, Melbourmes

Forast Lake, Brishane

Hickson Foad, Sydnay

Springfisld Lakas, Brisbane
Victeria Harbour, Melbourne

St Patricks, Sydnay

Gther
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Consolidated

June June
2003 2002
Note Al A

29. Notes to the Statements of Cash Flows continued

{b  Supplementary Information continued
Distributions from partrerships:

King of Frussia 154
Lardd Lease internationai Distressed Fund 5.6
22.0
incame tax paid in raspect of operations:
Tax paid during the year 5(5) 142.0
Amanded assassment - Westpae sharas 15
142.0
Proceeds on sale/redermption of current investmants:
LLMC Mortgages 345.3
Tax Credit Propartias 344.4
6890.7
Parchases of current investments:
Tax Credit Propertias 344.4
Mortgage Loans 564.5
a08.9
Proceads on sale/redemption of non current irvestments:
North Lakes (Urban Cormmunity)
Paseos Commercial Carlos #
Land Lease Europaan Muiual
YCF {Operations, L 1, L H)
Da Chang 227
Land Lease Porto Retail (Arrabida) 21.2
Kiwi Property Group 205
Calderdals 16.3
Genaral Property Trust Units 14.3
Cther 31.7
126.7
Parchases of non curent investmenis:
Land Lease Giobal Froperties BBY
Land Lease SICAY European Real Estate Securities Fund
CMEBS Bonds
LLFC Enhanced Yiald Daebt Fund 19.0
Land Lease Retail Partriership 240
Land Lease Internationad Distressed Dabt Fund 20.0
Cther 22,6
142.3
Net payment of loans 10 associates/related parties:
Nows Centrurm (Chelverton) 5.0y
THI 10,3
Land Lease Equities, S.A DEC.Y.
Bt Global Services Australia 18.7
Land Lease Giobal Fund 10,5
Cther 0.5
34.0

Prageeds Fom borrowings of A$1,200.8 milion comprised short term drawdowns undar the mortgage loan facility, Repayments of
borrowings of A81,200.5 milkon comprised short terrmn repayments under the mortgage loan facifity.
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Conaolidated

29. Notes to the Statements of Cash Flows continued

{c)

Payments for Controlled Entities

Acquisition Cost
Cash paid for acquisition
Cash paid for acquisition costs

Provdaion for restructure

Total acauisition cost

Cash congidgeration
Cash acquirad

Net outflow of cash

Fair Value of Net Assets of Entity Acquired
Cash and cash equivaleris

Irverioriss

lrwesimaents

Recsivablas

Cther assets

Craditors and borrowings

Frowigions

Net assets acquired
Outside equity interasts at acquisition

Goodwill ar acguisition

Total acquisition cost

BLL
Talacom LE Reosan Tetal Dialfiry
June June June June
2003 2003 2003 2002
A Afm Ak Afm
12.6 25.6
126 256
12.6 25.6
12.6 25.6
(6.0 {313
6.6 255
6.0 .1
11.4
3.1
3.7
0.8 0.1
(1.7 (2.4)
(3.9
12.6 4.6
10,8
126 3.7
21.9
12.6 256

June 2003

Lend Lease Rosen

Gn 1 August 2002 Lend Lease acquired a further 27.5% interast in Larwd Lease Rosen Real Estate Securities, LLC, a real astate
Fwvestment trust manager and stock advisor for consideration of AB25.8 milion. This acquisition increased Lend Lease ownarship

interest 1o 77.5%, making # a controlled ertity {previously sauity accountad).

BLL Telecom

in October 2002 Land Lease acquired 100% of Bovis Land Lease Telecom inc. a cellutar phone natwork carrier for consideration of
AB12.6 milion, as part of Bovis Lend Lease’s J Phone project in Japan. The project involves the project managament of a nationwide

rollout of cellutar networks,
June 2002
Delfin Limited

Gn 10 August 2001 Lend Lease acquired 100% of Deffin Limitad, an urban commiunity developar in Australia for consideration of

AB178.7 million,
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Consolidated
HEF, B Larry Smith

June Juria
2003 2002
ASm ABm

29. Notes to the Statements of Cash Flows continued
{d) Disposals of Controlied Entities
Sale of controlled entities cornprised:

Sale Proceeds

Cash received 5.7
Carrying amount on disposal 3.1

Disposal costs

Profit on disposal 2.6
Carrying Value of Net Assets of Entities Disposed

Cash and cash equivalents 0.3
Praperty, plant and souipment 0.3
Management agreements

Goodwill 24

Cther assets 1.6
Creditars and provisions 1.2
Lend Lease share of net assets disposed 3.1

Cash Flows Resulting from Sale

Cash consideration 5.7
Cash disposad 0.3
Net inflows of cash 5.4

June 2003
Holliday Fenoglio Fowler, LP

G 17 June 2003, Holiday Fanoglio Fowler, LP, a commercial real estate capital intermediary, was sold to managemeant for
corsideration of AS15.4 miion.

June 2002
Larry Smith
Larry Smith, Haly, was sold on 11 December 2001, with an effective date at 1 July 2001,
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30. International Currency Management and Financial Instruments

(a)

Foreign Currency
Foreign Currency Translation

The major farsign currency exchangs rates used in the translation of profit and loss {averags rate) and assats and liabilitias (spot rate)
denaminated in forsign curency are as follows:

June 2003 Jure 2002
Average Spot Average Spot
Hate Rata Rate Rate
LS Dollars 0.520 0.570
Faourids Steriing 0.380 0.380
Euras 0.583 0.583
Singapore Dollars 0.843 0.580

Foreign Currency Hisk

Land Lease's policy regarding forsign currency management is 1o manage currency risk so as to minimise any adverse impact of this
risk and associated costs on the Lend Lease Group's consolidated result. A Financial Markets Risk Committas oversass the
rnanagameryt of the Group's foreign currency exposures within the parameters of the currency risk managamart policy. Speculative
trading is not undertaken.

Wihen hedging its exposures, Lend Lease adopis a strategy using both physical and derivative financial instrurents. In regard to
dervative financiai instrumants, Land Lease mainly uses forward foreign exchangs contracts for hedging purposes.

The fellowing table ssts out the net value to be received under foreign currency contracts, the weighted average contractad exchange
rates and the settlement periods of outstanding contracts,

Weighted Average Recaivabils/Payabla)
Exchange Fate Uneler Contracts
June 2003 Jurs 2002 June 2003 Juns 2002
AF1=) AB1=) AL ASm

Contiracts to Sell Pounds Sterling at an agreed exchange rate
Not later than one year 0.35 121.5
Later thary one year bhut not later than dwo years (.36 41.2
Later than two years but not iater than thres years
Contiracts to Seli US Doliars at an agreed exchange rate
Not later thany one year 1,173
Later thary one year but not later than bwo years 360.4
Later than two years but not later than thres yvears
Contracts to Sell Singapore Dollars at an agreed exchange rate ’
Not later than one year 258
Contracts to Seli Euros at an agreed exchange rate’
Not later than one year 418
Contracts to Buy Japanese Yen at an agreed exchange rate
Not later thary one year
Contracts to Sell Mexican Pesos/Buy US Dollars at an agreed
exchange rate (A$ equivalent) 14.1
Total AS 1,778.0

1 Net position et of by contracts).

The majority of farward exchange contracts ralate to hedges of specific foraign currency exposures including receivablas, payabies,
revenuas, expenses and intercompany transactions and loans. The forward exchangs contracts ars converted to spot rates at
Balance date and the unrealised gains and losses are recorded i the Statermant of Financial Parformarnce or the Forsign Currency
Translation: Reserve. Exchange gains and iosses on forward axchangs contracts are accounted for in accordance with Land Lease’s
aceourntirg policy for forsign currency rafer Note 1{u} Surmmary of Principal Accounting Policiash
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30.

(b)

{c)

international Currency Management and Financial Instruments continued
Credit Risk Exposures

Cradit risk represents tha loss that would be recognised ¥ counterparties failad to perform as contracted. The Lend Lease Audit and
Risk Committes maintaing a Group wids framewaork: for sisk managerment and reviews issues of material risk exposure, including credit
risk.

On Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

The credit risk on financial assets recognised in the Statements of Financial Fosition {excluding investrments of Lerd Lease} equals the
carrying amount, net of any provision for doubtful dalts,

Larwd Lease i not materially exposad to customers in any individual ovarsaas couniry o any individual custornar,

GSradit risk on financial instrurments s managed through a Board approved credit policy for determining acceptable counterpartios.
The countarpartiss are recognisad financial intermediaries with acceptable credit ratings determinad by a recognisad rating agenoy.
Tha policy sete out cradit fimits for each countarparty., The use of any counterparty cutside the policy gpecifications raguires Board
approval,

Off Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

Cradit risk for off balance sheet derivative contracts such as interest rate swaps and forward exchanges coniracts is minimised as
dealing is principally undartaken with courterparties that are recagnised financial intermediaries with acceptable credit ratings
dletarmined by a recognised rating ageancy.

Foreign sxchange contracts are subject to oredit risk in relation to the courtarparty failing to deliver the contracted amount of currancy
at settlerment date. The full amount of the exposure is disclosed in Note 30(a) International Currency and Financial Instrumants,

Interest Rate Risk

Land Leass's exposure 1o interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interast rate for classes of financial assets and financial
liabiitias are sat out balow,

Exposures arise predominantly from assets and liabilties bearing variable interest rates as Land Lease intends o hold fixed rate
asseis and labilitias 1o maturity,

Fixed Interest Maturing In

Weighted Fioating Cher Non
Avarage interest 1 Year or 1o & Morg than lnterest
2mzere§t FRate Less Yeurs 5 Yaars Baaring Total
Note Rate Abm A Afrn ASrm A Abm
2003
Financial Assets
Cash 7
Recaivables 8
Imvesimeants 10,11

Financial Liabilities

Craditors 17
Borrowings © 18
Cther abifities 20,21
Employes entitlemeants 15

Net financial assets and liabiities

Cross cuUrrency swaps 16

Footnotes ara located on the following page.
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30. International Currency Management and Financial Instruments continued
{c) Interest Rate Risk continued

Fixad Interast Maturing In

Weightad Fiaating Over Non
Average interest 1 Year or tto s Bore than lnterest
interast Rate Less Years 5 Years Baaring Totat
Note Rate ' AZm ASm ASrm Afm ASmn Afm
2062
Financial Assets
Cash 7 3.84% 5731 3259 5.1 9049
Recaivables B 7.02% 16.1 10.5 G 2,206.3 2,253.0
Irvesimants 10,11 1,347.0 1,347.0
588.2 3364 0.1 - 35784 4,504
Finangcial Liabilities
Creditors 17 22130 2,130
Barrowings © 18 8.70% 263.0 6758 938.6
Other abifties 20, 21 S17% 31.2 87.7 1611 460.0
Dividends payable 15 381 394
Employes entiflements 14 163.0 153.0
263.0 3.2 943.3 - 2,566.2 3,803.7
Net financial assets and liabilities 328.2 305.2 (943.2) - 1,012.2 700.4
Cross curmency Swaps 21 {55.3) {55.3)

1 Does notinclude non inlerast bearing financiaf instruments. The effect of the interes! rate swaps is incorporatad into the weighted average interest rate.
2 Inchedes impact of interast rale swaps.

{d} Net Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities
The fair values of financial assets and ahilities are determined by Lend Lease on the following basis:
On Balahce Sheet Financial Instruments

The net fair vadue of financial assats exceeds the carrying amount and the net fair value of financial liabilities are equivalent to thair
carrying valus,

Eauity investrnants traded on organised markets have been valued by reference ta market prices prevailing at balance date. For non
traded equity Fwestmarts the net fair valus is an assessment by the directors based on the underlying net assets, future maintainabls
eamings and any special creumstancss pertaining o a particular investrant refer Note 10 Equity Accounted frvesimants and Note
11 Othar nvestmants),

The carrying amounts and net fair values of financial assets and liabilitiss as at the reporting date ars as follows:

Consolidataed 2003 Consolidated 2002
Nat Fair MNat Fair
Carryirg Market Carrying Markst

Arnourit Walua Armount Walue

Abm Afm Ak Afm

Financial Assets

Cash 8041 G041
Recaivablas 2.053.0 2,283.0
Invesiments tracecd 0.8 ¢.9

Investimernts non fraded 1,348.2 1,743.0

4,504 .9 4,801.0

Financial Liabilities

Craditers 22130 2,213.0
Borrowings 038.6 938.6
Other Eabiities 480.0 460.0
Dividends payabla 39.1 391
Employes entitlerneanis 153.0 153.0

3,803.7 3,803.7

Footnotes are located on the {ollowing page.
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30. International Currency Management and Financial Instruments continued
{d} MNet Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilities continued
Off Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

The gross assets and liabilities relating to forward exchange contracts ars not recorded on the Statements of Financial Position at 36
June 2003, The batancas relating to forward forsign axchangs contracts included in othar assats above (refer Nota 16 Other Assets)
reprasents the net urvealised gain resufting from converting the forward exchange contracts 1o spot ratas at balance data. This also
reprasents the nat fair value of these contracts as diselosed balow.

Tha net fair value of Bnancial assets or financial kabilities arising from interast rate swap agreements {including the currency and
interest portion of the cross currency swaps) has been determinad as the marked to markat value.

Land Lease (US) Finance Inc. executed oross currsncy swaps on its ARB0G.C million Madium Term Note issue {Note 180) Borrowings
and Financing Arrangements). Under the swaps, Lend Lease is paying US UBOR +58 basis points, and has fixed a ARUSE exchange
rate at July 2005 of 0.633 for the face value of the notes. The carrying value of this swap at 30 June 2003 s A313.1 million. The net
fair vaiue is a receivable to Lend Lease of AR37 .1 milion. The difference betwesn the carrying value ard net falr value i the interast
portion of the cross currency swap. Interast rate swaps have been undertaken 1o swap the US UBOR exposure to fixed and the
rnarked 1o market” liability is A$35.7 milion.

Consolickated 2003 Consolidated 2002
Carrying Net Fair' Carrying Met Fair

Amouri Wele

A Abrm

Forward foraign sxchange contracts 1454 145.4
Imterest rate swaps {401}
Cross currency swaps {55.5) 39,43
0.1 65.8

Land Lease Corporation and certain of its controliad antities have potential financial kabilities, which may arise from certain

contingancias disclosed in MNote 27 Contingent Liabflitiss.

1 Tha net {air value includes the ‘marked to market’ value of the $144a bond and Medium Termn Note izsue falen refer below o net fair value of intarset rate and
CY0SS CLIBNCY SWEDS).

2 Recorded on & net basis in Note 16 Cther Assets at June 2003 and June 2002,
3 Darrying value included within Mote 18 Other Assets at June 2003 and Nole 21 Mon Inferest Bearing Liskdities st June 2002,

tend Lease Annuat Consolidated Financial Report 2003 45



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Contribution to

Operating Profit/{Loss)

Adtar Tax Book Value
June Junas June June
Cisographic 2003 2002 2003 2002
Ragion Nedte ASm ABm
31. Interest in Major Business
Undertakings, Projects and
Investments
&l Urban Communities, Ausiralia Aust & Pacific 89,10
o) Jacksons Landing, Sydney (Pyrmont Trust) Aust & Pacific 8,1C
{cl  Victoria Harbour, Malbourne Aust & Pacific g
{d)  King of Prussia Nih America 11
{e)  Asia Pacific lnvestrment Company
AP & ARG Asia 11
i Bluswater, Kent Europa g
o Chapslfisid, Norwich Europs 9
it Lend Lease Retail Partnership Europe 11
iy Owergate, Dundes Europe 89,11

The fellowing detalled disciosures are in respect of continuing business undertakings, major projects and investrments and excludes
discortinuing aperations.

Australia and Pacific

(a) Urban Communities, Australia

Lrban communities are masterplanned residential developments across Australia that are developed in stages over anumber of
years, Lend Laase's Urban Communities business currenily comprises of 21 projects in a geographically diverse portfolio.

Significant Frojects Total Lots Yo Settled  Joint Venture Partners

Equity Accounted Invesiments

Carcdine Springs Joint Venture, Melbourme 8,083 A2%, Malton East Eandowrers Trust {(50%:)
Forest Gardens Residential Land Development,

Caims 1,802 43% Braikyo Group {50%)

Ciolden Grove Development, Adelaida 4,000 100% Eand Management Corp. (B0%)
fawson Lakes Economic Davelopmaeart

Project, Adslaida 3,033 27% Land Management Corp. (50%)
Wattle Grove Development, Sydnay 3,188 100% Defence Housing Authority (50%)
inveniories

Forest Lake, Brisbanes 7.548 G0% NAA (100% Lend Laase)

Warsity Lakes, Gold Coast 1,063 51% NAA (100% Lend Eaase)
Craigishum Garden Vilags, Melbourns 3,186 42% N/A 100% Lend Eaase)
Springfield Lakes, Brisbane 4,068 15% N/A (100% Lend Laase)

Other

I addition to the Urban Communities projects, Lend Lease holds a 50% interest in Retirernant by Design, a retirerment
communities business oparating in Sydney, Melbourne and Brisbane.
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31. Interest in Major Business Undertakings, Projects and Investments continued
Australia and Pacific continued
(b) Jacksons Landing, Sydney (Pyrmont Trust)

Jacksons Landing is a joint veniure baetweery Lend Lease (BO%), Karry Propartiss [25%) and the Singapore Government
lrvastrnent Corporation (259%). it is a developrment project that is predominantly residential and wilf consist of approxdimately
1,341 units at project complstion in 2007. Tha staged masterplannsed community has 700 mietres of water frontage onto
Sydray Harbour and is fess than one kilometre from the Sydnay CBD.

The devaloprmant consisis of rasidential and commercial components:

Residential
No. units N solc at

Fracinet Construction Status released 30 June 2003 % Sold
Regatta Wharf A Complate 144 144 100%
The Elizabeth Complete 44 44 100%
The Bum Store Complete 13 13 100%
The Tarraces Compiate 62 G2 100%
Flastview Cormplate 150 180 100%
MeCaffarys Complate 154 152 BE%
Reflections Complate 75 77 9%
The Distillery Commenced September 2002 95 &7 71%
The Guarry Comrmenced January 2003 89 39 449%
Jones St Terraces Commeanced Jaruary 2003 12 12 100%
Total 841 760 90%

202 units were rsleased during the year, with sales of 148 units achisvad. Of the completed precinets all but three units released
had been sold as at 30 Juns 2003,

Commercial

The current approved masterplan for the project incorporates approdmataly 30,000 square metres of commercial usage. The
frst commiercial precinet, known as 'The Glasaworks', consists of one building of 12,950 square metras and was completed
and sald i the year ended 30 June 2001.

I Decerribar 2002, the St Hifiers Group purchased the 1,200 souare mietre Tablet House in s dilapidated condition and are
currently refursishing the building.  In May 2003, the St Hifiers Group alse purchased the 3,000 sguare metre Cooperage in its
current condition.

The balancs of the commercial space will be developed in the future, subject to market demand.
{c) Victoria Harbour, Melboumne

The Victaria Harbour project comprises the right to develop a 30 hectare site, within the Docklands precinet, adjoiring
Melbaurra's CBD. There is 3.5 kilomatres of waterfront and an expacted population of approximately 15,000 rasidents working
or living in the precinet.

Construction of 58,780 square metre campus style office building for the National Australia Bank is expectad to be complstad
by Mey 2004,

Lend Lease is providing development, dasign, construction and project finance services. Genaral Proparty Trust wilt swn and
manage the asset.

The market release for the first rasidential tower, Dock &, commencead in November 2002,

The project is of a stagad nature that can be contracted or expandead in line with market conditions,
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31.

Interest in Major Business Undertakings, Projects and Investments continued

North America

(d)

Asia

(®)

King of Prussia

Lend Lease has a 50% interast in the King of Prussia Associates which cwnis and operates the King of Prussia shopping
complax in Parmaylvania, USA. Lend Lease's investment in the partnership is recorded at an amount eguivalent to its
partnarship contributions and share of accumuiated sarmings.

Asia Pacific Investment Company {APIC}

Lend Eease holds an 18% interast in AFIC which was estahlishad as an investmeant fund to enable institutional investors to
imvast in Asian property opportunities. During the financial year ARPIC was split into hwo entities APIC and APIC i, wharshy
cartain retail assets of ARIC were transferrad to ARIC I As at 30 June 2003, Lend Lease held an 189% interast in each fund.
Lend Eease is a sponsar pvestor of APIC and AFIG || and acts as investrnant advisor to the funds. Lend Lease's investrment at
30 June 2003 is its madmum commitmant in ARIC (AS37.8 million) and AFIC 3 (AS39.9 milor).

Europe

{t

Bluewater, Kent

Biuewsaier is a rmajor out of town retail and letsure destination located in nortbwast Kent, United Kingdom. The development was
complated and opened 1o schedule on 16 March 1898, Bluewater includess 153,000 squars metres of retall and leisurs space,
with three principal anchor storas, John Lewis, Marks & Spencer and House of Fraser, and a cinama complex, which openad in
Juns 1889, Land Lease is the manager of Bluewater and currenitly holds a 309% interest in the cantre.

Lend Lease’s Remaining 30% Interest

Lend Lease is reguired under the terms of a head lease to retain a 30% interest in order to service the head lsase payments.
Lend Lease has a call option on the head lsase which can be exercisad i the years 2005, 2008 and 2011,

Frudential has an option to acquire a further 15% interest in Bluewater, should Lend Lease exercise one of its call options.
Frudertial's aption is at a pre agreed price formula, which essentialy refates to the Nat Operating Income (NOI at the time and
an agreed capitalisation rate of betweaen 7.25% and 7.75%. The vaius will be fargely dependerit upon rental growth achisved at
Bluewater's first major rent review in 2004,

The remaining 16% interest (or 30% if Prudential choosas not 1o exercise i option) can be sold at market value # Lend Lease
axarcises one of its call options. The price of the remaining interast will be dependant upon a numbear of factors including:

- tha tirning and means of disposition;

- state of UK retadl market at time of disposition;

- irvestor demand for retait property assats like Bluawater:
- trading performance of tha centre; and

- rental growth,

Lend Lease’s utirmate profitability from Bluswater is also dependent an the above factors and the amount of profit share
payable to Lafarge, the originad owniars of the land. The profit share is up to a maximum amount of £5G.0 million after Lend
Lease has recaived an agread priority refum in excess of the total developmant costs,

Valuation

The whole centre has been valued as at 30 June 2003 by Paut Wellenden FRICS, a Director of DTZ Dabenham Tie Leung
Lirnited, Chartarad Surveyors and Intermational Property Advisors, London, at £1,430.0 milion (A$3,575.0 million) [dune 2002
£1,339.0 million). The valuation was carried out in accordance with UK vaiuation standards as set out in the RICS Appraisal &
Waduation Manual, having regard to current rental and capital values and market conditions as at 30 Jure 2003,

Full details of Bluswater are disclosed in the 30 June 2001 Annual Consolidated Financial Report. Thers wers no significant
changas to these details as at 30 June 2003,
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31. Interest in Major Business Undertakings, Projects and Investments continued

Europe continued

(g)

(h}

@)

Chapelfield, Norwich

I Jdune 1858, Land Lease purchased a site i1 the centre of Norwich, located in East Anglia, England. The carrying value of
AB183.1 milfion includes acquisition costs of £32.2 milion (ASR0.5 milfion} plus developrment costs capitalised to date.

Fre: lattings have been securad and at 36 June 2003, House of Fraser had been signed as anchor and seven major retailers and
a major catering unit have beery contractad.

The centre was Iorward sold to Capital Shoppirg Centres ple {C8C) on 14 May 2002,

Construction of the centre commeancead during the year, with practical complation scheduled for Septembear 2005, CSC will
work with Lend Laase through the development phass, providing asset and centre managerment. Lend Lease is responsible for
tha dasign, construction, development and letting of Chapelfisld.

Under tha terms of agreement, CSC have contributed £40.0 milion (A$100.0 sriflion) on the commancamant of the
developmeant. A second payment will be made following practical completion, subiact 10 the centre baing 70% let by area and
valush

Theraafter, furthar payrmants will be made by reference to subsequant lettings achieved. The total paymant will not exceed a
maximum of $205.0 milion (ARY37.5 mifliory).

Lend Lease Retail Partnership (Retail Partnership}

The Retail Partrership is a Limited Partnership, which was launched in February 1999 with £25.0 million {A362.5 miflior)
cormmitted by Lend Lease and a further £385.0 million (A$887.5 million} committed by 10 major investars mainy UK
inatitutions). In March 1989, the total subscriptions increased to £505.0 milkon (A$1,262.5 miflion) with commitments received
from an additional nine nwvestors. Lend Leasa is the manager of the Ratail Parinarship which is regulated under the UK Financial
Sarvicas Act.

The Retail Partnership acquired a 25% interast in Bluswater for £280.0 milion (A70G.0 milion) based on an independent
valuation. Tha Retail Partnership also acquired the land interast in Solinuli {in the Weast Midlands of the United Kingdomj for
£17.5 mifliory and enterad into an agresment to acquire on complation a 100% interest in the Touchwood Shopping Centre,
based on a pre determined pricing formula,

The centre opened on schadule in Septernber 2001 and the sale completed for £144.6 milion (A$361.5 million). Foliowing the
achigvernent of additional leasing 1argets, further sales were mads o the Retail Partnership under the terms of the devaloprmert
sendicaes agreament at a valua of £30.7 miflion [A$76.8 milion).

Overgate, Dundee {Overgate}

Overgate is a 420,000 sq. ft shopping centre in Dundee, the fowth largsst city in Scotland. Lend Lease holds a 30.7% interast
ir the Lend Lease Overgate Partriership (LLOF) which ownis the long leasshold and frashold interest in the centra.

UTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, Chartered Surveyors and Intermational Property Advisors, London valuad the centre at
£132.0 milion (A$330.0 mifior) at Juna 2003. This valuation s £0.9 million {AS2.3 milion) above the cost of the entire centra
resutting in a reversal of the provision againast the carrying value of the centre.
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Other

Balance
Date
32. Asscociates

integrated Property Development
Catalyst Healthcare (Calderdaie) ple’ 31 Mar
Catalyst Healtheare (Worcaster) ple 31 Mar
Exchaquer Partnarship 31 Mar
Tres Aguas FPasec Commaercial Carlos i),
Maglriedl? 31 Dec
Retiremant by Dasign Py Ltd 30 dun
Forast Gardens Residential Land
Davelopment 30 Jun
Wattle Grove Development 30 dun
Jacobhs Lend Lease (Asia) 30 Jun
Other
Real Esiate Investments ~ Equity
OFT Operator 30 Jun
Generall Lend Lease 30 Jun
Lend Eease Forto Betall (Arrahida
Shopping Centre) * 31 Dec
Other *
Heal Estate Investments -~ Debt
LLM irversionas § A de OV, 30 dun
LEM Inversionas § S A de C WL 30 dun
Lend Esase Hyperion Capital Advisors,
LLC 31 Dec
Lend Eease Mexico 30 dun
Other *
Capital Services
Chebvarton Froparties Limited ® 31 Mar

Less Provision for diminution

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Share of Associates’

Profitdloss)

fntarest After Tax
Jung June June Jung
2003 2002 2003 2002
94 Y A Afrm

50.0%
48 5%

50.0%

IvBSITENT I the agsotiates or cthar income sUCh as Guirsntee fees ofo,

2 Sold during the year 1o June 2002,
5ol during the year 1o June 2003.

s}

&

hiave Doan made.
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Walus
June Jung
2003 2002
Abm Adrm

Reflacis the contribution 10 profit after tax from ordinary activilies of equity accounted profits and losses anly. Does not include any prosdsion raised against the

Other relates to agsociates whose size and impact on the rasults for the vear are not significart indhidually o in agaregate and tharefore no further disclosures



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Junas June
2003 2002
ABm
32. Associates continued
Results of Associates
Share of associates' ordinary profit before incomsa fax 30.8
Share of associates' income tax benefit/faxpensa) attributable to ordinary profit 1.7
Share of associates’ net profit — as disciosed by associates 29.1
Adjustrnent arising Fom sgutty accourting
Amortisation of goodwdl and managerment agreaments 0.4
Borrowing cosis capitalisad 1.5
Amnortisation of fair value adjustments
Othar 0.4
Share of associates’ net profit — equity accounted 29.8
Share of Post Acquisition Retained Profits
and Reserves Attributable to Associates
Retained Profits
Share of associates' retained profits at beginning of financil year 0.3
Share of net profit of associaies 28.8
Dividends fom associates {26.5)
Disposal of associates 1.8}
Effect of exchanga rate movamants 1.5
Share of associates’ retained profits at end of financial year 0.3
Movements in Carrying Amounts of lnvestiments
Carrying amourt of nvesimeanis in associates at beginning of financial year 76.1
Acquisition through entity acquired during the fnancial year 41.3
Irvesimant in associates acouired during the financial yaar 84
Share of associates' net profit 25.8
Dividands raceived fom associates {Z6.5}
Other non profit distributions from associates 121
Disposal of associates {23.0}
Other adiusimants ' {20
Carrying amount of investments in associates at end of financial year 91.8
Commitiments
Share of associales' capital expenditure and leasse commitments contracted but not
providad for and payabla
Due withiry 1 year 54.4
Dug between 1 and & years 54.8
108.0
Contingent Assets & Contingent Liabilities
Share of associates' contingant assets & cortingent abilitios -
Summary of Financial Position of Associates
Currant asseis 283.8
Non curgert assets 388.7
Total assets 672.3
Current liabilitias 153.1
Nor current lizbilties 433.0
Totai lizbilities 586.1
Met assets - as reported by associates BB.2
Adjustrments arising from equity accounting
Gioodwill fmat of amortisation) 586
Net assets - equity adjusted 91.8

1 Inciudes exchangs rate MOvVernent.
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Shara of Profit/Loss) Book

fntarest Aftar Tax Value
June June June Juna Juns June
Balance 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Diate 9% % Afm Afn ABm ABm

33. Joint Ventures
Joint Venture Entities

Project and Construction

Management
Jacobs Lend Lease, frelarcd 30 Sep 2.0
Othar 0.3
2.3
Integrated Property
Development
Fox Studios Retall and Entartairnment
Pracinet 30 June 4.7
Mawsar: Lakes Economic
Davelopment
Froject 31 Dec 6.5
North Lakes Development Joird
Venturs 30 Jure 24.5
Pyrrmand Trast 30 Juna 13.3
Mirvac Lend Lease Village
Consortiurm
Newingten Precinets 1 & 3) 30 June 8.0
Caroding Springs Joint Vantura 30 Juna 12.8
Other * 2.0
72.0
Total 74.3
1 Sold during the year to 2003,
2 Diher relates 1o joird vantures whose size and impact on the resuits for the yaar are not significant individually or in agoregaie and therefore no further
disciosures have been made,
Juneg June
2003 2002
Al ABm
Statement of Financial Position
Lerd Lease’s share of the assets and liabilities of joint veriure entitias consists of:
Current asssis ALY
MNon current assets 138.3
Totai assets 279.0
Current liabilities r4.9
MNon current ahilities 1628
Total fizhilities 297.7
Other adjustments 13.0
Share of net assets - equily adiusted 74.3
Lend Lease's Share of the Resulis of Joint Yenture Entities
Revarue 1253
Expanszes {120.7)
Profit before tax 4.6
Income tax expensa {G.4)
Net profit after tax 4.2
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Juna Junes
2003 2002
ABm
33. Joint Ventures continued
Share of Post Acquisition Retained Profits Attributable to Joint Venture Entities
Sharg of joint venture antities’ relained losses at baginning of financial year (15.3
Acquisition: through entity acquired during financial year 1.7
Trarsfer fram joint venture cperations to entities 1.5
Shars of joint venture entitias’ net profit 4.2
Drawings from partnarships [37.6)
Disposal of joint vantures
Share of joint venture entities’ retained losses at end of financial year 45.5
Movements in Carrying Amount of Soint Venture Entities
Carrying amaunt at the baginning of financial year 37.2
Inerease through: entity acquired during financial year 8.9
Transfar from joint venture operations o entities 14.8
Contributions to the joint venture antities 28.3
Share of joint vanture antities’ profi 4.2
Drawings from the joint venture entities [37.5)
Other non-profit distributions from joint veniures 4.2)
Other adjusimants 1o carmrying value 228
Disposal of investments
Caryying amount at end of financial year 74.3
Refer to Notes 27 and 28 {or details of contingent liabilities and commitmients.
Share of Profit
lterest After Tax Book Valua
June June SUNE Jura Jurs June
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
% % Abm Abm Adm AZm

Joint Venture Operations

Integrated Property Development
Drarling Park Stage B Joint Veriure

Capital Services
tanukau Wastewater Servicgs (N7)
Seaview Project Limited

Jung

2002

A
nefuded in the assets and lizbilities within these consolidated financial staterments are the foliowing items
which represent Eand Lease's interest in the assals and Habllities employad in joirt venture operations:
Cash 78
Recsivablas 8.9
lrweritarias - properties held for resale 22.4
Proparty, plant and eqguipment 0.5
Totai assets 39.7
Frewdsion for diminution - Darling Park Stage 1§ 11.8
Accounts payable and borrowings 2.0
Total lizhilities 13.8
Net assets 259
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Year End Year End
Foraign 30 June 30 June

Souniry of 2003 2002
Coundry of  Businass interest interest
oo Operation Y% %

34. Controlled Entities
Tha material cortrolled entities of the Group are:

Project and Construction Management

Australia

Bovis Land Lease Py Limited Aust 100%
International

Bovis Lend Lease Hualdings, Inc, USA LSA 100%
Bovis Lend Leass, Inc. USA USA 100%
Bovis Lend Leass LMB, Inc. UsA USA 100%
Bowis Land Lease Holdings Limited L UK 100%
Bovis Lend Lease Limited L UK 100%
Bovis Land Laass International Limited K UK 100%
Bowvis Lend Lease Overseas Heldings Limited LK L 100%
Bowis Eend Laase Project Consulting (Shanghai) Co Lirmitad Ch Chi 100%
Bowis Land Lease Projacts Ple Limnited S'pora S'pors 100%
Beonis Land Lease Inc Braz Braz 100%
Beowis Eand Lease Microslectronics Group BY Neth Neth 100%
Bowis Lend Lease Microslectromics Holdings BY Neth Neth 100%
Bowis Lend Lease Holdings GmibH Ger Ger 100%
Bovis Lend Lease Group Limitad LK L 100%
Integrated Deveiopment Businesses

Australia

Larwi Lease Devaloprnent Pty Limited Aust 100%
Delfin Larwi Lease Limied Aust 100%
Delfin GC Limited Aust 100%
International

Lend Lease Europe Haldings Limited LK L 100%
Land Lease BEurope Limited K ;14 100%
Blueco Limited L LA 100%
Land Leass Continental Holdings Limited UK UK 100%
Land Lease RES (LK) Limited LIk UK 100%
Land Leass (UK) Managament Services Limited L UK 100%
Land Lease BEurope Finance Pio (0134 ;14 100%
Real Estate Investments

Australia

GHT Managemaent Limited Aust 100%
Lend Lease Real Estate Invastments Limited Aust 100%
International

Land Lease Europe Retal Investrmenis Limited UK UK 100%
Lend Lease Beal Estate Investments Pte Limited SPore S'Pore 100%
Land Leass Mortgage Capital, L LSA LSA 100%
Land Lease Mortgage lnvestmaents, Ine UsA USA 100%
Tha Boston Financiad Group Lirmnited FParinership USA USA 100%
Lard Lease (US) Holdings, ine USA USA 100%
Land Lease (US) Services, Inc. USA USA 100%
Land Lease {US), Inc. USA USA 100%
Landg Lease (US) Finance, Inc. USA LISA 100%
Lerd Lease Beal Estate Invastmeants, Ine. USA USA 100%
Larwd Lease Agri Business, inc. USA USA 100%
Caphark Services LP USA USA 100%
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Yaar End Yaar Eng
Farsigr: 30 Juns 30 June

Courtry of 2003 2002
Country of  Business lrterest Interest
Incorp'n Ciparation % %

34. Controlled Entities continued

Real Estate Investmentis continued
International continued

Land Lease Asset Management LPP USA LiSA 100%
Land Lease Feal Estaie Investmants GmbH Gar Cier
Equity Investmentis
Lerd Lease Custodian Pty Limited Aust 100%
Group Services
Australian
Land Leass Corporation Limited Aust
Land Leass Finance Limited Alst 100%%
Land Leass Intemnational Py Limited Aust 100%
Land Lease Management Services Lirmnited Aust 100%
Abbreviations:
Aust Australia Neth Netherlands USA United States of Amarica
Braz Brazil S’pore Singapore
Ger Giermany UK United Kingdom
Contribution to
nterast Date Consideration Consolidatecd
Held Acquired/ Faid/Receted  Profit/{Loss) After Tax’

% Disposed ASmn Afm

June 2003

Acquisitions
Project and Construction Management

[rtermational
Biovis Lend Lease Telecom, Inc

Real Estate Invesiments
Irtermational )
tend Lease Rosen Raal Estate Securities, LLC”

Bisposals
Real Estale Investments

International
Holliday Fenoglio Fowler, LF

June 2002
Acquisitions
integrated Development Businesses

Alstralia
Baln Group 100.0% 10 Aug 01 173.5 12.6

Disposals

Real Estate Investments
Australia _
Biricawell Pay Limitad® 100.0% 11 Sept O
Intermational
Earry Smith & Associates SRL 100.0% 1 Juk O 5.7 (.2
1 Excludes ary intercompany transacions for the wear.
2 Lend Leass (US) Inc asquirad an additionsal 27 5% interest (50% in June 2002) in Rosen Reat Eslate Securities, and 1t iz now coneokdated. The acouisition
datalis relate ondy 10 this additonal interest.
3 Deregistered/diszolved during the year,
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Consolidatad Sompary
June June June June
S003 2002 2003 2002
Nete A% Afm A Afm
35. Employees’ and Directors' Compensation
{a) Total Employee Benefit Liabilities Recognised in the
Financial Statements
Craditors - current
Frovision fur empioyss beneafits - current 19 2.2
Frovision for armployes hanafits - non currerd 19
0.2
{b)  Superannuation/Pension Funds

Land Lease sponsors a nurmbar of pension/superannuation funds giobally which provide benafits for employess or thelr dependants
an retirarment, redundancy, disability or death. In the majority of casas, the funds provide henefits in the form of lump sum/pansion
paymants. Contributions o the funds are generalty bassd on a percentage of employess' salaries. Lend Leass is obliged o
contribute 1o the funds in accordance with thair governing Trust Deeds. Condributions are set on a regular basis at lsvals in
accordance with actuarial assessmerts.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Of tha pension/superannuation funds outlined above, a numbier are dafined barefit plans which, afthough closed to new mambers,
have banefits accruing to s existing members.

Amounts Recognised in the Financial Statements

Details of contributions to the defined benefit plans during the year and contributions payable at 30 Juns 2003 are as follows:

Consolidatad Comparyy
June June Juria June
2003 2002 2003 2002
AD Am Adm

28.8

Lend Lease contributions to the plans

Lend Lease contributions payvabile to the plans at reporting date

irtormation relating to the defined benafit plans based on iest actuarial assessmeants and financial reports of the funds are as
foalleyws:

2003 2002
Far Mlar
Assots at Assals a
MNet Totat Total Nat Total Tetal
Market Avcried Excess/ Yesied hMarkat Accrued Excess/ Wasted
Bierisfiis * (Dreficit} Benafits Value Banefits * (Dreficit) Benefits *
Ad A% A AT Abm ABm ABm
tend Lease Superannuation
Furyd (Australia) | 238,89 168.8 711 163.9
Lend Leass Supplemerial
Retirernant Plan US? 31.4 323 G.9) 3841
The Beovis UK Panasion
Scheme” 344.8 279.0 55.8 2531
6164 480.1 136.0 452.1

1 The fund has defined benefits and defined contribution componants. Plan assets are based upon the mast recerd financial statements of the fund., being 3¢
June 2003, Vested benefits and fotal scorued benefits are bazed on sctuirial reviews performed as at 1 January 2003 by G, Hofley, FLAA, {Comparative
amaounts are as of the acluariat review performed as at 1 January 2000.)

2 Plan assete and vested benefis are based upon the most recend asset valuations and astuarial reports, Total accrued benefils are based on acluaris reviews

performed as at 30 Juna 2002 by Milirman. (Comparatve amounis are as of the actuarial revisw parformed as at 30 June 2001).

Flar: assets are based on the most racen financial statermerds of the fund, being 31 March 2003, (Comparative plan assets are based on the fund's 31 March

2002 financial slatemants), Vested benefits and tolal acorued benefits are based on actuarial reviews performed as a1 31 March 2002 by 8 N, Masewel, F.1L4,

(Comparative acorued and vested benefits are based upon the actuarisd review performed as at 1 Movember 1899,

As al 30 June 2003, based on market values, the defict was ©B3.0 midkor (A5207.5 milior). (4s at 31 March 2002, based on the 31 March 2002 sctuarial

wallation which was undertaien al 30 August 2002, the deficit was £25.4 milion (A365.2 million)). & review of the funding program has resulted o the

contribution rate for smgloyess being raised from 8.0% (o 7.0%, effective from 1 July 2003 and the Lend Lease cordribufion rate increasig from 16.4% 0

18.4%:, effective 1 July 2003, The increased contriblilions have been determined so a5 1o eliminale the defic over the average life of the curvent membership,

being 12 years. Leng Leage has no olfigation to make up the deficlt and accordingly no provision has been raised for the deficiensy at 30 June 2003,

Vasted benefits reprasents benefits which membears wouid have been entilied o receive had thay terminaled thelr plan membership as at the valuation date.

Accrued benefits represards vested and unvesled benefits as at the valuation date.

s}

&
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35.

(c)

Employees’ and Directors' Compensation continued

Lend Lease Employes Share Plans

Larwd Lease has as a core vaiue the cancept of the 'partnering’ of capital and labour. This successiul concept has, over decades,
bean advanced inmany practical ways in Lend Leasa through such philosaphies as emploves ownership and profit sharing.

Surrantly amployess awn approximataly 13.5% of the issued capital of Lard Lease.

in October 1888, sharshoiders approved an annual affoimant of 0.5% of the issued capital of Land Lease Corporation at 50 cents per
share to be used for the banefit of Lend Lease Group employess. In previous years the annual alloiment was primarily directed for the
Banefit of Australian empioveas through the Lend Lease Employse Share Acquisition Plary (ESAF). With tha global expansion of Lend
Laase and the smploymant of a significant number of employess ouiside Australia, employes share plans were extended to UK,
Eurapean and US employees. The annual allotrment of the 0.5% of issued capital comprised 2,154,333 shares for the financial year
June 20603 (2,141,571 dune 2002) allocated across the Group’s various global employee share plans from which aliocations may be
rmade to employees, The various Lend Lease employes share plans are described in more detail balow.

Australian Based: Employee Share Acquisition Plan (ESAP}

in accordance with the 1888 sharsholder approval, ESAR was sstabilishad in Dacember 1888 for the purpose of amployess acquiring
shares in Lend Lease Comoration. That plan replaced previous employes awnsrship facilities in place over the previous decade.

ESAI is furwded by Lend Leass subscriptions at the rate of up 1o 7.5% of annual salary and employes profit share caloulated at the
rate of up to 7.5% of profit before taxin accordance with a Profit Sharing Deed. Annual salary and profit share subseriptions are used
to acquire shares in Lend Lease Corporation at market vaiue on behalf of employess, who may be nominated as members of ESAP.

Employees are also allocated shares on the basis of individual and depastmental parformances. Thase shares are issuad 1o the Plan at
50 cents par share from the 0.5% of issued capital mentioned above.

At balance date, approdmately 2,000 employses (dune 2002 2,000) wera sligible to participate in the plar.
US Based: Employee Share Plan

The Lend Eease US Loryy Term Incentive Share Plan (the Plan) was established in the US in 1888, The Flan was astablished with a
US rabbi trust that holds shares in Lend Lease Corporation to assist payrnent of benefits under the Plan. Employeas rmay acquirg
urits in the Plan by sacrificing part of their salary and/or bangdits, funding the purchass of Lend Lease shares at market vaiue, Units in
the Fan are aiso issued 16 ermployess based on individuai and departmental performancs. Underlying shares ares issued to the US
Trust at 50 cents par share from the G.5% of issued capital referrad to above. The value of the units 1o ermployees is ultimately based
upar a combination of the Lend L ease Corporation share price and the US and Australian doliar exchange rate.

The arrangaments aiso cover share plan based long term incentive arrangements for the US employees of Bovis Lerd Eaase, and
associated companies.

Land Leass Corporation is responsibia for the fiabilities of the rabbi trust. As the assets of the rabbi trust exceed the liabilitiss of the
rab frust no amount is recorded in Lend Lease Corporation’s Statement of Financial Position.

The company has pul in place US Internad Revenue Service approved share plan arrangerments for all US employess to faciitate
receipt of profit share entitlemants in Lend Lease Corporation sharss.

At balance date, approxdmately 3,800 emiployses (dune 2002 4,800) wera aligible 1o participate in the plan.
UK/Eurepean/Asian Based: Employee Share Plan

Two empioyes shars plang (the Plans) were established in 1588, baing the UK based Inland Revanue - Approved Plan Ehe Approved
Plary) and the European (Guamsay based) Bastricted Share Plan (The Rastricted Share Plan). The Plans jointly, are similar i operation
to the Australia based ESAR, however ths 1898 Approved Flan, (closed in March 2002), was only available 1o UK employses,

tend Lease Annuat Consolidated Financial Report 2003 57



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

35. Employees’ and Directors' Compensation continued
{c) Lend Lease Employee Share Plans continued
UK/Eurepean/Asian Based: Employes Share Plan continued

in 2002 two new UK based Inland Bevenus approved Share incertive Plans (SIF) were establishad for the acceptance of employes
profit share contributions used to acquire Lend Lease shares, for UK bassed Lend Lease group employees.

Shares in the above mentioned Restricted Share Plan may be allocated o emplovess in the UK, Burope and Singapore, based on
indivicdual and departmental performance. Shares are issusd to this plan from the 0.8% of issued capital referred to abova. In
acidition, the Rastricted Share Plan can acquire Land Lease Corporation shares at market valug on bahalf of employeeas. The valus of
aloeations o employess is uitimately basad on a combination of the Land Lease Corporation share price and the respective UK,
Euro, Asian currencies ard Australian dollar exchange rates.

At halance date, approximataly 3,000 employess [June 2002 3,750) were eligibls to participate in the plan.

Eligibility

All Lend Lease amployess ara slighbls to participate in 2 plan. The rules for eligibility for particular plars are datermined by reference
to the regulatory, lagal and tax rules of sach country in which the Group operatss.

Dividends and/or Voling Rights

Ganerally employess are entitled to dividends and voting rights for aliccaied shares. The plans reflect this intention subject to
regulatory, legal and tax constraints. Voting and dividend rights on any unallocated sharas reside with the frustees of tha relevant
share plan trusts. The trustes may exercise these rights in accordance with any fiduciary or governance rules pertaining 1o the Deead
or trust faws in the lsgal/tax jurisdiction the trust operates within,

Terms and Conditions of Allocation and Vesting Shares

The terms and conditions of allocation and vesting of sharas vary with the nature of the award provided to each employes and the
terrns of the plan.

Amounts Recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance

During the year AB10.7 mifliors (Jure 2002 ASE.T miflion) was recognised in tha Statement of Financiai Performance of the
consaiicated antity i relation 1¢ employes equity based cormpensation arrangements. This represented cash contributions to
employae share plans and the issue of shares to thase plans at 50 cents par share.

Tha fair value of the shares issued by the plans was AES3.1 million (June 2002 AESE.9 milion).

Refer to Page 61 for the fai value of instrumants issuad under the Long Terrm Incentive Flan.
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35. Employees’ and Directors' Compensation continued
{c} Lend Lease Employee Share Plans continued

Summary of Share Movements in Lend Lease Employee Share Plans

Vested ' Unvested Unatiocated” Total
Na, of Fair Value® | No. of Fair Value © | No. of Fair Vaie* N, Fair Valus *
Sharss A Sharas A Shares AS of Sharas AL

2003
No. of sharas at the beginning of year

Mowvermants during the yean
Shares acquirad by tha plans
Shares grarted to employees
Shares vasted during the year
Shares/cash withdrawr from the plans by employeas
Shares forfaited by employses
Cash distribution from the plans
No. of shares in the plans at end of year
Fair value at end of year®

2002
No. of shares at the beginning of year ® 14,371,601 3,364,633 6,014,200 23,750,424
Mowverments during the year:

Shares acouired by tha plans 2,500,411 23,919,658

Shares granted 1o empioyess 2,581,685 31,510,502 415,750 8,750,751 (3,897,435) (41,661,253)

Shares vested during the year 1,124,104 13,207,348 (1,124,104) (15,207,348

Shares/cash withdrawn: from the plans by amployess (2,814,400 {32,793,740 1,167,185 13,887,271

Shares forfaited by employass [188,837) (2,223,389 186,937 2,223,358

Crash distribution from the plans {820,000) (10,217 4000
No. of shares in the plans at end of year 15,662,980 2,867,342 5,153,308 23,783,630
Fair value at end of year ® 165,087,809 31,275,785 54,315,866 250,679,460
1 Granted 10 Lend Lease employees, fully vested with no outstanding conditions,
2 Granied 10 Lend Lease employees bl conditional on future ermployment.
3 Shares held by the Lend Lease ampioyvas share plans Dul not yet alocated 1o employess.
4 Fair value during the year defermined by reference to the ASK weighled average monihly shars price.

Tha shares at the beginning of the year reflect accumiilated movernents since the inception of the share plans,
Fair value at 30 June 2003 is at AS8.35 per shara (2002 AS10.54),

o A
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35. Employees’ and Directors' Compensation continued

(c)

Lend Lease Employee Share Plans continued
Vested Share Grants by Month

Average AP Fair Vaiue
No. of Shares Far Share A%

2003
July 2002
August 2002
September 2002
Cotobar 2002
Mowermber 2002
Decambar 2002
Jaruary 2003
Fabruary 2003
March 2003
At 2003
bay 2003
June 2003
2002
July 2001 176,555 1217 2148431
Auguist 2001 208,251 11.55 2,405,249
September 2001 117,625 10.58 1,244,515
Cetober 2001 54,280 11.12 603,504
MNowembar 2001 60,225 11.21 675,122
Blecambaear 2001 29,025 11.81% 345,735
January 2002 44 300 13.32 530,369
Fehruary 2002 34,814 12.72 444106
March 2002 45,540 11.83 538,738
Aprit 2002 32,085 11.67 374,479
bay 2002 39,008 11.16 435,340
June 2002 2,130,862 1{.33 22104,774

2,881,685 31,910,502

in addition to the plans discussed on Page 58, Lend Lease has over the years with the support of sharsholdars, astablished a range
of employee share ownarship vehickas. The earliest plan still in existence today was known as the Staff Share Schema. This was
established in Dacember 1875 after sharsholders agreed at the Annual General Mesting that yvear o aliot shares at par 1o enable
employees to participate either directly or indirectly in the future of the Company,

By 18984, legisiative and other regulatory changes had mada it clear that new arrangements would need to be made. Al that yvear's
Arnual Genaral Meating, sharsholders approvad an annual aliotment {for thres vears) of shares at par for the berefit of ermplovess,
ardd the Chairman foreshadowed the establishment of a new smployes share plan.

The Lend Lease Retirament Benalit Fund (RBF) was astatilishad in 1984 for tha bansit of smployass through the allotmant at par
vatue of 5 rmiflion Lend Lease Corporation shares. The balance of the Lend Lease Corporation sharss in RBF at 30 June 2003 was
14.7 miflion {2002 14.7 rilliory). The shares in BBF are not available to be allocated to employess and in accordance with the trust
tead, the capital of the trust is not available to Lend Leass Corporation. The incorme of the RBF is used to fund Lend Lease
Foundation.

iy Gotober 1885, the Lend Lease Employee lnvestment Trust EIT) was estabilishad to anable employees to invast in the compary. At
that time, sharshalders approved a one for ten rencuncaable rights issue, and the allotmant at tha same price of an equivalent
rumber of sharas to EIT. BT acquired these shares with debst funds raised through an external financier. Over the yeaars, strong
growth in Lend Eease dividend flows enabled EIT to pay down its external dabt. At 30 June 2003, there were 19.3 milliory Lend Lease
Corporation shares held by EIT of which 18.5 millien shares were available for allocation 1o amployses at the Trusteg's discretion. Mo
aflocations of units in the trust ware made to employsess or Directors i the yvear ended 30 June 2003, In recent times, the Trustes of
EIT has directed surplus dividends to help in the funding of the Lend Laase Foundation's programs. In accordance with the Trust
Dleed, the capital of tha trust is not available to Lend Lease Caorporation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

35. Employees’ and Directors' Compensation continued

(c)

Lend Lease Employee Share Plans continued

Sinee their establishiment, both EIT and BBF have acquired shares thraugh on market purchases, participation in bonus issues and
through dividend reinvestment. BIT accumulated shares from 1884 to 1888 through the allocation of shares under tha 1584
sharsholder’s resolution to allot G.5% of the issuad capital to employes benafit vehicks.

in 1968 Lend Lease established the Lend Lease Employes Shars Acquisition plary {(ESAP) as an employae reward schamea. ESAP
wis astablished to progpectively replace EIT as the principal ermployes share plan of the Group in Australia. Othear plans have
subsequently been astablishad. The details of the empioyes shars plans including ESAF are set out on page 59.

Access 1o the Lend Lease Foundation is anather important employee benefit. Established in 1983, the Foundation's programs are
adrinistered by employee trustess. Tha programs do not affect Group profifability as they are effectivaly funded by distribution from
the RBF and the BIT. The distribution from the trusts and the cost of providing benefits 1o emplovess are refiacted in the Statemeant of
Financial Performance,

Long Term Incentive Plan

Land Leass's current Long Tarm Incentive Frogram (LTIF) for Senior Executives was nitroducad and approved by the Board in 15988
and was updated and extended in 20071 and in 2002,

The LTiR is in the form of a dollar gurs ‘grant’ which is nationally linvasted” aver time to daliver value depending orx
- whether the Executive remains with the Company - if the Executive resigns hefore vasting, the grant will lapse;

- whether performancs hurdias, which include a service related slement, are achieved over the plan pericd - if the hurdles are not
achiaved, the grant will iapse; and

- the performance of the Lend Lease share price - the value of the grant on matunity will be detarmined by the risa in the Lend
Lease share price since the date of the grant.

Under the LTIP, a Senior Executive’s iniial dollar ‘grant” is normally allocated equally, or othenwise at the option of the Senior
Executive or Board discration, batweaean:

- Parformance Shares (P3) - the value of thess will rise or fall with the vaiue of Lend Lease sharas; and

- Share Appreciation Fights (SAR) - these are only payable If the price of Lend Lease shares at the date of maturity is higher thar
the date of grant. The Senior Executive will receive rnathing in raspact of these if the share price is lower than the price at the
date of grant.

For the purposes of the allocation, S are attributed a value squivalent 1o the Lend Laase share price at the date of the allocation,
white SAR arg valusd at approximataly one third of P8, which raflects thair greater risk profile.

The PS exarcised during the June 2003 year had a fair value of A$5.1 milion which represents the market value of the Lend Lease
shares at the date of exercise. Tha financial effect of thase incentives is accrued i the Statement of Financial Parfarmance over tha
tarrn of the Fian.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

35. Employees’ and Directors' Compensation continued
{c} Lend Lease Employee Share Plans continued
Long Term Incentive Plan continued

Summary of Stock Appreciation Righis {SARYPerformance Shares [PS)

Number of Land sase Corporation Share Equivalents

Expiry or

Exgrcise Girant Price Granted {apsed Exercised Closing Balance
Grant Date Date A% 8 SAR S SAR HS SAR HS SAR
July 2000 Judy 2005 21.08 76,840 B9 648 55,715 62 672 2314 26,974
Jan 2001 June 2003 1618 521,768 688,545 683,945 521,769
Apr 2001 Apr 2006 12.43 B2 654 655,287 52,654 £658.2587
May 2001 May 2008 14.15 53,004 61,837 53,004 81,837
July 2001 June 2004 11.68 308,004 358,410 308,064 359,410
July 2001 July 2006 11.88 146,684 288 420 137,880 209,180 B.554 40,240
July 2001 June 2004 12.45 628,816 252,006 378,720
July 2001 June 2004 1260 284,583 352 482 896,518 112,805 188,474 219,887
May 2002 June 2004 10.33 1,018,783 2,888,622 48175 311,972 84,415 BEE6,185 2,576,650
July 2002 June 2005 10.50 765,442 2,879,317 137,653 482,054 B2Y. 75859 147,263
July 2003 June 2008 10.03 210,604 210,604
July 2003 June 2007 10.03 210,804 210,604
Total number of PS/SAR 4,288,197 8,057,976 779,160 1,828,265 606,188 - 2,902,849 5,128,711

1 Lend Leass Corporation Share Ecuivalents represent a notionsd investiment in Lend Lease shares. Under the ferms of the LTI ne new Lend Leass shares can be izsued. & delaied description of the scheme is given above,
2 the 15 exercised during the June 2003 year had & {air value of A%5.114,837 which reprasents the markel vaiue of the Lend Lease shares al the date of exercise. No SAR were axercisad during the year,
Comparative information has not been provided, a2 it is nol practical 10 do eo.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

35. Employees’ and Directors' Compensation continued

{d} Directors’ Compensation

The numbier of Dirsctors of Lend Laase Corporation whose total income from the Comparry and related entities including frings
benefits tax, falls within the following bands:
Comparsy
June Jung
2003 2002

AFO00s Nurriber

100 - 308
120 - 129
130 - 139
200 - 204
2102149
220 - 229
240 - 249
250 - 259
270279
300 - 308
340 - 349
380 - 380
380 - 399
460 - 468
1,500 - 1,506
1,510~ 1,518
2080 - 2 065
2830 - 2,838
3160 - 5,168
3,350 - 5,358
8,340 -~ B 5345
Total

Consclidated Cormpany
Juna June June Jurs
2003 2002 2003 2002
ASO00s ASO00s A0S ABOO0s

Total income inclusive of retirement banefits, notional value of
suparannuation contributions to Exacutive Directors {if in an Austradian fund),
rnarket value of matured units in the Global Reward Schama and fringe
Banefit tax paid or payable to Directors of the Lend Lease Group {(ncluding
Directors of subsidiary Sompanias) from Lerd Lease Corporation and related
entities

included above are Dirsetors’ feas paid or payabis by Lend Leass
Corporation o non Executive Diractors of Land Lease Carporation

Inciuzded above are consulting fees paid or payable by Lend Lease
Corporation to non Executive Directors of Lend Lease Corporation
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

35. Employees’ and Directors' Compensation continued

{e) Executives' Compensation

For the purpose of this disclosure, Exacutive officers arg those Australian based individuals who are invalved in the strategic direction
and managemant of the Lend Lease Group. The disclosure is in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1034,
which raquires the disclosure of the numiber of Australian based Executive officers whose total income from Lend Lease and related
entities axceads AB100,000 within the following bands:
Consolidated Comparny

June June June June

2003 2002 2003 2002
AB000s Number Nurmber Nugriber Nurnbar

160 - 168
D50 - 264
260 - 268
280 - 288
300 - 308
320 - 326
340 - 348
360 - 368
380 - 388
410 - 418
430 - 438
450 - 458
460 - 465
480 - 489
520 - 528
530 - 539
570 - 578
580 - 589
B0 - BOS
610~ 518
B30 - B3¢
650 - 550
870 - 678
700 - 708
760 - 768
B0 - 868
B70 - 876
BYG - 899
960 - 969
1,410 1,418
1,500 - 1,500
1,510+ 1,519
2,080 - 2,009
2,830 - 2,839
3,160 - 3,189
3,350 - 3,359
8,340 - 8,349

G

AS000s AS000s

Total compensation 15,131

1 Tolal Income ingludes finge benafit tax, notional value of superannuation contributions (i in the Austrafian Fund), markel vaiue of matured shares in emplioyes
share plans and retirament benefils paid or pavaile 16 these Executives from Lend Lease and related partias.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

36. Related Party Information
Directors

The nammes of each persen who has baen a Director of the Company between 1 July 2002 and the date of this raport s

£ A Crawford, Chairman Director since 2001, appointed Chairman 29 May 2003

G A Clarke, Managing Diractor Appointed Managing Director 8 Decamber 2002

B A Longses, Beputy Chairmian Diractor since 1886, Deputy Chairman sinca 2000

G G Edington Director since 1888

B C Goldmark Dirsctor since 1989

R E Tsenin Director since 1857

J K Conmway, Chairman Director since 1982, Deputy Chairman sinca 1898, appainted Chairman in 2000,
ratired 29 May 2003

£ H Higgins, Managing Director Managing Director since 1885, retired 31 January 2003

A Ao Director since 1888, retired 31 Decamiber 2002

£ Grady Director since 1984, ratired 1 July 2002

R G Mugller, CBE Director since 1988, ratired 8 Novarmiber 2002

Y H Chua, BBM Director since 18584, retired B November 2002

Loans made to Directors of the Lend Lease Group

These loans relate to the private affairs of the individuals concermed and are disclosed to ensure compliance with Accourting
Standard AASE 1017 Related Party Disclosures and the Australian Stock Exchange Listing Rulas.

Loan Schemes

At balance date there were two interest free loans June 2002 twa) made by Lend Lease Corporation ranging from AR30,789 1o
ABE4 474 {June 2002 ASES,536 to ASES,816) totaling ASSE,283 (June 2002 AB142,552) and one loan with intarest payable at 2.7%
(June 2002 2%) totalling A$261,538 [June 2002 A$288,2448),

Loans repaid by the following Diractors during the year armnounted to A$44,127 [June 2002 AS234,385),
-  ESNgand Lk Ng

included i loan repayments are amounis totalling ABnil (June 2002 A$59,385) which were forgiven as part of Executive
cormpensation {refer Note 350 Directors” and Executivas” Compensation).

Shareholdings of Directors of Lend Lease Corporation

At balance date, the aggregate number of issusd shares held directly, indirectly or beneficially by Directors and/or Director refatsd
entitiss amountad ¢ 103,500 shares {Juns 2002 206,995 shares). During the year 37,241 (June 2002 22,340) shares were acguirad
and rno shares were sold {Juns 2002 nil).

Other Director Transactions

Transactions entarad into during the year with Directors and Dirgctor related entities of Lend Lease within normal employes, customer
ar supplier relationships on terms and conditions no mare favourable thary those avadlable on similar fransactions to other amployass,
customers or suppliers include: salaries and bensfits from ull time amployrnent; dividends andg distributions from shareholdings in
Land Lease Corporation and building servicas supplied by entities in the property services operations.

Ownership interests in Related Parties and Transactions with Controlied Entities

interasts hald in controlled entities and associated companias, joint veniures, parinarships and trusts, are set out in Notes 31, 32, 33
and 34 to ihe Enancial staterments,

Lard Leass Corparation provides 2 wide range of corporate services 1o its contrafled entities which includa: administrative;
achvartising; accourting; employes services such as the administration of salaries and superannuation; finance; insurances; lagal;
public relations; company secratarial and treasury. Costs incurred in providing such services are recovered accordingly from the
entities concearnad.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

36. Related Party iInformation continued
Managed Funds
All transactions betwsan managed property trusis and Land Leass are determinad at an arm'’s length cormmercial basis and are
subject to indepandeant assessmant where appropriate and approval by an indspeandeant frustes or board.
Property Trusts and Funds
Land Lease is the und manager for several property trusts and funds. As fund manager, Lend Lease is responsibla for all
rnanagemert activities arising frorm the trust's and fund's ownership of properties. The manager is also responsible for implementing
policies, monitoring the parformance of sach property, ensuring the return is maximised for the trusts and funds and for managing the
fiquid funds of the trusts and funds. For these sarvices, Lend Laass is paid a fee in accordance with respective deads of the frusts
and funds.
Managed Funds
June June
2003 002
Adm Alm
Services provided by Lend Lease
Managernent of trusts 157.5
Expense reimbursemenis to Lend Lease
Administrative and property rental expenses 14.8
Services providad by Land Lease comprise:
Investment management includes strategic invastment advice, total asset managamant and invastment porticlio management.
Asset management cormprises proparty management services, proparty portfolio advisory services, maintenance and inswances,
strategic advice and management supservision services, administration, rmarketing and risk managerment sendces.
Integrated Pavelopment Businesses includes property capital works, design and construction sendcas, devaloprmert and
refurbishmant.
37. Discontinuing Operations

Gn 25 May 2003, Lend Lease announced the finalisation of the BEI strategic review and the Comipany’s intantion 1o simplify its
strategy to one real estate services business (based on Bovis Land Lease’s prasance around the world} with selective spedialisation in
real estate services and funds managemerit in gach of the major regions.

Accordingly, Lend Lease is exiting, over time, the North Arnerican real estate investrnenis markets (both squity and debt), Asiar datit
rnarkats including managameant of the Intaemational Distressed Delbst Fund (IDDE) and othar non performing loan servicing activities,
cartain componsnts of £'s European real sstate investmants business and the Global Fund management advisory business.

The following table details those businesses which have been treated as discantinuing operations. These discontinuing operations
form part of Lend Lease's REl Dabt and Eguity businass segments and are across all geographical segments [refer Note 2 Segment
Reporting).

Entity/Business Hagjion Entity/Business Fagion
US Equity Advisory Uus Lend Lease Rasen LS
HCE us Roser Consulting Us
Caphtark Us VEF serias co-mingled furyd platform Us
Asset Manageament - MNarth America us Lend Eease Mortgage Capital Us
Asset Managemertt - Mexico us Structursd Finance Us
Drebt Advisory us Lend Lease Agri-Business Us
Frogram Lending us Lend Lease US Office Trust Australia
Lend Lease Hyperion SV us Asia Dabt Asia
HFF Us Global Fund Advisory Gilobal
Cordia Senior Living | us Europe Non Retail Equity Europe
Winr Residential Us Lend Eease Houlihan Fovars Europe

1 Sold during the vear ended 30 June 2003,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

37. Discontinuing Operations continued

The date for compigtion of the disposals of all discontinuing operations cannot be datermined at this tims.
Consolicated

June Jung
2003 2002
A% ABm
Financial Performance of Discontinued Operations
Revenues from ordinary activitios {exciuding sale of operations) 7405
Favenus from the sale of operations
Total revenue from ordinary activities 740.9
Expenseas from ordinary activities 7150
Carrying amourt of net assets of operations sold
Disposal costs of oparations sold
Writedown of REl businasses
Total expenses from ordinary activities 715.0
Share of nat profit of associates accounted for using the aquity method 10.1
{Loss)/profit before tax from ordinary activities 36.0
lncome tax expense relating 1o ordinary activities 12.7
ncama tax expensa ralating o writeoff of future income tax baneafits praviously recogrisad in prior
WEENS
{Loss)/profit after tax from ordinary activities ? 23.3
Financial Position of Discontinued Operations
Currant assets 578.1
Non current assais 20128
Current labilitias 284.8
Mor current ighifities 1687.5
Net assets 2,128.4
Cash Flow of Discontinued Operations
Net cash inflow from operating activities 254.4
Net cash outfiow from investing activitiss {328.5)
Mat cash inflow from financing activities 74,5

Net cash

1 tha net aseetz of HRF and Cordia Senior Living wara 2old during the pancd rasulting in nil profit before and afier tax,
2 Inchedes A2 midlion operating profit afler tax excluding writedown of BEl busiesees of A5245.0 milion after tax.

Sale agreemsanits have been enterad into in relation to the US Equity Advisory, Asset Management - Mexico, Debt Advisory, Program
Lending, Lend Lease Hyparion SV and Lend Lease Mortgage Capital businessas for approximatsly US$145.5 {ABZ23.8 milion) in
relation to approximately US$144.0 milfion (A$221.6 million) of net assets, the value of which is largely dependent upon consents. The
data for finalisation ang settlerment of the sale is dependant upon obtaining consants and carnot be determined at this tima,

Events Subsequent to Balance Date

Since 30 June 2003, Larwd Lease has sold HOE(1 July 2003), CapMark (14 July 2003) and Asset Management - North America (14
July 2003} resulting in a US$E.6 milion (A$10.2 million) profit before tax, US$3.8 million (ASE.0 million) profit after tax.

The financial effect of the above transactions has not been bought to account in the financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2003,
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Directors’ Declaration

in the opinion of the Dieciars of Lend Leagse Corporation Limited:
1. The Fnancial Statements and notes set ouf on pages 1 o 67 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(@ giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the consolidated entity as at 30 June 2003 and of its performance, as
raprosentad Dy the rasults of its operations and gash flows for the year ended on that date; and

{th  complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regrdations 20071,
2. There are reasonabie grounds to believe that the Company wif be able 10 pay s debis as and when they becoms due and payable.
Sydney, 20 August 2003,

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Directors:

//I}/A Crawford

Chairman

G A Clarke
Managing Dirgotor
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Independent audit report to members of Lend Lease Corporation Limited
Scope
The financial report and divectors” responsibility

The financial report comprises the statements of financial position, statements of financial performance,
statements of cash flows, accompanying notes | to 37 to the financial statements, and the directors’ declaration
for both Lend Lease Corporation Limitec (the “Company’'} and the Consolidated Fatity, for the year ended

30 June 2003. The Censolidated Entity comprises both the company and the entities it controlled during that
year,

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
report in accordance with the Corporations Acr 2001, This includes responsibility for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error, and
for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial report.

Audit approach

We conducted an independent audit in order to express an opinion fo the members of the Company. Our audit
was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards in order to provide reasonable assurance as fo
whether the financial report is fiee of material misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced by factors
such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent limitations of internal control, and the
availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all
material misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory financial
reporting reguirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with our understanding of the Company’s and
the Consolidated Entity’s financial position, and of their performance as represented by the results of their
operations and cash flows.

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:

& examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial report, and

B assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the directors.

While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal controls over financial reporting when
determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide assurance on
internal controls.

Independence

in conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian professional ethical
proncuncements and the Corporations Act 2001,

Audit opinion
In our opinion, the financial report of Lend 1.ease Corporation Limited is in accordance with:
a} the Corporations Act 2001, including:

i giving a true and fair view of the Company's and Congsclidated Entity’s financial position as at 30
June 2003 and of their performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

ii. complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regnlations 2001; and
b} other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia.

ks

Gealf N So

G R Wils
Partner
Sydney, 20 August 2003
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Progress Report

Objective

Implement outcome of REI
Strategic Review

Rationalise company’s cost base

Implement capital management
initiatives

Strengthen management skills

Deliver FY2003 forecast

I.éml I.easé

Status Comments

v

<. <

» Exiting REI business where limited
strategic fit

» Exit process largely complete
»A$88M p.a. cost savings achieved

»Increased yield for investors

» Commenced 10% share buyback
» Some key appointments made

» Further key appointments imminent

»Major management skilling initiative
with London Business School and
Columbia University

> A$230M PAT achieved




Le

June 2003 Full Year Result
Profit After Tax
2003 2002
ASM  ASM
Continuing operations 1981 1748
Discontinuing operations:
- REl businesses 32.1 23.3
— Westpac hedge profit - 28.2
Total Operating Profit 230.2  226.3
Write-down of RE| businesses (945.0) -
Reported profit/(loss) (7114.8) 226.3

» Final dividend 20 cents unfranked
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June 2003 Full Year Result Le
Continuing Operations

Profit After Tax

2003 2002

A$SM  ASM
Bovis Lend Lease 133.7 112.7
Integrated Development Services 31.6 40.6
Real Estate Investments 93.1 80.0
Non-Core Investments 22.2 25.9
Group Corporate & Treasury (2.6) (40.0)
Group Restructuring Costs (32.5)
Amortisation (47.4) (44.4)

Operating Profit 198.1  174.8




Bovis Lend Lease
Profit After Tax

ASM
140
120
100
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60
40
20

$37M

$113M

$90M

$56M

0

98/99
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$134M
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Bovis Lend Lease Lend Lease
Key Profit Drivers

A$M
T 36% T 40%
600 + T 35%
500 1 T 30%
400 1 T 25%
300 + T 20%
200 + T 15%
100 1 1+ 10%
O 4

1 June

: Backliog GPM == P rofitability Ratio




Bovis Lend Lease
Outlook

>
>

On track for 10%+ PAT growth

Significant overhead reductions
achieved

Backlog to grow

No growth in Realised GPM
inFY 04

Well positioned

I.éml I.easé
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Bovis Lend Lease — Sector Diversity
Realised GPM by Sector 2003 FY

Sectors

Commercial/Mixed use
Retail

Residential

Defence

Health care
Pharmaceutical
Education
Telecommunications
Industrial
Infrastructure
Government

Other

I.éml I.easé

Project
photos

Asia us Europe
Pacific
% % %
32 21 54
15 13 18
- 7 3
- 17 1
12 8 11
2 13 4
17 -
12
3 ]
1 5 -
6 16 9
100 100 100
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Bovis Lend Lease — Asia Pacific
Sector Analysis
Sectors Realised GPM Backlog at
2001 2002 2003 30 June 03
% % % %
Commercial/Mixed use 29 41 32 39
Retail 11 12 15 12
Residential 6 5 - 13
Defence - - -
Health care 3 1 . 1
Pharmaceutical 7 8 12 5
Education 1 1 2 .
Telecommunications 1 8 17 10
Industrial 21 12 12 8
Infrastructure 7 7 3 2
Government . 1 1 -
Other 14 4 6 10
100 100 100 100
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Bovis Lend Lease — US Lend Lease

Sector Analysis
Sectors Realised GPM Backlog at
2001 2002 2003 30 June 03
% % % %
Commercial/Mixed use 26 23 21 14
Retail 9 13 13 23
Residential 10 13 7 13
Defence - . .
Health care 12 16 17 15
Pharmaceutical 8 5 8 5
Education 9 10 13 19
Telecommunications 8 1 - -
Industrial - 1
Infrastructure 4
Government - 6 5 6
Other 14 12 16 5

100 100 100 100 -




Bovis Lend Lease — Europe
Sector Analysis
Sectors Realised GPM Backlog at
2001 2002 2003 30 June 03
% % % %
Commercial/Mixed use 32 45 54 31
Retail 23 20 18 19
Residential - 2 3 2
Defence . - - 29
Health care 12 6 1 1
Pharmaceutical 11 10 11 5
Education 1 3 4 4
Telecommunications 2 2 -
Industrial 2 1
Infrastructure 1 -
Government . 2 - -
Other 106 g 9 9
100 100 100 100

I.éml I.easé
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Bovis Lend Lease
Visibility of Future Earnings

Backlog
June 03 June 02
Realised:
Within next FY 58% 62%

Within subsequent FY  24% 28%
Post 2 years 18% 10%

Le

Project
photos
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Integrated Development Services  Le

Profit After Tax

Delfin Lend Lease

Sale of North Lakes

Other Asia Pacific Development
Actus Lend Lease

Sale of TresAguas

Sale of Touchwood, Solihull
Shell Centre Provision

PF| Business

Other/Overheads

Operating Profit

2003 2002
ASM  ASM
320 215
11.2
131 243
42 34
12.9
55  24.1
(10.5)
(242) 2.2
(126) (34.9)
31.6 406
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Integrated Development Services
Asia Pacific — Delfin Lend Lease

» Strong operating result
— PAT up 49% to $32M

» Sale of North Lakes for
PAT of $11.2M

» Well-positioned for further
operating profit growth
in 2004 FY:
— 34,500 lots in Sales Backlog at 30 June '03
— Strong pipeline to grow Sales Backlog

LEII ease

Project
photos
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Integrated Development Services Lend Lease
Asia Pacific — Urban Development

> $9M PAT mainly from Jacksons Landing and Newington
projects

» Contribution to grow over time with new projects:
— Victoria Harbour
— Rouse Hill
— Twin Waters
— Strong pipeline

Project photos
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Integrated Development Services
US — Actus Lend Lease

> PAT up 24% to $4.2M

» Strong second half result:
— Beaufort/Parris Island
financial close
— Fort Hood construction profits

> Result net of $8M after tax
bidding costs

» Fort Campbell expected to reach financial close by end 2003

I.éml I.easé

Project photos

» Currently bidding on a number of privatisation projects:

— Achieved preferred bidder on US$5 billion military project in Hawaii
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Integrated Development Services

Europe — PFls

» Sectors targeted: Health care
& Defence

» Strong position established in
Health care sector

» Strong pipeline of bids in progress

» Reached preferred bidder on £190M Leeds Hospital project

I.éml I.easé

Project photos

> $26M after tax in bid costs expensed during year:

— $11M on Health care sector bids

— $14M on Allenby/Connaught Defence sector bid
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Integrated Development Services

Europe

Urban Development Projects
» (Good progress made on Greenwich

Peninsula project:
— Maijor planning approvals attained
— First profits expected in FY06

Retail business
» Chapelfield, Norwich on track

for September 2005 opening:
— 52% let in line with target
— Construction on schedule
— Bulk of profits in FY06

» Lodged planning appeal on Shell project

Lend Lea

Project
photos

19




Real Estate Investments
Continuing Operations
Profit After Tax

Australian operations
Asian operations
European operations
Bluewater NOI

King of Prussia

Other investment income
Sale of Kiwi

Sale of Arrabida

Operating Profit

Le

2003 2002
ASM  ASM
284 244
48  (5.6)
(1.3)  (6.0)
362 313
144 130
106 99
3.2

9.8

931  80.0

20




Real Estate Investments - Australia

I.éml I.easé

» QOperating profits up 16% to
$28M:

- Reduced overheads
— Reduced GPT management fees

» GPT management fee
restructured to maintain

Project photos

market competitiveness

» Meaningful FY04 earnings growth largely dependent on

GPT performance fee

» Continued positive outlook for business
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LEII ease

Real Estate Investments — Asia

Project photos

» Focus on Retail sector

— Separated APIC into
retail and non-retail
funds

» Good result in FY03
— PAT $4.8M
> FY02 loss of $5.6M

included Tokyu JV and
S-REIT costs
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LEII ease

Real Estate Investments — Europe

Project
photos

» Focus on Retail sector

» FY03 result substantial
improvement over FY02

» Business now integrated
with retail development skills

» Focus on establishing a
pipeline of opportunities
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Discontinuing REI Businesses Le

Profit After Tax

Australia
Asia
Europe
US

Global Management overheads

Operating Profit
Amortisation

Net Profit

2003 2002

ASM  A$M
14 06

(13.2)  (2.2)
49 (95
69.6 719
(2.7)

60.0  60.8

(27.9) (37.5)

321 233
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Profit After Tax Analysis

Operating Profit — Continuing Businesses
Investment Income — Continuing Businesses
Discontinuing REI Operations

IBM GSA

Net Hedge Benefits

Net Interest

Net Non-Recurring Items

Amortisation

2003 2002
ASM  ASM
1458 1108
612  54.2
60.0  60.8
121 16.8
226 169
(11.9)  (16.1)
157  64.8
(75.3)  (81.9)
2302 2263
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Profit After Tax Analysis
Net Non-Recurring Items

Sale of Development Assets
Sale of REI Investments

Sale of Calderdale PFI interest
Sale of CoolSavings

Westpac Hedge Profit

Asset Write-downs
THI/Chelverton Recoveries
Group Tax Benefits/(Losses)
Group Restructure Costs

Net Non-Recurring Items

2003 2002
ASM ASM
29.6 24 1

: 13.0
15.4

2.4

: 28.2

(19.8) :
19.4 6.7
19.0 (25.0)

(32.5) :
15.7 64.8
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REIl Review — Write-down

US$M Original  Write-
Book downs
Value
Equity Advisory 273 (273)
HCI 90 -
CapMark & other debt businesses 175 (72)
HFF 23 (13)
LL Mortgage Capital 41 -
Other REI businesses 98 (48)
Restructure and transaction costs (130)
FITB (38)
Total Write-down (574)
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REI Review - Realisation of Value

AS$M

Estimated proceeds:
Discontinued business platforms
Other Net Tangible Assets
Restructure & transaction costs

Net proceeds from divested businesses

Co-investments

Financial Year

2003 2004 2005 2006+
15 460 : :
. 470 15 :
(10)  (190) - :
5 740 15 ~
. 60 65 285
5 800 80 285
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Dividends Lend Lease

» Final dividend 20 cents per share — unfranked
» 2" half payout ratio 73% in line with policy (60-80%)
» Revised dividend policy due to:

- Changed investor attitudes
- Surplus capital position, and
- Level of Australian tax losses

» Both interim and final 2004 dividends expected to be
unfranked

» Expect to maintain consistent dividends — with some
growth
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. l.ll ease
Capital Management

» 10% share buyback commenced 13 June 2003

» 12.7 million shares acquired to date
— 2.9% of shares bought back

» Seek shareholder approval at AGM to increase size of
total buyback to 20%

» Suspended annual 0.5% of issued capital allocated to
employee share plans
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Lend I.easé

Return on Equity

2003 2002

» Return on Equity (ROE):

—  Reported operating earnings 6.5%  6.1%
- Pre-amortisation operating earnings 8.5% 8.2%

» Targeting ROE in excess of Cost of Equity
(approx. 11%) over next 2-3 years

» Expect pre-amortisation ROE to exceed cost of
equity in FY05
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Earnings Outlook Lend Lease

» A number of factors impacting on 2004 FY earnings

» 2004 FY profit after tax expected to increase to a
range of A$240 million to A$250 million

» Share buybacks allow eps growth in 2004 FY of
around 10%+

» Company well positioned for stronger eps growth in
2005 FY
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